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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

(Mark One)
Annual Report pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of th Securities Exchange Act of 193

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014
or
[0 Transition report pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) 6the Securities Exchange Act of 193

For the transition period from to

Commission File Number: 0-25092

INSIGHT ENTERPRISES, INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its chaer)

Delaware 86-076624¢€
(State or other jurisdiction of (IRS Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification No.)

6820 South Harl Avenue, Tempe, Arizona 85283

(Address of principal executive offices, Zip Code)
Registrant’s telephone number, including area code(480) 333-3000
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) d¢fie Act:

Title of each clas Name of each exchange on which register
Common stock, par value $0.0: The NASDAQ Global Select Market

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) dfie Act:

n/a
(Title of Class)

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405cdbéturities Act.  YedX] No
O



Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 orti®ecl5(d) of the Act. Yes[d No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant €l filed all reports required to be filed by Seeti or 15(d) of the Securities Excha
Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (ordiach shorter period that the registrant was reduodile such reports), and (2) has been
subject to such filing requirements for the pastia@s. Yes[x] No [

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant lhsmstted electronically and posted on its corpo¥eb site, if any, every Interactive
Data File required to be submitted and posted puntsio Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (8§ 232.405 of tthapter) during the preceding 12
months (or for such shorter period that the regigtwas required to post such files). YEd No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquilers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K (92D5) is not contained herein, and
will not be contained, to the best of registrakti®wledge, in definitive proxy or information statents incorporated by reference in Part Il of
this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlerge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, maccelerated filer, or a smaller reporting

company. See the definitions of “large acceleréited” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reportirgpmpany” in Rule 12{2- of the Exchange A
(check one):

Large accelerated file Accelerated filel O

Non-accelerated file [ Smaller reporting compar [
Indicate by check mark whether the registrantskell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Actyes [ No
The aggregate market value of the voting and ndmga@ommon equity held by non-affiliates of thgistrant, based upon the closing
price of the registrant’'s common stock as repooted he Nasdaq Global Select Market on June 30,,28&4ast business day of the
registrant’s most recently completed second figoalrter, was $1,246,650,771.
The number of shares outstanding of the regissaammon stock on February 13, 2015 was 39,753,955.
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the registrant’s Proxy Statement re¢atd its 2015 Annual Meeting of Stockholders hbagen incorporated by reference into
Part Ill, Items 10, 11, 12, 13 and 14 of this AnrRaport on Form 10-K.
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INSIGHT ENTERPRISES, INC.
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain statements in this Annual Report on ForaKK1hcluding statements in “Management’s Discussand Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations” in Part knit 7 of this report, are forwatdeking statements within the meaning of the Pevagécuritie
Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These forwalaleking statements may include: projections of Bratthat affect net sales, gross profit, oper:
expenses, earnings from operations, non-operaiogne and expenses, net earnings or cash flows pessls and the payment of accrued
expenses and liabilities; the effect of changeadanplemented by our largest software partnetaments of its channel incentive program,
including the expected financial effect in 201% #xpected effects of seasonality on our busirieasthere will be further consolidation in the
Information Technology (“IT”) industry; our businestrategy and our strategic initiatives, including efforts to grow our core business,
develop and grow our global Cloud business andllagblable services business; the availabilityoofigetitive sources of products for our
purchase and resale; industry pricing and condididd@rends; our intentions concerning the payneémtividends and retirement of treasury
shares; our acquisition strategy; our ability ttsef the effects of inflation and manage any inseda interest rates; projections of capital
expenditures in 2015; the sufficiency of our cdpiégources and the availability of financing and needs or plans relating thereto; the effect
of new accounting principles or changes in accognpolicies; the effect of indemnification obligats; projections about the outcome of
ongoing tax audits; our positions and strategigh véspect to ongoing and threatened litigatiom;exgposure to derivative counterparty
concentration and non-performance risks; our gtiititexpand our client relationships; that pricprgssures in the IT industry will continue;
the sufficiency of our facilities; our intention tto repatriate certain foreign undistributed elagsiwhere management considers those earnin
to be reinvested indefinitely and plans relatingréto; our plans to use cash flow from operationsvorking capital, to pay down debt, make
capital expenditures, repurchase shares of our @mstock, and fund acquisitions; our exposure tdafance sheet arrangements; statement
of belief; and statements of assumptions underlgimgof the foregoing. Forward-looking statememésidentified by such words as “believe,”
“anticipate,” “expect,” “estimate,” “intend,” “plah “project,” “will,” “may” and variations of suctwords and similar expressions and are
inherently subject to risks and uncertainties, somghich cannot be predicted or quantified. Futewents and actual results could differ
materially from those set forth in, contemplated dryunderlying the forward-looking statements. fEhean be no assurances that results
described in forward-looking statements will beiaghd, and actual results could differ materiattynf those suggested by the forward-lookinc
statements. Some of the important factors thatdcoaiise our actual results to differ materiallyrrthose projected in any forward-looking
statements include, but are not limited to, théofaing:

» our reliance on partners for product availabilibgaompetitive products to sell as well as our cetitipn with our partners

« our reliance on partners for marketing funds andipasing incentives

e changes in the IT industry and/or rapid changdedhnology;

» actions of our competitors, including manufactueerd publishers of products we si

» failure to comply with the terms and conditionsoof commercial and public sector contra

» disruptions in our IT systems and voice and datevorks;

» the security of our electronic and other confidantiformation;

e general economic condition

» our reliance on commercial delivery servic

» our dependence on certain person

» the variability of our net sales and gross pr¢

» the risks associated with our international operes

e exposure to changes in, interpretations of, orreefoent trends related to tax rules and regulatiemd

» intellectual property infringement claims and chalies to our registered trademarks and trade ni

Additionally, there may be other risks that areeoitise described from time to time in the repdntst tve file with the Securities and

Exchange Commission. Any forward-looking statemémthis report should be considered in light ofieas important factors, including the

risks and uncertainties listed above, as well herst We assume no obligation to update, and, easemay be required by law, do not intend
to update, any forward-looking statements. We dcendorse any projections regarding future perforceahat may be made by third parties.

1
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INSIGHT ENTERPRISES, INC.
PART |

Iltem 1. Business
General

Insight Enterprises, Inc. (“Insight” or the “Compdhis a leading worldwide technology provider afegrated solutions to business and
government clients. Through our extensive hardwsoftyware and services offerings and efficient $pippain combined with highly skilled
technology specialists and engineers, we provitigmated information technology (“IT”) solutionsdar clients’ most compelling problems,
helping them run their businesses smarter. Ouityhil assess, design, deploy and manage IT sakiticeates meaningful connections with
clients, enabling them to better manage and sehaiel T environments. We are a single source foralients’ diverse IT needs, simplifying
their businesses and helping them control thezd3ts.

The Company is organized in the following threerafing segments, which are primarily defined byirthelated geographies:

% of 2014
Operating Segment: Geography Consolidated Net Sale
North America United States and Cana 67%
EMEA Europe, Middle East and Afric 29%
APAC Asia-Pacific 4%

* Additional detailed segment and geographic infation can be found in “ManagemenDiscussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiod
Results of Operatio” in Part Il, Item 7 and in Note 22 to the ConsokdbFinancial Statements in Part Il, Item 8 of tiigort.

Insight has locations in 22 countries, and we ttheecapabilities to serve clients in more than @8@ntries and territories with software
provisioning and related services, transactingr®ss in 15 languages and 15 currencies. Our offeimNorth America and select countries ir
EMEA include a suite of IT hardware, software aat/ies solutions. Our offerings in the remaindesuwr EMEA segment and in APAC are
almost entirely software and select software-relagrvices. On a consolidated basis, hardwareyardtand services represented 52%, 43%
and 5%, respectively, of our net sales in 2014 @magbto 51%, 44% and 5%, respectively, in 2013.

We began operations in Arizona in 1988, incorpatateDelaware in 1991 and completed our initial lpuibffering in 1995. Our
corporate headquarters are located in Tempe, AasiZdfe began operations in the U.S., expanded iat@a@a in 1997 and into the United
Kingdom in 1998. In 2006, through our acquisitidrBoftware Spectrum, Inc., we expanded deepergluoal markets in EMEA and APAC.
In 2008, through our acquisitions of Calence, LbhQ\iorth America and MINX Limited in the United Kidgm, we enhanced our global
technical expertise around higher-end networkirgy @mmunications technologies, as well as managedces and security. In 2011, we
enhanced our professional services capabilitiescayiring Tempe, Arizona-based Ensynch, Incorpdrédtensynch”). In 2012, we expanded
our hardware capabilities into key markets in ousting European footprint by acquiring Inmac Gmaitl Micro Warehouse BV (“Inmac”), a
broad portfolio business-to-business hardware lexdghsed in Germany and the Netherlands. Throoglevolution of our business and these
acquisitions, we have successfully migrated fromreseller roots to become a comprehensive IT iswisitprovider.

Values
We have an established set of values that sebifeefor our business and define who we are. Owg calues are:
. We Exist to Win the Loyalty of Our Clien
. We Respect Each Oth
. We Develop and Value Our Teamma
. We Act with Integrity

. We Strive for Operational Excellence in All We |
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We believe that these values strengthen the ovesagiht experience for our teammates, clientsgarthers (we refer to our employee
“teammates,” our customers as “clients” and ouptigps as “partners”). By living these values, vediéve we are able to attract, develop and
retain great talent and instill a winning culture.

Business Strategy

Our purpose is to make meaningful connectionstiblt businesses run smarter. Our value is ourtabiliguide, advise, implement and
manage IT solutions for our clients, and our sgwts to grow profitable market share by deliverisggvant IT solutions to our clients on a
scalable support and delivery platform. With thatomal emergence of new technologies in the I'ugid/, we believe businesses continue to
seek technology providers to supply value-addedcade help them identify and deploy complex ITwmns, rather than to just supply
product selection, price and availability. We bedi¢hat Insight has a unique position in the matiefain profitable market share by providing
enhanced value to our clients.

We believe that what differentiates Insight fromr oampetitors is:

Our scalable services and solution offeringe-have well developed services capabilities, inalgidver 1,200 skilled,
certified consulting and service delivery professis, focused on managed, technical and profedsiensdces

Our software expertise — we understand comigtersing requirements and have the know-how tarapé our clients’
usage and compliance management through a portfbBoftware Asset Manageme*“SAM”) services

Our global scale — we have the capabilitieseiwe clients in more than 200 countries and terei$ with software
provisioning and related servict

Our E-Commerce capability — we have customizabént portals, primarily in North America thaloav clients to
streamline procurement and processes through-service online tool, drive standardization and e reconciliation

Our one-stop shopping value proposition — weehemulti-partner approach and have partnershigisall of the leading
product manufacturers, software publishers andilligion partners as well as emerging Cloud teabgywbpartners to servis
our global portfolio of commercial and public seattients with the best integrated IT solutionshatihe products that make
the most sense for their IT environmel

Our operational expertise and effectivenes®-offer a broad offering of hardware and softwaapcts with access to
billions of dollars in virtual inventory and effemnt supply chain execution as well as productlfi&nt and logistics
capabilities, management tools and technical eigee

Our long-term strategy represents a continuati@hrafinement of our 2014 growth initiatives andlimtes three components:

Grow our core business and improve profitabil
Build scalable services business; i

Develop and grow our global Cloud busine

Grow our core business and improve profitabilityVe believe that there is significant opportunity foofitable growth in our core
business as a technology provider of integrateatisols to business and government clients. Oumisald portfolio of manufacturer and
publisher brands, extensive E-commerce and logisapabilities and differentiated service deliveaspabilities allow us to tailor our offerings
based on the size and complexity of our clientaddition, our go-to-market model leverages botitredized and local market sales, technical
and support resources to efficiently serve andsedour clients.

In each of our geographic operating segments, wéoaused on driving our growth objectives by adqginew clients within our pre-
defined target client set, or as we call it, ouV,Aand expanding our relationships with existinigmis by increasing the types of products and
services they buy from us. In North America, we expanding our local market presence in seleasctiy investing in sales, technical and
service delivery resources to drive growth withséirig and new TAM clients, particularly in the largccount client space, as well as to drive
expansion in specific service/solution areas wil gartners. We are also concentrating our effartgrowing our business with mid-sized anc
large clients in select vertical markets, includifggeral government, K-12 education, healthcaresandce provider, and have been investing
in both local market and centralized sales ressuelrive these efforts. In EMEA, we are focusadrnereasing our share in the mid-market
and public sector by increasing software and sélaatware sales across the business. We are atkingy¢o expand our services capabilities
in the region and plan to leverage
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strategic relationships with partners and serviesdry vendors to bring additional software, Cla collaboration solutions to clients
beginning in 2015. Our APAC operating segment, Wisclargely comprised of software sales, is endaggrowing our sales in the mid-
market and public sector and on the developmespe€ialized software services, particularly indheas of software asset management an
Cloud.

We continue to place significant emphasis on pabflity initiatives throughout the Company. We rigly perform client and partner
profitability reviews and intend to expand our mgsis relationships to drive an appropriate lev@rofitability. Additionally, we are
continuing to implement specific action plans tmegliate the negative effects on our gross profiirogram changes implemented by our
largest software partner.

Build scalable services businesgVe are engaged with top IT partners in designingcyring, deploying, implementing and managing
solutions that combine hardware, software and sesvio leverage technology to deliver businesdteesdur solutions can be provided throt
a variety of delivery mechanisms, including on-pismremotely, or through a private, public or hgt€loud. The key areas of focus are:

. Integrated Collaboration — integrating the hddtreed features across Cisco and Microsoft frave employee
productivity;

. Omni-Channel Retail — designing, deploying amhaging store architectures to enable customattjogind store
profitability;

. Hybrid Cloud — designing a public-privatgbrid Cloud roadmap, migrating workloads to a puflloud and implementing
converged infrastructure platform to enable busiragslity;

. Workforce Mobility — providing secure any tirnpésice/device access to information and applicatiorenhance employee
productivity; anc

. Strategic Outsourcin- outsourcing er-user support and network operations to improvermeta IT investment

In North America, we have teams of technology siests and architects who have expertise arountyimgptechnology to solve our
clients’ business challenges in these focus aiideese teams drive best practices within our brosakes organization, support demand
generation activities and provide oversight frora-pales through service delivery. We believe tgatdncentrating on market relevant and
differentiated solutions offerings, we can delivasre profitable, repeatable and scalable servigkesiens.

We also intend to take advantage of the trendsétmgathe technology market, with a specific emjghas Cloud computing and
mobility. We are committed to leveraging opportigstas manufacturers, publishers and service peowidevelop new technologies and as
channels for buying and supplying technology dewelod gain market acceptance.

While Insight’s business was primarily built on thaare and software product sales, which are ktlifbundation of many of our client
relationships, we believe our services capabiliiéferentiate Insight in the marketplace and emeaour profitability. Although our services
capabilities are most mature in North America, neeiavesting to expand our capabilities in EMEA &RIAC around software license
optimization and management, Cloud assessment ardtion and workplace collaboration. In additiare are developing our capabilities ¢
expanding our service partner network in the Unkké@wydom, the Netherlands, Germany, France and @atmdeliver select hardware-related
services to clients in those markets.

Develop and grow our global Cloud busines8loud computing represents an evolution in the bFld Private, public and hybrid Cloud
solutions provide flexible, reliable and affordabtdutions for delivering critical IT functions, cgluas email, data security, data center hosting
and more.

Our global Cloud strategy is a two-pronged approach

. Expand our current Cloud portfolio to includeftdvare as a Service (“SaaS”) and Infrastructura 8grvice (“laaS”)
solutions in the areas of office collaboration, ilih data protection and security and hybrid Glpgontinuing to build out
our portfolio based on clier' needs; an
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. Develop Cloud assessment and migration serwichslp clients determine which workloads showddransitioned from the
traditional IT computing model to Cloud computingdgprovide managed Cloud services to assist cliardperating their
Cloud environment

Offerings

Services OfferingsWe currently offer a suite of consulting, techniaati managed services in the U.S. and the Unitaddém via
Insight teammates, augmented by service partndils gaps in our geographic coverage or capabitiwe also utilize partners to deliver thest
services in Canada and selected services in thefrE&/EA and APAC. We believe that developing breadth and quality of these
capabilities internally or through targeted acgigsis over time will be a key differentiator for.\&/'e have, and intend to continue to develop,
an array of technical expertise and service cajiakito help identify, acquire, implement and mgaéechnology solutions to allow our clients
to improve their business performance. We deliliesé services through three service groups:

Consulting Services
. Assessment, design and implementa

. Office productivity, networking, collaboration addta center practice

Technical Services
. Multi-site deployment, outsourcing and maintene

. Support across a wide range of hardware and sddtpantners from desktops to infrastruct

Managed Services
. An extension of our clie’s team to monitor, manage and resolve is

. Remote Network Operation Cent*RNOC"), integration labs, service desk and National RePainter “NRC”).

Our consulting services help our clients presenpital and increase the value from limited resasitnedelivering business-critical
applications and programs from the Cloud. With lgefront costs and no need for in-house maintenaasea-service” offerings are an
effective alternative to potentially more capitalensive, on-premise solutions. We partner withvjgters to deliver solutions around
collaboration and messaging, managed security atedrdanagement, including Microsoft, Symantec, M@nd IBM. We also help our
clients successfully adopt “as-a-service” offeribggproviding Cloud readiness, migration and manag# services.

Additionally, we help our clients standardize theaftware environments while reducing costs andil risk through optimal license
use and compliance management. We offer clientstéopio of Software Asset Management (“SAM”) sare$, including SAM consultations,
assessment of ISO standard attainment, and licgensaciliations. We help clients determine thaietise rights and utilization rates, reconcile
the difference, and then proactively track, anglgrel manage their software portfolio from procueetrto update to retirement.

Our technical services help clients deliver techgglrefresh across geographically dispersed loggtim some cases thousands of
locations. In addition, we provide Service Levelrdgment (“SLA”) based outsourcing of end user suppetwork operations and
maintenance.

Managed Services include our RNOC, which provides/Zemote management of clients’ infrastructupanging network, server and
storage. Our I1SO certified labs deliver a rangsesfiices from imaging to configuration to remotgtiteg of product in a clierd’IT environmer
via secure Virtual Private Network (“VPN") connamts. The NRC offers repair, remarketing and ovdrniigpt-swap services. We have a
smaller RNOC in the United Kingdom.

Our service teams are made up of industry-, tealhmémd product-certified engineers, consultantshitects and specialists who are
current on best practices and the latest develofsmetheir respective practice areas and referandatectures.

We are a Cisco Gold Certified partner in the Uniitates and the United Kingdom and have Masteifications in unified
communications and security in the United States.data center practice in the United States igwlett-Packard (“HP”) Authorized
Enterprise Provider and holds HP Storage Elite Btele Elite and HP Services Elite partner status.hald Microsoft Gold certifications in
identity and security, portals and collaboratiointualization,
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server platform, systems management, software asseigement and volume licensing and are a Micr@otid Accelerator Partner. We a
have been awarded premier partner status by a muwhbéher partners, such as IBM, EMC and VMware.

Hardware Offerings. We offer our clients in North America and seleatwies in EMEA a comprehensive selection of I Tdveare
products. We offer products from hundreds of mactuf@rs, including such industry leaders as Cibi#®, Lenovo, Dell, EMC, NetApp, Apple
and IBM. Our scale and purchasing power, combinitl @ur efficient, high-volume and cost effectivieedt sales and marketing model, allow
us to offer competitive prices. We believe thatdfig choices from multiple partners enables Usetter serve our clients by providing a
variety of product solutions to address their sfiebusiness needs. These needs may be basedtmulparclient preferences or other criteria,
such as real-time best pricing and availabilitycompatibility with existing technology.

The four hardware technology categories we hawtiiited as key to our solutions selling focus are:
. Desktop, notebook and tab
. Networking
. Server and powe

. Storage

In addition to our distribution facilities, we haldirect-ship” programs with many of our partndargluding manufacturers and
distributors, allowing us to expand our produceafigs without increasing inventory, handling casténventory risk exposure. As a result, we
are able to provide a product offering with billgoaf dollars of products in virtual inventory. Camience and product options among multiple
brands are key competitive advantages against raatwérs’ direct selling programs, which are gelhetiaited to their own brands and may
not offer clients a complete or best-in-class sotuacross all product categories.

Software Offerings Our clients acquire software applications fromruthe form of licensing agreements with softwaoblishers, boxe
products, or through SaaS, whereby clients substoilsoftware that is hosted either by the softvpatdisher or a dedicated thiphrty hosting
company. We offer products from hundreds of pulelishincluding such industry leaders as Microsddipbe, VMware, Symantec, McAfee
and Citrix, as well as newer entrants, such as@uk8x8. Today, the majority of our clients obttdiair software applications through licens
agreements, which we believe is a result of theeieeof administration and cost-effectiveness. lso@nagreements, or right-to-copy
agreements, allow a client to either purchaseem$ie for each of its users in a single transactiggeriodically report its software usage, pay
a license fee based on the number of users.

As software publishers choose different modelsrfgalementing licensing agreements, businesses evastiate the alternatives to ens
that they select the appropriate agreements anglgasith the publishers’ licensing terms when pwsimg and managing their software
licenses. We provide assessment services to helglients better understand their software needspate their existing software and provide
options to optimize their assets.

The four software and licensing technology categgowe have identified as key to our solutionssglfocus are:
. Office productivity
. Virtualization
. Creativity

. Data protectior

Our Information Technology Systems

We have committed significant resources to theyi§teams we own and use to manage our business dadebthat our success is
dependent upon our ability to provide prompt arfitieht service to our clients based on the acgyrgaality and utilization of the information
generated by our IT systems. Because these sysfégosour ability to manage our sales, client Eervpartner relationships and programs,
distribution, inventories and accounting systent @ur voice and data networks, we have built rednng into certain systems, maintain
system outage policies and procedures and haverebesive data backup. We are focused on drivipgarements in sales productivity
through upgraded IT systems to support higher $eoktlient satisfaction and new client acquisitiaa well as garnering efficiencies in our
business.
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We operate under a single, standardized IT systeass North America and APAC and a separate, siigsystem platform in all
countries in our EMEA operations.

For a discussion of risks associated with our I3tays, see “Risk Factors — Disruptions in our I3tems and voice and data networks
could affect our ability to service our clients asalise us to incur additional expenses,” in Pdtem 1A of this report.

Competition

The IT hardware, software and services industiery fragmented and highly competitive. We compéta a large number and wide
variety of marketers and resellers of IT hardwaoftware and services, including:

. Direct marketers and resellers, such as CDWt{Namerica), Systemax (Europe), Softchoice, CorapaPC Connection,
PCM, World Wide Technology, SHI, SoftwareONE, Cortgmenter, Specialist Computercenters, Bechtle aamt@n;

. National and regional resellers, including vi-added resellers, specialty retailers, aggregatistjbutors, and to a lesser
extent, national computer retailers, computer sstpegs, Internet-only computer providers, consuatestronics and office
supply superstores and mass merchandi

. Product manufacturers, such as Dell, HP, IBM andolve;

. Software publishers, such as IBM, Microsoft and Sgtac;

. Systems integrators, such as Compucom Systems

. National and global service providers, such as IBMbal Services and HP Enterprise Services;

. E-tailers, such as Newegg, Buy.com a-Buyer (United Kingdom)

The competitive landscape in the industry is cargily changing as various competitors expand threiduct and service offerings. In
addition, emerging models such as Cloud computiagieeating new competitors and opportunities isgaging, infrastructure, security,
collaboration and other services offerings, andyiéls other areas, we both resell and compete radth many of these offerings.

For a discussion of risks associated with the astiaf our competitors, see “Risk Factors — Thedfdivare, software and services
industry is intensely competitive, and actions of competitors, including manufacturers and pulelistof products we sell, can negatively
affect our business,” in Part [, Item 1A of thipoet.

Partners

During 2014, we purchased products and softwaira ipproximately 3,600 partners. Approximately 63fasged on dollar volume) of
these purchases were directly from manufactureseftware publishers, with the balance purchasemltih distributors. Purchases from
Microsoft and Ingram Micro (a distributor) accoufier approximately 25% and 11%, respectively, wf aggregate purchases in 2014. No
other partner accounted for more than 10% of puehin 2014. Our top five partners as a group @dd2vere Microsoft, Ingram Micro, HP,
Cisco and Tech Data (a distributor), and approxahyei3% of our total purchases during 2014 camenfileis group of partners. Although
brand names and individual products are impor@out business, we believe that competitive soustesipply are available in substantially
all of our product categories such that, with tkeeption of Microsoft, we are not dependent on single partner for sourcing products.

During 2014, sales of Microsoft, HP and Cisco pidwaiccounted for approximately 31%, 14% and 1@¥pectively, of our
consolidated net sales. No other manufacturer'dyms accounted for more than 10% of our consdlaet sales in 2014. Sales of product
from our top five manufacturers/publishers as aigr@Microsoft, HP, Cisco, Lenovo and Dell) accouhter approximately 67% of Insight's
consolidated net sales during 2014.

We obtain incentives from certain product manufeers software publishers and distribution partf@sed typically upon the volume of
sales or purchases of their products and sendicegher cases, such incentives may be in the fifrparticipation in our partner programs,
which may require specific services or activitighwvour clients, discounts, marketing funds, pgcetection or rebates. Manufacturers and
publishers may also provide mailing lists, contactteads to us. We believe that these incentioepdrtner funding) and other marketing
assistance allow us to increase our marketing raadtstrengthen our relationships with leading rfesturers and publishers. This funding is
important to us, and any elimination or substamgdlction would increase our costs of goods soldarketing expenses, resulting in a
corresponding decrease in our earnings from opersti



Table of Contents

INSIGHT ENTERPRISES, INC.

We are focused on understanding our partners’ tb@gscand developing plans and programs to grownautual businesses. We measure
partner satisfaction regularly and hold quartetgibess reviews with our largest partners to rexdasiness results from the prior quarter,
discuss plans for the future and obtain feedbadklitfonally, we host annual partner conferenceldanth America, EMEA and APAC to
articulate our plans for the upcoming year.

As we move into new service areas, we may becoree more reliant on certain partner relationshijps.a&discussion of risks associatec
with our reliance on partners, see “Risk Factovge-rely on our partners for product availabilitydaaompetitive products to sell, and we also
compete with many of our partners” and “— We ratyowr partners for marketing funds and purchasiegritives,” in Part I, Iltem 1A of this
report.

Teammates

As of December 31, 2014, we employed 5,406 teamspafavhom 2,965 were engaged in management, supg@uices and
administration activities (including over 1,2001kd, certified consulting and service delivery f@ssionals), 2,324 were engaged in sales
related activities, and 117 were engaged in distidn activities. Our teammates in the U.S. areraptesented by a labor union, and our
workforces in certain foreign countries, such asn@ay, have worker representative committees okwouncils with which we maintain
strong relationships. We believe our relations withployees are good, and we have never experientdubr related work stoppage.

For a discussion of risks associated with our dderoe on certain personnel, including sales peedpsee “Risk Factors — We depend
on certain personnel,” in Part I, Item 1A of théport.

Seasonality
We experience some seasonal trends in our sal@&shaffdware, software and services. For example:
. software sales are typically seasonally higheninsecond and fourth quarters, particularly the@sdauarter

. business clients, particularly larger enteghssinesses in the U.S., tend to spend more ifoatth quarter as they utilize
their remaining capital budget authorizations, Esg in the first quarte

. sales to the federal government in the U.S. aendftronger in our third quarter, while sales m state and local governm
and education markets are stronger in our secoadeyyanc

. sales to public sector clients in the United Kingdare often stronger in our first quart

These trends create overall seasonality in ouratimfaged results such that sales and profitabélity expected to be higher in the second
and fourth quarters of the year. For a discussfarsks associated with seasonality see “Risk FactdOur net sales and gross profit have
historically varied, making our future operatinguts less predictable,” in Part I, Iltem 1A of tréport.

Backlog

The majority of our backlog historically has bee @ontinues to be open cancelable purchase oidlerslo not believe that backlog as
of any particular date is predictive of future iésu

Intellectual Property

We do not maintain a traditional research and agraknt group, but we do develop and seek to prateatge of intellectual property,
including trademarks, service marks, copyrightsndm name rights, trade dress, trade secrets amldsintellectual property, relying for such
protection on applicable statutes and common Ightsi trade-secret protection and confidentialitgt hcense agreements, as applicable, with
teammates, clients, partners and others to protedntellectual property rights. Our principaldeamark is a registered mark, and we also
license certain of our proprietary intellectual peay rights to third parties. We have registeredimber of domain names, applied for
registration of other marks in the U.S. and in sielleternational jurisdictions, and, from time tme, filed patent applications. We believe our
trademarks and service marks, in particular, haymficant value, and we continue to invest in fliemotion of our trademarks and service
marks and in our protection of them.
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Available Information

Our annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reportd=orm 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and amesrdato such reports filed
pursuant to Sections 13(a) and 15(d) of the Seéesifiixchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchawtg, and the reports of beneficial
ownership filed pursuant to Section 16(a) of theltange Act are available free of charge on our sitebat www.insight.com, as soon as
reasonably practicable after we electronically tilem with, or furnish them to, the Securities &xdhange Commission. The information
contained on our web site is not included as aqfadr incorporated by reference into, this AnnRabort on Form 10-K.

ltem 1A. Risk Factors

We rely on our partners for product availability @hcompetitive products to sell, and we also compégth many of our partners.We
acquire products for resale both directly from nfanturers and publishers and indirectly throughridistors, and the loss of a significant
partner relationship could cause a disruption endtailability of products to us. Many of our maaetiirer and publisher partners are also our
competitors, as many sell directly to businessausts, particularly larger corporate customersré&loan be no assurance that, as
manufacturers and publishers continue to sell botbugh the reseller channel and directly to eratsjghey will not limit or curtail the
availability of their product to resellers like us.addition, the manner in which publishers disite software is changing, and many publisher
now offer their programs as Cloud, hosted or Sa#iBiens. These changes in distribution may intgmsdmpetition and increase the volumt
software made available directly to end users tifindhese competitive programs. Any significant @ase in such sales could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condiiod results of operations.

We rely on our partners for marketing funds and pehrasing incentives Certain manufacturers, publishers and distribypooside us
with substantial incentives in the form of rebataessketing funds, purchasing incentives, early paynadiscounts, referral fees and price
protections (collectively, “partner funding”). Paetr funding is used to offset, among other thiimggentory costs, costs of goods sold,
marketing costs and other operating expenses.i@eftthese funds are based on our volume of salpsirchases, growth rate of net sales or
purchases and marketing programs. If we do not theggoals of these programs or if we are not mp@nce with the terms of these
programs, there could be a material negative effie¢dhe amount of incentives offered or paid tdoysnanufacturers and publishers. We
continue to experience adverse program changesyarahticipate that in the future the incentivest thany partners make available to us may
either be reduced or that the requirements foriegthe available amounts will change. If we arahla to react timely to any fundamental
changes in the partner funding programs of publgsbe manufacturers, including the eliminationafsignificant reductions in, funding for
some of the activities for which we have been camp#ed in the past, particularly related to inaenfirograms with our largest partners,
Microsoft, HP and Cisco, the changes could havatenal adverse effect on our business, finan@abtion and results of operations. There
can be no assurance that we will continue to recgixch incentives.

Changes in the IT industry and/or rapid changestiachnology may reduce demand for the IT hardwarefteare and services we sell
or change who makes purchasing decisions for IT Harare, software and service©ur results of operations are influenced by aefamf
factors, including the condition of the IT industshifts in demand for, or availability of, IT havdre, software, peripherals and services, and
industry innovation and the introduction of newdlwots. The IT industry is characterized by rapahtwlogical change and the frequent
introduction of new products and changing deliveimannels and models, which can decrease demawdri@nt products and services and car
disrupt purchasing patterns. If we fail to reachitimely manner to such changes, we may experiemes sales and, with respect to hardware
we may have to record write-downs of obsolete itmgn In addition, in order to satisfy client dendaprotect ourselves against product
shortages, obtain greater purchasing discountsesad to changes in original equipment manufacsuterms and conditions, we may decid
carry inventory products that may have limited oraturn privileges. There can be no assurancentbavill be able to avoid losses related to
inventory obsolescence on these products. Addifgnfpurchasing power within our clients shiftem centralized procurement functions to
business units or individual end users and we aable to react timely to any such changes, thefis ghpurchasing power could have a
material adverse effect on our business, finarmgabitions and results of operations.

The Cloud and “as-a-service” models are disruptiiegl T market and introducing new products, sewvimed competitors to the
market. In many cases, these new distribution nsoalédw enterprises to obtain the benefits of coneia#ly licensed, internally operated
software with less complexity and lower initial -sgt, operational and licensing costs, increasingpetition for us. There can be no assurance
that we will be able to adapt to, or compete effety with, current or future distribution channelscompetitors or that the competitive
pressures we face will not have a material adveffeet on our business, financial condition andiltssof operations.
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The IT hardware, software and services industryingensely competitive, and actions of our competitancluding manufacturers and
publishers of products we sell, can negatively atfeur business.Competition in the industry is based on price, pigichvailability, speed of
delivery, credit availability, quality and breadthproduct lines, and, increasingly, on the abildyprovide services and tailor specific solutions
to client needs. In addition to the manufactures publishers of products we sell, we compete withrge number and wide variety of
providers and resellers of IT hardware, softwar services. We believe our industry will see furtbensolidation as product resellers and
direct marketers combine operations or acquire engewith other resellers, service providers anglclimarketers to increase efficiency,
service capabilities and market share. Moreovereatiand potential competitors have establishedayr establish cooperative relationships
among themselves or with third parties to enhahek product and service offerings. Accordinglyisipossible that new competitors or
alliances among competitors may emerge and acsjiginficant market share. Generally, pricing isyvaggressive in the industry, and we
expect pricing pressures to continue. There camlessurance that we will be able to negotiateepras favorable as those negotiated by our
competitors or that we will be able to offset tlifeets of price reductions with an increase innlienber of clients, higher net sales, cost
reductions, greater sales of services, which giedjly at higher gross margins, or otherwise. €rieductions by our competitors that we eithe
cannot or choose not to match could result in asien of our market share and/or reduced salds the extent we match such reductions,
could result in reduced operating margins or inggnimpairment charges, any of which could haveatemal adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and results of operations.

Certain of our competitors in each of our operaiagments have greater financial, technical, miadketind other resources than we
do. In addition, some of these competitors mayte t respond more quickly to new or changing opputies, technologies and client
requirements. Many current and potential competigdso have greater name recognition and engagerie extensive promotional activities,
offer more attractive terms to their customers adopt more aggressive pricing policies than weAdiditionally, some of our competitors he
higher margins and/or lower operating cost striggyallowing them to price more aggressively. Tloarebe no assurance that we will be able
to compete effectively with current or future corifoes or that the competitive pressures we fadenet have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and results of openat

The failure to comply with the terms and conditio$ our commercial and public sector contracts cdulesult in, among other things,
damages, fines or other liabilitiesSales to commercial clients are based on statelamual terms, the terms and conditions on oursite or
terms contained in purchase orders on a transagyidransaction basis. Sales to public sector tdiare derived from sales to federal, state an
local governmental departments and agencies, das/& educational institutions, through open raadales and various contracts and
programs. Noncompliance with contract terms, paldidy to highly regulated public sector clientswith government procurement regulati
could result in fines or penalties against us onibeation of contracts, and, in the public sectmyld also result in civil, criminal, and
administrative liability. With respect to our pubBector clients, the government’s remedies maydecsuspension or debarment. In addition,
almost all of our contracts have default provisjarsd substantially all of our contracts in the lpugector are terminable at any time for
convenience of the contracting agency. The effeang of these possible actions or the adoptionesf or modified procurement regulation:
practices could materially adversely affect ouribess, financial position and results of operations

Disruptions in our IT systems and voice and datatwerks could affect our ability to service our chies and cause us to incur
additional expensesWe believe that our success to date has beerfuaure results of operations will be, dependeriaiige part upon our
ability to provide prompt and efficient servicedor clients. Our ability to provide that level @&frsice is largely dependent on the ease of use,
accuracy, quality and utilization of our IT systemich affects our ability to manage our salentiservice, distribution, inventories and
accounting systems, and the reliability of our ecémd data networks and managed services offeiingsg 2013 and 2014, we completed a
comprehensive integration and conversion of ousyi§tems. There can be no assurance that theseaitndagand conversion projects will yield
the anticipated efficiency benefits. If currenthtrology is determined to have a shorter usefuldiféhe value of the current system is impairec
we could incur additional depreciation expense @niddpairment charges. A substantial interruptiour IT systems or in our voice and data
networks, however caused, could occur and coulé bawaterial adverse effect on our business, finhoondition and results of operations.
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Breaches in the security of our electronic and ottmonfidential information could materially adverdg affect our financial condition
and results of operationd/Ve are dependent upon automated information teogggirocesses. Privacy, security, and complianoceams
have continued to increase as technology has edtdvEacilitate commerce and as cross-border cormeniecreases. As part of our normal
business activities, we collect and store certaifidential information, including information abi@ammates and information about partners
and clients which may be entitled to protectionema number of regulatory regimes. In the courseoofnal and customary business practice,
we may share some of this information with vendeine assist us with certain aspects of our busirMdeseover, the success of our operations
depends upon the secure transmission of confidemtéhpersonal data over public networks, includhmgyuse of cashless payments. Any
failure on the part of us or our vendors to maimtaie security of data we are required to proiactuding via the penetration of our network
security and the misappropriation of confidentiad @ersonal information, could result in busingssughtion, damage to our reputation,
financial obligations to third parties, fines, pkigs, regulatory proceedings and private litigatimith potentially large costs, and also result in
deterioration in our teammates’, partners’ andntfieconfidence in us and other competitive disadges, and thus could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condiiod results of operations. In 2014, we were stilbjeinformation security attacks with
increasing frequency at year-end. Although we dadbetieve the attacks resulted in the misappropratf sensitive data, we have been, and
expect to continue to be, subject to electronia ddtacks and threats.

General economic conditions, including unfavorabé&Eonomic conditions in a particular region, businesr industry sector, may lead
our clients to delay or forgo investments in IT hdware, software and service®Veak economic conditions generally or any broaskda
reduction in IT spending adversely affects our bess, operating results and financial conditioprélonged slowdown in the global economy
or similar crisis, or in a particular region or mess or industry sector, or tightening of credérkets, could cause our clients to have difficulty
accessing capital and credit sources, delay canabpayments, or delay or forgo decisions to uggrar add to their existing IT environments,
license new software or purchase products or ss\(jearticularly with respect to discretionary sieg for hardware, software and
services). Such events could have a material aghedfsct on our business, financial condition aeglilts of operations.

Economic or industry downturns could result in lengayment cycles, increased collection costs afaludts in excess of our
expectations. A significant deterioration in ouilioto collect on accounts receivable could alspact the cost or availability of financing
under our accounts receivable securitization pmgra

We rely on independent shipping companies for detiyof products and are subject to price increaseservice interruptions from
these carriersWe generally ship hardware products to our custerhgi~edEx, United Parcel Service and other comialadelivery services
and invoice customers for delivery charges. If weeunable to pass on to our clients future incre@séhe cost of commercial delivery servi
our profitability could be adversely affected. Atiloially, strikes, inclement weather, natural disesor other service interruptions by such
shippers could adversely affect our ability to detiproducts on a timely basis. Such events coale la material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and results of openat

We depend on certain personnelVe rely on key management teammates to executstiaiegy to grow profitable market share. The
loss of one or more of these leaders, or a fatluatract and retain new executives, could haveterial adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and results of operations. i delieve that our future success will be largidpendent on our ability to attract and retair
highly qualified management, sales, service anknieal teammates, and we make significant investsi@arthe training of our sales account
executives and services engineers. If we are riettalvetain such personnel or to train them qyielough to meet changing market
conditions, we could experience a drop in the digtality and efficiency of our sales and servitesmmates, and that could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condiiod results of operations.

Our net sales and gross profit have historicallyriead, making our future operating results less piiethble.Our operating results are
highly dependent upon our level of gross profiaaeercentage of net sales, which fluctuates dueneerous factors, including changes in
prices from partners, changes in the amount andgimf partner funding, volumes of purchases, clarig client mix, management of our ¢
conversion cycle, the relative mix of products ardvices sold during the period, general competitionditions, and strategic product and
services pricing and purchasing actions. As a tesugignificant price competition, our gross magare low, and we expect them to continue
to be low in the future. Increased competitioniagdrom industry consolidation and low demanddertain IT products and services may
hinder our ability to maintain or improve our grasargins. These low gross margins magnify the impac
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of variations in revenue and operating costs oroperating results. In addition, our expense leaedsbased, in part, on anticipated net sales
and the anticipated amount and timing of partnadiing, and a portion of our operating expensesléively fixed. Therefore, we may not be
able to reduce spending quickly enough to comperfsaany unexpected net sales shortfall, and wemabe able to reduce our operating
expenses as a percentage of revenue to mitigatighgr reductions in gross margins in the futlireve cannot proportionately decrease our
cost structure, our business, financial conditiod gesults of operations could suffer.

In addition, a reduction in the amount of credarged to us by our partners could increase our fareahd cost of working capital and
have a material adverse effect on our businesadial condition and results of operations.

There are risks associated with our internationgberations that are different than the risks assotgd with our operations in the
United States, and our exposure to the risks oflabgl market could hinder our ability to maintainrad expand international operationsWe
have operation centers in Australia, Canada, FraBeanany, the U.S., and the United Kingdom, a3 asbales offices throughout EMEA ¢
APAC. In the regions in which we do not currenthvk a physical presence, we serve our clients gfwstrategic relationships. In
implementing our international strategy, we mayefharriers to entry and competition from local camips and other companies that already
have established global businesses, as well assiteegenerally associated with conducting busiimssnationally. The success and
profitability of international operations are sutijéo numerous risks and uncertainties, many ottvare outside of our control, such as:

. political or economic instability

. changes in governmental regulation or taxatiorneffpr and domestic

. currency exchange fluctuatior

. changes in import/export laws, regulations andarastand duties (foreign and domest
. trade restrictions (foreign and domest

. difficulties and costs of staffing and managingragiens in certain foreign countrie

. work stoppages or other changes in labor conditi

. taxes and other restrictions on repatriating forgigpfits back to the U.S

. extended payment terms; a

. seasonal reductions in business activity in sonnes pd the world

In addition, changes in policies and/or laws ofth&. or foreign governments resulting in, amorgeothanges, higher taxation, tariff:
similar protectionist laws, currency conversionitations or the nationalization of private entesps could reduce the anticipated benefits of
international operations and could have a matadaérse effect on our business, financial conditiod results of operations.

We have currency exposure arising from both saldspairchases denominated in foreign currenciefjdimg intercompany transactions
outside the U.S., and we currently conduct limiedging activities. In addition, some currenciessurbject to limitations on conversion into
other currencies, which can limit the ability tdvetwise react to rapid foreign currency devaluaidie cannot predict with precision the ef
of future exchange-rate fluctuations, and signiftaate fluctuations could have a material adveffect on our business, financial condition
and results of operations.

International operations also expose us to curréiocyuations as we translate the financial statemnef our foreign operations to U.S.
dollars.

Changes in, interpretations of, or enforcement t@related to, tax rules and regulations may adwdysaffect our effective income te
rates or operating margins and we may be requirechly additional tax assessmentd/e conduct business globally and file income tax
returns in various U.S. and foreign tax jurisdinBoOur effective tax rate could be adversely &fi@by various factors, many of which are
outside of our control, including:

. changes in p-tax income in various jurisdictions in which we ogte that have differing statutory tax rat
. higher corporate tax rates and the availabilitdeductions or credits in the U.S. and elsewt

. changes in tax laws, regulations, and/or interpimta of such tax laws in multiple jurisdictior

. tax effects related to purchase accounting for sgepns; anc

. resolutions of issues arising from tax examinatiang any related interest or penalt
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The determination of our worldwide provision focome taxes and other tax liabilities requires egtiiom, judgment and complex
calculations in situations where the ultimate tatiedmination may not be certain. Our determinatibtax liabilities is always subject to review
or examination by tax authorities in various juitsibns. Any adverse outcome of such review or ération could have a material adverse
effect on our financial condition and results oéotions

We may not be able to protect our intellectual pesty adequately, and we may be subject to intellatproperty infringement claims.
To protect our intellectual property, we rely apgright, trademark and trade secret laws, unpatigpitoprietary know-how, and patents, as
well as confidentiality, invention assignment, repiicitation and non-competition agreements. Tloarebe no assurance that these measure:
will afford us sufficient protection of our intetieual property, and it is possible that third pegtimay copy or otherwise obtain and use our
proprietary information without authorization ohetwise infringe on our intellectual property righThe disclosure of our trade secrets could
impair our competitive position and could have derial adverse effect on our business, financiab@on and results of operations.

In addition, our registered trademarks and tradeesaare subject to challenge by third parties. fiag affect our ability to continue
using those marks and names. Likewise, many busgseme actively investing in, developing and seefgrotection for intellectual property in
the areas of search, indexing, e-commerce and Weérrelated technologies, as well as a varietymefine business models and methods, all
of which are in addition to traditional researcl alevelopment efforts for IT products and applmatoftware, and non-practicing entities
continue to invest in acquiring patent portfolios the purpose of turning the portfolios into in@generating assets, whether through
licensing campaigns or litigation. As a resultpdites regarding the ownership of and the rightsethese technologies are likely to arise in th
future, and, from time to time, parties do assartous infringement claims against us, either bseanf our practices or because we resell
allegedly infringing hardware or software, in tloeri of cease-and-desist letters, licensing ingstil@wsuits and other communications and
demands. If there is a determination that we hafrnged the proprietary rights of others, we coulcur substantial monetary liability, be
forced to stop selling infringing products or pmbivig infringing services, be required to enter iotstly royalty or licensing agreements, if
available, or be prevented from using the rightsictv could force us to change our business practcdardware, software or services
offerings in the future. Additionally, as we incseathe types of services provided under the Indigdntd, there is a greater likelihood that we
will encounter challenges to our trade names, tretks and service marks. We may not be able t@ouisprincipal mark without modification
in all geographies for all of our offerings, anédke challenges may come from either governmenéadces or other market participants. These
types of claims could have a material adverse effeour business, financial condition and resoifitgperations.

ltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Commen

Not applicable.
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ltem 2.  Properties

Our principal executive offices are located in Tem@rizona. We believe that our facilities will baitable and adequate for our present
purposes, and we anticipate that we will be ablextend our existing leases on terms satisfactonstor, if necessary, to locate substitute
facilities on acceptable terms. At December 31420d owned or leased a total of approximatelyndilBon square feet of office and
warehouse space, and, while approximately 70%eoftjuare footage is in the United States, we owease office and warehouse facilities in
11 countries in EMEA and we lease office facilitiedive countries in APAC.

Information about significant sales, distributieeyvices and administration facilities in use aBetember 31, 2014 is summarized in the
following table:

OEerating Segmen Location Primarx Activities Own or Lease
Headquarters/North Tempe, Arizona, USA Executive Offices, Sales and Own
America Administration and Network
Operations Cente
Tempe, Arizona, US/ Client Support Cente Own
Addison, lllinois, USA Sales and Administratic Lease
Hanover Park, Illinois, USA Services, Distribution and
Administration Lease
Plano, Texas, US, Sales and Administratic Lease
Austin, Texas, US/ Sales and Administratic Lease
Liberty Lake, Washington, US, Sales and Administratic Lease
Tampa, Florida, US/ Sales and Administratic Lease
Winnipeg, Manitoba, Canac Sales and Administratic Lease
Montreal, Quebec, Cana Sales and Administratic Own
Montreal, Quebec, Cana Distribution Lease
EMEA Sheffield, United Kingdon Sales and Administratic Own
Sheffield, United Kingdon Distribution Lease
Uxbridge, United Kingdon Sales and Administratic Lease
Garching, German Sales and Administratic Lease
Frankfurt, German Sales and Administratic Lease
Frankfurt, German Distribution Lease
Vélizy, France Sales and Administratic Lease
APAC Sydney, New South Wales, Austrz Sales and Administratic Lease

In addition to those listed above, we have leastgboffices in various cities across North Amerle®IEA and APAC. These properties
are not included in the table above. Substantallpf our owned properties secure our senior naaglcredit facility. A portion of the client
support center that we own in Tempe, Arizona inetlith the table above is currently leased to Revanaerly known as Direct Alliance
Corporation, a discontinued operation that was ok third party in 2006. For additional infornuation operating leases, see Note 8 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements in Part Il, 180of this report.

In November 2014, we relocated our sales and adtréive operations that were housed in a progkeywe own in Bloomingdale,
lllinois. The property is classified as a held $ate asset, which is included in other currenttagedghe accompanying consolidated balance
sheet as of December 31, 2014. For additional im&ion on held for sale assets, see Note 11 tG@tmsolidated Financial Statements in Part
I, Item 8 of this report.

Item 3.  Legal Proceeding

For a discussion of legal proceedings, see “Legatétdings” in Note 18 to the Consolidated Findri&fatements in Part II, Item 8 of
this report, which is incorporated by referenceshrer
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ltem 4.  Mine Safety Disclosure

Not applicable.

PART Il

ltem 5.  Market for Registran’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters andusr Purchases of Equity Securitit

Market Information

Our common stock trades under the symbol “NSITToe Nasdaqg Global Select Market. The following ¢adtiows, for the calendar
quarters indicated, the high and low sales priegspare for our common stock as reported on Theel&dépGlobal Select Market.

Common Stock

High Price Low Price

Year 2014
Fourth Quarte $ 26.23 $ 21.9¢
Third Quartel 31.4¢ 22.3¢
Second Quarte 30.7¢ 25.4(
First Quarte 25.1¢ 19.7¢

Year 2012
Fourth Quarte $ 25.0: $ 18.3i
Third Quartel 22.11 18.3¢
Second Quarte 20.41 16.51]
First Quarte 21.2¢ 18.4¢

As of February 13, 2015, we had 39,753,955 shdresromon stock outstanding held by 71 stockholdérgcord. This figure does not
include an estimate of the number of beneficialaod whose shares are held of record by brokenage &nd clearing agencies.

We have never paid a cash dividend on our commawksand we currently do not intend to pay any aigiiends in the foreseeable
future. Our senior revolving credit facility comairestrictions on the payment of cash dividends.
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Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

@)

Total Numbe
of Shares
Perioc Purchase!
October 1, 2014 through October <
2014 —
November 1, 2014 throug
November 30, 201 439,13(
December 1, 2014 through
December 31, 201 428,79
Total 867,92t

On October 30, 2013, we announced that our BoaRirettors had authorized the repurchase of ugp@rsillion of our common stock,
of which approximately $12,574,000 remained avéédbr repurchases of our common stock at Septe@e2014. On October 29, 2014, we
announced that our Board of Directors had authdrike repurchase of up to an additional $25 milbéour common stock. On February 11,

(b)

Average Pric

c
Total Number of Shar

Purchased as Part of
Publicly Announced

Paid per Sha Plans or Progran

$ — —
23.51 439,13(
24.21 428,79

$ 23.8¢ 867,92t

(d)
Approximate Dollar
Value of Shares that M

Yet Be Purchased Und
the Plans or Progran

$ 37,574,00
27,224,00

16,843,00

2015, we announced that our Board of Directorséhatorized the repurchase of an additional $75anilbf our common stock. This

authorization is excluded from the above table.lRepases during the quarter ended December 31, &@l#flected in the table above. There
is no stated expiration date for our current shepeirchase plan. Any share repurchases may be omattie open market, through block trades

through 10b5-1 plans or otherwise. The amount afehpurchased and the timing of the purchased®iflased on working capital

requirements, general business conditions and &htors. We intend to retire the repurchased shaé shares repurchased during the year

ended December 31, 2014 have been retired.
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Stock Price Performance Graph

Set forth below is a graph comparing the percentdgage in the cumulative total stockholder retumrour common stock with the
cumulative total return of the Nasdaq US Benchni&®kndex (Market Index) and the Nasdaq US Benchrtamkputer Hardware TR Index
(Industry Index) for the period starting Januar@10 and ending December 31, 2014. The graph &sstirat $100 was invested on Janua
2010 in our common stock and in each of the twoddgsndices, and that, as to such indices, dividengte reinvested. We have not, since

inception, paid any cash dividends on our commoaokstHistorical stock price performance shown andhaph is not necessarily indicative of

future price performance.

—4—NSIT =i b farkoel Index =it ndustry Index
300
$250
$200
$150
- .M
B30
50 - - : .
Jan. 12010 Dee. 31. 2010 Dec. 31,2011 Dec. 31, 2012 Dec. 31, 2013 Dec. 31. 2014
Jan. 1 Dec.31 Dec.31 Dec.31, Dec.31 Dec.31
2010 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
Insight Enterprises, Inc. Common Stock (NSIT) 100.0¢ 115.2¢ 133.8¢ 152.1( 198.8¢ 226.7:
Nasdaq US Benchmark TR Index (Market Ind 100.0C 117.5% 117.97 137.2¢ 183.2¢ 206.0¢
Nasdaq US Benchmark Computer Hardware TR Indexuéing Index) 100.0¢ 123.5¢ 129.5. 155.2¢ 182.6¢ 247.6(

17



Table of Contents

INSIGHT ENTERPRISES, INC.

ltem 6. Selected Financial Dat:

The following selected consolidated financial dgttauld be read in conjunction with our Consolidaftathncial Statements and the N¢
thereto in Part Il, Item 8 and “Management’s Disgais and Analysis of Financial Condition and ResoftOperationstn Part Il, Item 7 of thi
report. The selected consolidated financial datzgmted below under the captions “Consolidatea®ints of Operations Data” and
“Consolidated Balance Sheet Data” as of and foh @di¢he years in the five-year period ended Deaar, 2014 is derived from our audited
consolidated financial statements. The consolidteshcial statements as of December 31, 2014 848,2and for each of the years in the
three-year period ended December 31, 2014, whieh haen audited by KPMG LLP, our independent reggst public accounting firm, are
included in Part Il, Item 8 of this report.

Years Ended December 31
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
(in thousands, except per share d

Consolidated Statements of Operations Dat(%)

Net sales $5,316,22'  $5,144,34  $5,301,44  $5,287,221 $4,809,93
Costs of goods sol 4,603,82 4,445,46 4,581,76! 4,578,07. 4,163,83
Gross profit 712,40: 698,88° 719,67¢ 709,15 646,09
Operating expense
Selling and administrative expens 576,96 564,91( 565,20t 556,68 519,06!
Severance and restructuring exper 4,43: 12,74( 6,311 5,08¢ 2,95¢
Earnings from operatior 131,00: 121,23 148,15: 147,38 124,07¢
Non-operating (income) expens
Interest incomi (1,062 (1,230 (1,469 (1,68¢) (714
Interest expens 6,01¢ 6,33 6,101 6,927 7,67
Gain on bargain purcha — — (2,029 — —
Net foreign currency exchange loss (gi 327 194 (469) (2,136 522
Other expense, n 1,34; 1,41% 1,33i 1,58¢ 1,41;
Earnings before income tax 124,37. 114,52 144,66¢ 141,68¢ 115,17.
Income tax expens 48,68¢ 43,50: 51,90¢ 41,45¢ 39,68¢
Net earnings $ 7568 $ 71,02 $ 92,760 $ 100,23 $ 75,48
Net earnings per shat
Basic $ 1.8 $ 165 $ 20¢ % 22C % 1.63
Diluted $ 1.8 % 164 $ 207 % 218 % 1.61
Shares used in per share calculatic
Basic 41,06: 43,01: 44,41 45,47 46,21¢
Diluted 41,35¢ 43,28¢ 44,83« 46,02: 46,81:

December 31
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
(in thousands

Consolidated Balance Sheet Dat

Working capital $ 578,94 $ 54285¢ $ 519,42¢ $ 426,51° $ 352,18
Total asset 1,948,12. 1,867,71 2,001,50: 1,857,61. 1,803,28:
Short-term debt, including capital leases and diinancing

obligations(® 76€ 217 60z 1,015 997
Long-term debt, including capital leases and ofimancing

obligations(® 62,53¢ 66,94¢ 80,00( 115,60: 91,61¢
Stockholder equity 721,23: 716,91¢ 705,29: 596,83: 544,97

Cash dividends declared per common sl — — — — _

(M Our consolidated statements of operations dataeaimcludes results of the acquisitions from tldeires of acquisition: Inmac from
February 1, 2012 and Ensynch from October 1, 2

(@ Excludes obligations of $122.8 million, $115.3lioin, $116.8 million, $93.9 million and $135.1 tidin for the year ended December 31,
2014, 2013, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively, uogieinventory financing facility. We do not incla these obligations in total debt
because we have not in the past incurred, anckifutiire do not expect to incur, any interest egpamder this facility. These amounts
are classified separately as accounts payabledomefinancing facility on our consolidated balarsfeets. See Note 5 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements in Part Il, 180of this report
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Iltem 7.  Managemen's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition drResults of Operation

The following discussion and analysis of our firahcondition and results of our operations shobk&lread in conjunction with the
Consolidated Financial Statements and notes thenefaded in Part I, Item 8 of this report. Ourtaal results could differ materially from
those contained in forward-looking statements dua humber of factors, including those discussetRiak Factors” in Part I, Item 1A and
elsewhere in this report.

Overview

We are a leading worldwide technology providermiégrated solutions to business and governmenmttslia North America; Europe, the
Middle East, Africa (‘EMEA”); and Asia-Pacific (“ARC”). Our offerings in North America and select otiies in EMEA include hardware,
software and services. Our offerings in the remairad our EMEA segment and in APAC are largelywafie and select software-related
services.

Our purpose is to make meaningful connectionstibht businesses run smarter. Our strategy is tw grofitable market share by
providing relevant IT solutions to our clients osaalable support and delivery platform.

Full year 2014 financial and operational highligimsiude:

. We saw top line growth in all three of our businesgments and across all three product categdrlerdware, software a
services

. We experienced a strong recovery in our EMEArafing segment with improved sales execution aodyztivity driving
sales and earnings performance ahead of our exjpestfor the full year, with particularly strongiformance in the United
Kingdom, the Netherlands and Ita

. We executed well, particularly in EMEA, in ngjsiting the negative effects of partner program gkanrealizing a decline in
gross profit from our largest software partnerim lwith our expectations. As a result, we recoggiapproximately $14
million in lower gross profit from this partner cpared to the amount we earned in 2013, primarilyunNorth America
operating segmen

. In North America, we hired approximately 170esaand related teammates to build out our presenoare markets and
expand our technical expertise around data centbsaftware solutions; ar

. We exited the year with a positive growth tcagey for our services sales, which grew at dowlidgt rates in the third and
fourth quarter year over year and increased by @&t gver year for the full yee

On a consolidated basis, for the year ended DeaeBih014, our net sales increased 3% to $5.@milOur resulting gross profit
increased by $13.5 million, or 2%, while gross niadgclined approximately 20 basis points to 13ef%et sales. Selling and administrative
expenses increased $12.1 million, or 2%, in 20Ipared to 2013 due to the costs of our investmierdar sales and services resources and
non-cash charge in North America discussed belanghenly partially offset by lower support salargesd wages expenses in EMEA through
cost control initiatives and previous restructuraggions. We reported earnings from operationsl8fl¥) million in 2014, an increase of 8%
compared to the prior year, which represented 2bfet sales, compared to 2.4% in the prior year. &¥ective tax rate in 2014 was 39.1%
compared to 38.0% in 2013 and 35.9% in 2012. Netiregs and diluted net earnings per share were7dlllion and $1.83, respectively, for
the year ended December 31, 2014. In 2013, we texpaet earnings of $71.0 million and diluted reahéngs per share of $1.64. In 2012, we
reported net earnings of $92.8 million and diluted earnings per share of $2.07.

The results of operations for the year ended Deeerdb, 2014 include the following items:
. severance and restructuring expenses of $4.4 miig.7 million net of tax

. an impairment loss of $4.6 million and acceleratefreciation of $620,000, to reduce the carryinguamh of our owned rei
estate in Bloomingdale, lllinois that is currertigld for sale to its estimated fair value lessstsisell;

. a reduction in costs of goods sold of approxaiya$4.1 million associated with the settlementemovery of previously
disputed sales tax amoun

. a reduction in selling and administrative experisggcognize a $895,000 gain upon our sale of icer¢al estate to a relat
party; anc

. the repurchase of approximately 2.1 million sharfethe Compan’s common stock for $50.4 millio
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The results of operations for the year ended Deee®b, 2013 include the following items:
. severance and restructuring expenses of $12.70mif9.8 million net of tax; an

. the repurchase of approximately 3.0 million sharfethe Compan’s common stock for $57.8 millio

The results of operations for the year ended Deeerdb, 2012 include the following items:
. severance and restructuring expenses of $6.3 miid.3 million net of tax

. a reduction in legal expenses of approximas@y) million associated with the recovery of lefgads incurred in previous
periods;

. an operating gain of $1.2 million on the sale pbatfolio of nor-core service contracts; a

. a non-operating gain on bargain purchase df 8fllion as the fair value of the net assets amgliexceeded the purchase
price paid by the Company for Inmg

Net of tax amounts referenced above were compidied) the statutory tax rate for the taxing jurisidies in the operating segment in
which the related expenses were recorded, adjfstele effects of valuation allowances on net afieg losses in certain jurisdictions.

During 2014, we generated $110.3 million of caslwl from operations, an increase of 45% compar@®18. We repurchased $50.4
million of our common stock and utilized $10.0 riaili to fund capital investments primarily assoddatéth our information technology (“IT”)
systems upgrades. During the year, we made combieteetpayments of $5.5 million under our seniopheng credit facility and our accout
receivable securitization financing facility. Weden the year with $164.5 million of cash and caglivalents and $61.0 million of debt
outstanding under our long-term facilities.

As previously disclosed, our largest software partmade changes to its channel incentive prograymbimg in October 2013. The
changes vary in substance and timing across thisgy& offerings. Some of the changes became effeatittes fourth quarter of 2013, and
remaining changes are effective as client contractewed under their stated terms in 2014 or dredided to renew in 2015. We are execu
well globally against our plans to mitigate the axbe effect of these partner program changes iadft@are category. Results of operations in
2014 are consistent with our expectations reldtivihe anticipated decrease in incentives fromghisner in the full year 2014 compared to
2013. In 2015, we currently expect the adverseceffethese program changes on gross profit irstievare category to be between $5 and
$10 million.

Details about segment results of operations cdoured in Note 22 to the Consolidated Financial Stants in Part Il, Iltem 8 of this
report.

Our discussion and analysis of financial conditioil results of operations is intended to assistérunderstanding of our consolidated
financial statements, the changes in certain l@ystin those consolidated financial statements frean to year and the primary factors that
contributed to those changes, as well as how cettétical accounting estimates affect our constibd financial statements.
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Critical Accounting Estimates

General

Our consolidated financial statements have beepaped in accordance with U.S. generally acceptedwating principles (“GAAP”).
For a summary of significant accounting policie=x dlote 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statemar®art 1l, Item 8 of this report. The
preparation of these consolidated financial statdsequires us to make estimates and assumpliahaffect the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, net sales and expenses. We base tinnagss on historical experience and on variousmdissumptions that we believe to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the resultkioh form the basis for making judgments aboutdfeying values of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sourcesud results, however, may differ from our estiesatMembers of our senior management
have discussed the critical accounting estimatdg@ated disclosures with the Audit Committee of Board of Directors.

We consider the following to be our critical accting estimates used in the preparation of our dietied financial statements:

Sales Recognition

Sales are recognized when title and risk of losspassed to the client, there is persuasive evidehan arrangement for sale, delivery
has occurred and/or services have been renderedalbs price is fixed or determinable and coliddy is reasonably assured. Our standard
sales terms are F.O.B. shipping point or equivakenivhich time title and risk of loss have pastethe client. However, because we either
(i) have a general practice of covering client ésswhile products are in transit despite title egkl of loss contractually transferring at the @
of shipment or (ii) have specifically stated F.OdBstination contractual terms with the clientjwly is not deemed to have occurred until the
point in time when the product is received by thent.

We leverage drop-shipment arrangements with mamyopartners and suppliers to deliver productsutoclients without having to
physically hold the inventory at our warehousesreby increasing efficiency and reducing costs.ré¢egnize revenue for drop-shipment
arrangements on a gross basis when the prodwuetes/ed by the client. We recognize revenue oroaggpasis as the principal in the
transaction because we are the primary obligdnénatrrangement, we assume inventory risk if thelyoebis returned by the client, we set the
price of the product charged to the client, we amsaredit risk for the amounts invoiced, and welndosely with our clients to determine tt
hardware and software specifications.

We make provisions for estimated product returaswe expect to occur under our return policy bagssh historical return rates. Our
manufacturers warrant most of the products we ntaakel it is our policy to request that clientarattheir defective products directly to the
manufacturer for warranty service during the maatir’s warranty period. On selected products,fandelected client service reasons, we
may accept returns directly from the client andhtegher credit the client or ship a replacementipct. We generally offer a limited 15- to 30-
day return policy for unopened products and cergiened products, which are consistent with manuifes’ terms; however, for some
products we may charge restocking fees. Produtisned opened are processed and returned to thefacturer or partner for repair,
replacement or credit to us. Subject to some matwfers’ restrictions, certain products cannotdianned to the manufacturer for warranty
processing. We resell most unopened products redubnus. If we accept a return from a client thatcannot return to the partner, we try to
mitigate our losses by selling to inventory liquma, to end users as “previously sold” or “usediducts, or through other channels.

Revenue is recognized from software sales whentsl@cquire the right to use or copy software utidense, but in no case prior to the
commencement of the term of the initial softwaceitise agreement, provided that all other reveraegrétion criteria have been met (i.e.,
evidence of the arrangement exists, the fee islforedeterminable and collectibility of the fegi®bable).

We sell certain third-party service contracts amfthgare maintenance or subscription products foictviive are not the primary obligor.
These sales do not meet the criteria for gross sat@gnition and, thus, are recorded on a nes sat®gnition basis. As we enter into contract
with third-party service providers or vendors amd dients, we evaluate whether the subsequers séleuch services should be recorded as
gross sales or net sales. We determine whether we
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act as a principal in the transaction and assumeigks and rewards of ownership or if we are synaglting as an agent or broker. Under gross
sales recognition, the selling price is recordesiiles and our cost to the third-party service iplenvor vendor is recorded in costs of goods
sold. Under net sales recognition, the cost tdhhd-party service provider or vendor is recor@sda reduction to sales, resulting in net sales
equal to the gross profit on the transaction, &wedet are no costs of goods sold.

We recognize revenue for sales of services raay the time period over which the service willgrevided if there is no discernible
pattern of recognition of the cost to perform teevice. Billings for such services that are madadmance of the related revenue recognize
recorded as deferred revenue and recognized asuevatably over the billing coverage period. Rexefiom certain arrangements that allow
for the use of a product or service over a periotihte without taking possession of software asmaccounted for ratably over the time perioc
over which the service will be provided.

We recognize revenue for professional servicesgemants that are on a time and materials basisl g hours incurred as the
services are performed and amounts are earned.

Additionally, we sell certain professional servioemtracts on a fixed fee basis. Revenues for ffgedorofessional services contracts are
recognized based on the ratio of costs incurreédtéd estimated costs. Net sales for these secdntracts are not a significant portion of our
consolidated net sales.

In certain arrangements, we may provide a comhmnaif hardware and software products and the pmvisf services. Services that are
performed by us in conjunction with hardware anitieare sales that are completed in our facilitigsmto shipment of the product are
recognized upon delivery, when title passes talieat, for the hardware sale. Net sales of sesvibat are performed at client locations are
primarily service-only contracts and are recordegales when the services are performed. Thedotaideration for an arrangement with
multiple deliverables is allocated to all delivdesbthat represent a separate unit of accountiimg tise relative selling price method.

Partner Funding

We receive payments and credits from partnersydiict consideration pursuant to volume sales imeemrograms, volume purchase
incentive programs and shanedrketing expense programs. Partner funding redgiuesuant to volume sales incentive programscisgeizec
as it is earned as a reduction to costs of godds Bartner funding received pursuant to volumepase incentive programs is allocated as a
reduction to inventories based on the applicalderitives earned from each partner and is recordedsts of goods sold as the related
inventory is sold. Partner funding received pursuarshared marketing expense programs is recaséds earned as a reduction of the rel
selling and administrative expenses in the petiedorogram takes place only if the consideratipnagents a reimbursement of specific,
incremental, identifiable costs. Consideration &hateeds the specific, incremental, identifiablstgds classified as a reduction of costs of
goods sold. Changes in estimates of anticipateigaement levels under individual partner progranay materially affect our results of
operations and our cash flows.

See Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statememart I, Item 8 of this report for further disgsion of our accounting policies rela
to partner funding.

Valuation of Long-Lived Assets Including Purchasedntangible Assets and Goodwill

We review property, plant and equipment and purethdstangible assets for impairment whenever even¢hianges in circumstances
indicate the carrying value of an asset may natbeverable. If such events or changes in circumss&indicate a possible impairment, our
asset impairment review assesses the recoveratiilibe assets based on the estimated undiscofutted cash flows expected to result from
the use of the asset plus net proceeds expectaddigposition of the asset (if any) and comparas\hlue to the carrying value. Such
impairment test is based on the lowest level foictvidentifiable cash flows are largely independgfthe cash flows of other groups of assets
and liabilities. If the carrying value exceeds timgliscounted future cash flows, an impairment issscognized for the difference between fair
value and the carrying amount. This approach usesstimates of future market growth, forecastedsakes and costs, expected periods the
assets will be utilized and appropriate discoutgsa

We perform an annual review of our goodwill in fberth quarter of every year, or more frequentlindicators of potential impairment
exist, to determine if the carrying value of ourarled goodwill is impaired. We continually assebgther any indicators of impairment exist,
and that assessment requires a significant amdyudgment.
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Events or circumstances that could trigger an inmpait review include a significant adverse chamgegal factors or in the business climate,
unanticipated competition, significant changesim manner of our use of the acquired assets attheegy for our overall business, significant
negative industry or economic trends, significagtlohes in our stock price for a sustained periogignificant underperformance relative to
expected historical or projected future cash flawsesults of operations. Any adverse change isetiactors, among others, could have a
significant effect on the recoverability of goodwéihd could have a material effect on our constéiddinancial statements.

The goodwill impairment test is performed at thgarting unit level. A reporting unit is an operatisegment or one level below an
operating segment (referred to as a “componentomponent of an operating segment is a reportiigfithe component constitutes a
business for which discrete financial informatisraivailable and management of the segment regu&uigws the operating results of that
component. When two or more components of an opgraegment have similar economic characteristiescomponents may be aggregated
and deemed a single reporting unit. An operatimggrent shall be deemed to be a reporting unit ibfils components are similar, if none ol
components is a reporting unit, or if the segmemprises only a single component. Insight has theperting units, which are equivalent to
our operating segments.

We may first perform a qualitative assessment terd@ne whether it is more likely than not that fai value of a reporting unit is less
than its carrying value. If it is concluded thastts the case, it is necessary to perform a quadive two-step goodwill impairment test.
Otherwise, the two-step goodwill impairment testdas$ required. In completing a quantitative testdgotential impairment of goodwill, we
first compare the estimated fair value of each répg unit in which the goodwill resides to its boealue, including goodwill. Management
must apply judgment in determining the estimatédviaue of our reporting units. Multiple valuatidechniques can be used to assess the fail
value of the reporting unit, including the markatiancome approaches. All of these techniques decthe use of estimates and assumptions
that are inherently uncertain. Changes in thesmatds and assumptions could materially affectigtermination of fair value or goodwill
impairment, or both. These estimates and assungptiomarily include, but are not limited to, an eqriate control premium in excess of the
market capitalization of the Company, future maxketwth, forecasted sales and costs and appropglisteunt rates. Due to the inherent
uncertainty involved in making these estimatesyaatesults could differ from those estimates. Mgmaent evaluates the merits of each
significant assumption, both individually and iretaggregate, used to determine the fair valueeofghorting units. If the estimated fair value
exceeds book value, goodwill is considered nottintpaired and no additional steps are necessargnsure the reasonableness of the
estimated fair values of our reporting units, wefgren a reconciliation of our total market capitatiion to the estimated fair value of all of our
reporting units.

If the fair value of the reporting unit is lessthigs book value, then we are required to perfdiengecond step of the impairment analysi
by comparing the carrying amount of the goodwilthwits implied fair value. In step two of the argify; we utilize the fair value of the report
unit computed in the first step to perform a hygdital purchase price allocation to the fair vadfithe assets and liabilities of the reporting
unit. The difference between the fair value of téyeorting unit calculated in step one and thevalue of the underlying assets and liabilities o
the reporting unit is the implied fair value of tfeporting unit’s goodwill. Management must alsplggudgment in determining the estimated
fair value of these individual assets and liakdfitand may include independent valuations of ceitéernally generated and unrecognized
intangible assets, such as trademarks. Managensent\aluates the merits of each significant assiampboth individually and in the
aggregate, used to determine the fair values sktivividual assets and liabilities. If the cangy/amount of our goodwill exceeds the implied
fair value of that goodwill, an impairment loss Webe recognized in an amount equal to the excess.

See further information on the carrying value obdwill in Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial 8taents in Part Il, Item 8 of this
report.

Income Taxes

Our effective tax rate includes the effect of dertandistributed foreign earnings for which no Ut&es have been provided because
earnings are planned to be reinvested indefindgatgide the U.S. Earnings remittance amounts arenpld based on the projected cash flow
needs as well as the working capital and long-termastment requirements of our foreign subsidiaasied our domestic operations. Material
changes in our estimates of cash, working capitdllang-term investment requirements could affectedfective tax rate.

We record a valuation allowance to reduce our defetax assets to the amount that is more likedy thot to be realized. We consider
past operating results, future market growth, fasted earnings, historical and projected taxable
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income, the mix of earnings in the jurisdictionsaihich we operate, prudent and feasible tax planstrategies and statutory tax law chang
determining the need for a valuation allowancevdfwere to determine that it is more likely tham that we would not be able to realize all or
part of our net deferred tax assets in the fumeadjustment to the deferred tax assets wouldhéyed to earnings in the period such
determination is made. Likewise, if we later detierthat it is more likely than not that all or paf the net deferred tax assets would be
realized, then all or part of the previously praddvaluation allowance would be reversed.

We establish liabilities for potentially unfavoratdutcomes associated with uncertain tax positiaken on specific tax matters. These
liabilities are based on management’s assessmevtiether a tax benefit is more likely than not éosistained upon examination by tax
authorities. There may be differences betweenitieipated and actual outcomes of these mattetsiihg result in subsequent recognition or
derecognition of a tax position based on all thalable information at the time. If material adjugints are warranted, it could affect our
effective tax rate.

Additional information about the valuation allowa&nand uncertain tax positions can be found in N@té the Consolidated Financial
Statements in Part I, Item 8 of this report.

Contingencies

From time to time, we are subject to potentialmkiand assessments from third parties. We aresalgect to various government
agency, client and vendor audits. We continualeas whether or not such claims have merit andawiaccrual. An accrual is made if it is
both probable that a liability has been incurred #re amount of the loss can be reasonably estiin8tech estimates are subject to change ar
may affect our results of operations and our chshsf. Additional information about contingenciesidze found in Note 18 to the Consolidatec
Financial Statements in Part I, Item 8 of thisarp

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following table sets forth certain financiatalas a percentage of net sales for the years ébeleember 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012:

2014 2013 2012
Net sales 100.%  100.(%  100.(%
Costs of goods sol 86.€ 86.4 86.4
Gross profit 13.4 13.€ 13.€
Operating expense
Selling and administrative expens 10.¢ 11.C 10.7
Severance and restructuring exper 0.1 0.2 0.1
Earnings from operatior 2.t 2.4 2.8
Non-operating expense, n 0.2 0.2 0.1
Earnings before income tax 2.3 2.2 2.7
Income tax expens 0.€ 0.8 1.C
Net earnings 1.4% 1.4% 1.7%

Throughout this “Results of Operations” sectiorildanagement’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€ahdition and Results of
Operations,” we refer to changes in net sales,sgposfit and selling and administrative expensdsSMEA and APAC excluding the effects of
foreign currency movements. In computing these ghamounts and percentages, we compare the cye@namount as translated into U.S.
dollars under the applicable accounting standardlse prior year amount in local currency trangldatgo U.S. dollars utilizing the weighted
average translation rate for the current year.
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2014 Compared to 2013

Net SalesNet sales for the year ended December 31, 201éased 3% to $5.3 billion compared to the year elmismmber 31, 2013.
Our net sales by operating segment for the yeateceBecember 31, 2014 and 2013 were as followsafddh thousands):

2014 2013 % Change
North America $3,562,72! $3,470,76! 3%
EMEA 1,539,96: 1,469,17. 5%
APAC 213,53! 204,41 4%
Consolidatec $5,316,22! $5,144,34 3%

Net sales in North America increased $92.0 millor3% for the year ended December 31, 2014 compartd year ended
December 31, 2013. Net sales of hardware, softetadeservices increased 2%, 4% and 1%, respectiyedy,over year. Hardware sales grew
sequentially in each of the last three quarte20df4, ending the year with strong growth in safesotebooks and desktops and in server sale:
as we helped clients address outdated server tlagynelated to the end of life of Microsoft Windev@erver 2003. Software sales followed
typical seasonal trends during the year with grodvttien from stronger demand for business contynaiitd virtualization solutions. Services
sales improved with additional consulting and techinservices engagements performed during 2014.

Net sales in EMEA increased $70.8 million or 5%Uu$. dollars, for the year ended December 31, 20bdpared to the year ended
December 31, 2013. Excluding the effects of foraigmency movements, net sales increased 3% coohpatbe prior year. Net sales of
hardware and services were up 14% and 7%, respBgtixear over year, while net sales of softwareavilat year over year. Excluding the
effects of foreign currency movements, net saldsaoflware and services increased 9% and 5%, résggctvhile net sales of software were
relatively flat year over year. The increase indwaare sales was due to higher volume with all afalient groups, particularly public sector
and mid-market clients. The increase in net sdisgmwvices was due primarily to new client engagaisiand higher volume with existing
clients.

Net sales in APAC increased $9.1 million or 4%tfg¥ year ended December 31, 2014 compared to Hreepeled December 31, 2013.
Excluding the effects of foreign currency movementt sales increased 10% compared to the priordreato higher volume with mid-market
and public sector clients as well as lower softwaeentenance sales, which are recorded net oexeladsts within the net sales line item of ou
financial statements, during 2014 compared to 2013.

Net sales by category for North America, EMEA arl&C were as follows for the years ended Decembg?@14 and 2013:

North America EMEA APAC
Sales Mi» 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Hardware 61% 61% 37% 34% 6% 3%
Software 33% 33% 61% 64% 91% 94%
Services 6% 6% 2% 2% 3% 3%

10C%  10C% 10C% 10C%  10C%  100%

Gross Profit. Gross profit increased 2% to $712.4 million for yfear ended December 31, 2014 compared to theeyelad
December 31, 2013, with gross margin decreasingpappately 20 basis points to 13.4% of net salas. gposs profit and gross profit as a
percent of net sales by operating segment for éaesyended December 31, 2014 and 2013 were awso(tollars in thousands):

% of Net % of Net
2014 Sales 2013 Sales
North America $477,44° 13.&% $472,18 13.6%
EMEA 199,91¢ 13.(% 191,32 13.(%
APAC 35,04( 16.4% 35,37¢ 17.2%
Consolidatec $712,40: 13.4% $698,88" 13.6%
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North Americas gross profit for the year ended December 31, 2@dréased 1% compared to the year ended Decertb20383, but as
percentage of net sales, gross margin decreasapdrgximately 20 basis points year to year. Thdimkem gross margin was due primarily to
a 38 basis point decrease in margin contributeagency fees from enterprise software agreementgrimarily to partner program changes.
The decrease in margin was partially offset by &ads point increase in sales of higher margivises and a 7 basis point increase in produc
margin, which includes partner funding and freigttte increase in product margin reflects a reduadticcosts of goods sold of approximately
$4.1 million associated with the settlement or vexy of previously disputed sales tax amounts dytfire year ended December 31, 2014.

EMEA'’s gross profit increased 4% in U.S. dollarstlee year ended December 31, 2014 compared tgetireended December 31, 2013.
Excluding the effects of foreign currency movemegtsss profit was up 2% compared to the prior y&ara percentage of net sales, gross
margin remained flat at 13.0% year over year. Arelese in margin resulting from lower fees from gorise software agreements of 14 basis
points due to partner program changes and a decieasftware product margin of 13 basis pointsengartially offset by a 16 basis point
increase in sales of higher margin services. Year gear increases in hardware product margin du2dii4 compared to 2013 were offset by
decreases in vendor funding resulting from softwemdner program changes year to year.

APAC's gross profit decreased 1% for the year eridlecember 31, 2014 compared to the year ended Deredi, 2013. Excluding the
effects of foreign currency movements, gross pinéiteased 3% compared to the prior year. As ago¢age of net sales, gross margin
decreased by approximately 90 basis points, duegpily to an 88 basis point decrease in marginadfriy lower fees from enterprise software
agreements resulting from partner program changes.

Operating Expenses.

Selling and Administrative ExpenseSelling and administrative expenses increased $hilibn, or 2%, for the year ended
December 31, 2014 compared to the year ended Dere3tth2013. Selling and administrative expensesedsed approximately 20 basis
points as a percentage of net sales for the yelmdeDecember 31, 2014 compared to the year endeehiter 31, 2013. Selling and
administrative expenses as a percent of net sglepdrating segment for the years ended Decemhe&034 and 2013 were as follows (dollars
in thousands):

% of Net % of Net
2014 Sales 2013 Sales
North America $372,93¢ 10.5% $362,38( 10.4%
EMEA 178,81t 11.€% 178,01 12.1%
APAC 25,21°¢ 11.8% 24,51¢ 12.(%
Consolidatec $576,96° 10.8% $564,91( 11.(%

North America’s selling and administrative expeniseseased 3%, or $10.6 million, for the year enBedember 31, 2014 compared to
the year ended December 31, 2013, and, as a pageeot net sales, selling and administrative expeimcreased approximately 10 basis p
to 10.5% of net sales for the year ended Decenhbe2@®L4. As discussed in Note 11 to the ConsolilBteancial Statements in Part Il, Item 8
of this report, our results for the year ended Damer 31, 2014 include non-cash charges of $5.2amjlincluding an impairment loss of $4.6
million and accelerated depreciation of $620,00Getluce the carrying amount of our owned reate&teBloomingdale, Illinois that is
currently held for sale to its estimated fair valess costs to sell. Additionally, salaries and @sagnd contract labor increased $4.7 million yez
over year due to planned investments in our salgsnirzation, including the addition of over 160rteaates in North America focused on
services, software, key vertical markets and filkds in core geographic markets and teammateiberpénses increased approximately $3.€
million year over year due to higher healthcardsos2014. These increases in selling and admatigé expenses were partially offset by
reduced spending in other expense categories,aauplofessional services, which declined $2.7 omilduring the year ended December 31,
2014 compared to the year ended December 31, 2013.

EMEA’s selling and administrative expenses incrddsss than 1%, or $804,000, for the year endeciber 31, 2014 compared to the
year ended December 31, 2013, and, as a percesftagésales, selling and administrative expensesedised approximately 50 basis point
11.6% of net sales for the year ended Decembe2(®H. Excluding the effects of foreign currency miments, selling and administrative
expenses decreased 2% compared to the prior yegreiHsariable compensation expense on increasess grofit and investments to support
services and Cloud growth initiatives were moretbtiset by a decrease in support salaries and svage to restructuring actions in prior
periods.
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APAC's selling and administrative expenses incrda&%, or $697,000, for the year ended Decembe2@®14 compared to the year
ended December 31, 2013, and, as a percentage sdlas, selling and administrative expenses deedeapproximately 20 basis points to
11.8% of net sales for the year ended Decembe2(®H. Excluding the effects of foreign currency miments, selling and administrative
expenses increased 9% compared to the prior ybary&ar over year increase is primarily due togases in variable compensation and
expenses resulting from our investments in the Fesystem in the region.

Severance and Restructuring Expens@&siring the year ended December 31, 2014, North AsagEMEA and APAC recorded
severance expense, net of adjustments, totaling,$9a, $3.4 million and $106,000, respectivelyated to a continued review of resource
needs in North America and additional restructudngyvities in EMEA. In North America and EMEA, $lmillion and $3.9 million,
respectively, in new severance costs were offs&®?,000 and $531,000, respectively, of adjustsenprior severance accruals due to
changes in estimates during 2014. During the yede@ December 31, 2013, North America and EMEAnd= severance expense, net of
adjustments, of $3.3 million and $9.4 million, respively. See Note 9 to the Consolidated Finarfsiatements in Part Il, Item 8 of this report
for further discussion of severance and restrunguaictivities.

Non-Operating (Income) Expense.

Interest IncomeInterest income for the years ended December 34 26d 2013 was generated from interest earnedsinand cash
equivalent bank balances. The decrease in interasine year to year is primarily due to lower agerinterest-bearing cash and cash
equivalent balances and lower interest rates earnesdich balances during the year ended Decemb@024.

Interest Expenselnterest expense primarily relates to borrowingdasrour financing facilities and imputed interestar our inventory
financing facility. Interest expense decreased 6fdHe year ended December 31, 2014 compared tgedreended December 31, 2013 due
primarily to lower average daily balances on oustdacilities in the 2014 compared to 2013. Impuitedrest under our inventory financing
facility was $2.4 million for the year ended DecenB1, 2014, compared to $2.5 million for the yeraded December 31, 2013. For a
description of our various financing facilitiesgsdotes 5 and 7 to the Consolidated Financial Simté¢s in Part II, Item 8 of this report.

Net Foreign Currency Exchange Gains/Loss&hese gains/losses result from foreign currenaystations, including foreign currency
derivative contracts and intercompany balancesatehot considered long-term in nature. The chamget foreign currency exchange
gains/losses is due primarily to the underlyingngjes in the applicable exchange rates, mitigatesubyse of foreign exchange forward
contracts to hedge certain non-functional curreagsets and liabilities against changes in excheatgamovements.

Other Expense, NetOther expense, net, consists primarily of bank éss®ciated with our cash management activities.

Income Tax ExpenseOur effective tax rate for the year ended DecemieP014 was 39.1% compared to 38.0% for the yeded
December 31, 2013. The increase in the tax rate #013 to 2014 was primarily due to higher losseseirtain foreign jurisdictions in 2014,
resulting in an increase in the valuation allowafwradeferred tax assets related to these forepgmading losses, and the recognition of certain
tax benefits related to the re-measurement oege¢tht of specific uncertain tax positions durind20which decreased the prior year rate,
offset partially by lower taxes on earnings in fgrejurisdictions. The effective tax rate in 2014sahigher than the federal statutory rate of
35.0% primarily due to these increases in the valnallowances and to state taxes in the U.S. & negeases in our effective tax rate for 2
were offset partially by lower taxes on earning$oireign jurisdictions. See Note 12 to the Consatkd Financial Statements in Part Il, ltem 8
of this report for further discussion of income &xpense.
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2013 Compared to 2012

Net SalesNet sales for the year ended December 31, 201&ased 3% to $5.1 billion compared to the year efimmber 31, 2012.
Our net sales by operating segment for the yeateceBecember 31, 2013 and 2012 were as followsafddh thousands):

2013 2012 % Change
North America $3,470,76! $3,626,35 (4%)
EMEA 1,469,17. 1,463,60 —
APAC 204,41 211,47 (3%)
Consolidatec $5,144,34 $5,301,44. (3%)

Net sales in North America decreased $155.6 miltiod% for the year ended December 31, 2013 cordgarthe year ended
December 31, 2012. Net sales of services increl¥egear over year, while net sales of hardwaresafisvare decreased 5% and 4%,
respectively, year to year. The services growtd0h3 was primarily driven by higher SaaS offerinags Cloud sales. We experienced a de:
in hardware purchases by our large enterprisetsliar2013 as we believe they reduced their budgetsapital expenditure investments and
delayed the timing of capital projects. Softwarkesaeclined in 2013 compared to 2012 due to agnigtix of software maintenance sales to
public sector clients, which are recorded on aasts in our financial statements.

Net sales in EMEA remained relatively flat at $hiltion, in U.S. dollars, for the year ended DecemB1, 2013 compared to the year
ended December 31, 2012. Excluding the effectsrgign currency movements, net sales were downd®pared to 2012. Net sales of
software and services were up 4% and 23%, respdgtivear over year, while net sales of hardwaddinked 7% year to year. Excluding the
effects of foreign currency movements, software serices increased 2% and 22%, respectively, Vvilgitdware decreased 6%, compared to
the year ended December 31, 2012. The declinerdwizae sales was attributable to reduced volumesaaill client groups. The increase in
software sales in 2013 was due to higher volumk laiige enterprise and mid-market clients, whichientban offset lower volume with our
existing public sector clients. The increase insad¢s of services in 2013 was due primarily to okent engagements and higher volume with
existing clients.

Net sales in APAC decreased $7.1 million or 3%tfieryear ended December 31, 2013 compared to #reepeled December 31, 2012.
Excluding the effects of foreign currency movementt sales increased 2% compared to 2012 dughehvolume with new and existing
clients.

Net sales by category for North America, EMEA arfl&C were as follows for the years ended Decembg?@13 and 2012:

North America EMEA APAC
Sales Mi» 2013 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012
Hardware 61% 62% 34% 37% 3% 2%
Software 33% 32% 64% 61% 94% 94%
Services _ 6% 6% 2% 2% 3% 4%

10C%  10C% 10C% 10C%  10C%  100%

Gross Profit. Gross profit decreased 3% to $698.9 million forykar ended December 31, 2013 compared to theeyeizd
December 31, 2012, with gross margin remainingaait3.6% of net sales. Our gross profit and gposét as a percent of net sales by
operating segment for the years ended Decembé&(03B, and 2012 were as follows (dollars in thousands

% of Net % of Net
2013 Sales 2012 Sales
North America $472,18 13.6% $478,52: 13.2%
EMEA 191,32 13.(% 203,84! 13.%%
APAC 35,37¢ 17.2% 37,30¢ 17.€%
Consolidatec $698,88" 13.6% $719,67¢ 13.6%
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North America’s gross profit for the year ended &eber 31, 2013 decreased 1% compared to the ydad &@ecember 31, 2012, but as
a percentage of net sales, gross margin increasaddroximately 40 basis points year over year,mhraarily to an 18 basis points increase in
margin from sales of higher margin services and hdsis point increase in product margin, whicluides partner funding and freight, driven
primarily by strong execution under partner incemfprograms, most notably in the hardware category.

EMEA'’s gross profit decreased 6% in U.S. dollansthe year ended December 31, 2013 compared tgetireended December 31, 2012.
Excluding the effects of foreign currency movemegtsss profit was down 7% in 2013 compared to 2@8&2a percentage of net sales, gross
margin decreased by approximately 90 basis pords 0 year due primarily to an 84 basis pointidedh product margin, which includes
partner funding and freight, primarily driven byethardware category. The decline in hardware mavgmprimarily attributable to a higher
mix of lower margin hardware products and a redurciin partner funding due to decreased volume anth@r program changes during 2013.

APAC's gross profit decreased 5% for the year eridlecember 31, 2013 compared to the year ended Dexed, 2012. Excluding the
effects of foreign currency movements, gross pinéiteased 1% compared to 2012. As a percentagetaiales, gross margin decreased by
approximately 30 basis points, due primarily t®@ab2sis point decrease in margin contributed byagéees from enterprise software
agreements.

Operating Expenses.

Selling and Administrative ExpenseSelling and administrative expenses decreased @296or less than 1%, for the year ended
December 31, 2013 compared to the year ended Dere3thh2012. Selling and administrative expenseeased 30 basis points as a
percentage of net sales for the year ended Dece3ih@013 compared to the year ended Decembel032, Selling and administrative
expenses as a percent of net sales by operatingesedor the years ended December 31, 2013 and®6f€as follows (dollars in thousands):

% of Net % of Net
2013 Sales 2012 Sales
North America $362,38( 10.4% $359,63¢ 9.€%
EMEA 178,01: 12.1% 179,97¢ 12.2%
APAC 24,51¢ 12.(% 25,59: 12.1%
Consolidatec $564,91( 11.(% $565,20¢ 10.7%

North Americas selling and administrative expenses increasedot%2.7 million, for the year ended December 3, 2compared to tl
year ended December 31, 2012, and, as a percesftagésales, selling and administrative expense®ased approximately 50 basis point
10.4% of net sales for the year ended Decembe2@13. Selling and administrative expenses increas2d13 primarily because:

. Salaries and wages and contract labor increagpbximately $4.3 million due to investmentsétes and services
resources; an

. Professional fees increased approximately $2.9anjlidue primarily to the effect on the year oveaycomparison of a pri
year reduction in legal expenses of $2.0 milliosoatated with the recovery during the year endeceBer 31, 2012 «
legal fees incurred in previous periods (see furtligcussion under “Legal Proceedings” in Noted &he Consolidated
Financial Statements in Part II, Item 8 of thisartp

. The year over year comparison was also affeeyeal gain of $1.2 million on the sale of a poitiadf non-core service
contracts during the year ended December 31, :
These increases in selling and administrative esgein 2013 were offset partially by:

. A decrease in variable compensation of appreatéhy $2.8 million and reduced stock-based comp@mwsaf approximately
$1.1 million based on current year financial resudind

. Reduced marketing expenses of approximately $illion as we controlled costs through our coméid focus on
discretionary spendiny
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EMEA'’s selling and administrative expenses decr@d$8é, or $2.0 million, for the year ended Decenffr2013 compared to the year
ended December 31, 2012, and, as a percentage sdlas, selling and administrative expenses deedeapproximately 20 basis points to
12.1% of net sales for the year ended Decembe2@®13. Excluding the effects of foreign currency miments, selling and administrative
expenses decreased 2% in 2013 compared to 2012leEnease in selling and administrative expenspsigrily attributable to a decrease in
salaries and wages and contract labor of approeisn&8.5 million due to restructuring actions takkming the year, as more fully described
below. The year to year decrease in salaries agéswaas offset partially by a $1.3 million incre@sénhe provision for losses on accounts
receivable due to higher write-offs in 2013, nofgbich were individually material.

APAC's selling and administrative expenses decid8é, or $1.1 million, for the year ended Decenfr2013 compared to the year
ended December 31, 2012, and, as a percentage sdlas, selling and administrative expenses deedecapproximately 10 basis points to
12.0% of net sales for the year ended Decembe2(®13. Excluding the effects of foreign currency riments, selling and administrative
expenses increased 1% compared to 2012. The iecire@®13 is primarily due to higher salaries aray@s from investments in headcount,
mostly offset by lower variable compensation bame@013 financial results.

Severance and Restructuring Expens@&airing the year ended December 31, 2013, North Asaemd EMEA recorded severance
expense, net of adjustments, totaling $3.3 mildod $9.4 million, respectively, related to our @omed review of resource needs in North
America and significant restructuring activitiesHMEA in 2013, primarily in the United Kingdom a@kermany, as we worked to rationalize
our selling and administrative expenses in EMEANbrth America and EMEA, $3.4 million and $9.6 naifl, respectively, in new severance
costs were offset by $104,000 and $188,000, relspéctof adjustments to prior severance accruaksth changes in estimates during 2013.
During the year ended December 31, 2012, North Avsaend EMEA recorded severance expense, net ostmagnts, of $2.8 million and $3.5
million, respectively. See Note 9 to the ConsokdifFinancial Statements in Part I, Item 8 of tieigort for further discussion of severance an
restructuring activities.

Non-Operating (Income) Expense.

Interest Income Interest income for the years ended December 313 26d 2012 was generated from interest earnedsinand cash
equivalent bank balances. The decrease in intera®ine year to year is primarily due to lower agerinvested cash balances during the year
ended December 31, 2013.

Interest Expenselnterest expense primarily relates to borrowingdarrour financing facilities, our capital leaseigation and imputed
interest under our inventory financing facilityténest expense increased 4% for the year endedhibere81, 2013 compared to the year ende
December 31, 2012 due primarily to higher imputedrest year to year. Imputed interest under owgritory financing facility was $2.5
million for the year ended December 31, 2013, cargbéo $1.8 million for the year ended December2Bi2. The increase was due to higher
outstanding balances and increases in our avemageniental borrowing rate used to compute the ietbirtterest amounts.

Gain on Bargain PurchaseOur EMEA operating segment reported a non-operagaig on bargain purchase of $2.0 million in 2042,
the fair value of the Inmac net assets we acquiregeded the purchase price.

Net Foreign Currency Exchange Gains/Losséese gains/losses result from foreign currenaysaations, including foreign currency
derivative contracts and intercompany balancesatehot considered long-term in nature. The chamget foreign currency exchange
gains/losses is due primarily to the underlyingngjes in the applicable exchange rates, mitigatealbyise of foreign exchange forward
contracts to hedge certain non-functional curreagsets and liabilities against changes in excheatgamovements.

Other Expense, NetOther expense, net, consists primarily of bank éss®ciated with our cash management activities.

Income Tax ExpenseQur effective tax rate for the year ended Decem3ie013 was 38.0% compared to 35.9% for the yeded
December 31, 2012. The effective tax rate in 2048 higher than the federal statutory rate of 35@¥harily due to higher losses in certain
foreign jurisdictions resulting in an increasehe valuation allowance for deferred tax assetsa@lto these foreign operating losses and to
state taxes in the U.S. These increases in owtisféetax rate for 2013 were offset partially byvker taxes on earnings in foreign jurisdictions
and the recognition of certain tax benefits reldtethe re-measurement or settlement of specifteain tax positions during 2013. The
effective tax rate in 2012 was slightly higher thiae federal statutory rate of 35.0% primarily dostate taxes in the U.S. and to
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increases in the liability associated with unredpg tax benefits, partially offset by lower taxasearnings in foreign jurisdictions. See Note
12 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in IRdtem 8 of this report for further discussiohincome tax expense.
Liquidity and Capital Resources

The following table sets forth for the periods @reted certain consolidated cash flow informatiantii@ years ended December 31, 2014
2013 and 2012 (in thousands):

2014 2013 2012
Net cash provided by operating activit $110,31¢ $ 76,06¢ $ 67,44
Net cash used in investing activiti (7,517 (19,029 (33,987
Net cash used in financing activiti (48,530) (75,71) (14,57Y)
Foreign currency exchange effect on cash and aushatent balance (16,577) (6,639 4,89¢
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivz 37,707 (25,307 23,78
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 126,81 152,11¢ 128,33t
Cash and cash equivalents at end of ' $164,52:  $126,81°  $152,11¢

Cash and Cash Flow

Our primary uses of cash during 2014 were to fundkimg capital requirements, to repurchase sharesrocommon stock and to fund
capital expenditures. Operating activities provi#&d0.3 million in cash for the year ended Decen®ier2014, a 45% increase from the year
ended December 31, 2013. We had net combined rep#gran our long-term debt facilities of $5.5 noifliduring 2014. Capital expenditures
were $10.0 million in 2014, a 48% decrease from320éflecting lower IT investments year over yé&zaish balances in 2014 were negatively
affected by $16.6 million as a result of foreigmremcy exchange rates, compared to a negativet @f&6.6 million in 2013.

Net cash provided by operating activiti€3ash flows from operating activities reflect out earnings, adjusted for non-cash items such
as depreciation, amortization, stock-based compiensaxpense and write-offs and write-downs of essses well as changes in asset and
liability balances. In 2014, the increases in aot®ueceivable and accounts payable reflect ineckasles and associated costs of goods sold
respectively, in 2014 compared to the prior ye&e ihcrease in inventories is primarily attributatd an increase in inventory levels at
December 31, 2014, to support specific client eegants as well as to hardware sale transactiananait to clients as of December 31, such
that delivery was not deemed to have occurred thiproduct was received by the client in earlyuday. The decrease in accrued expenses
and other liabilities in 2014 was primarily duethe relative timing of sales tax and VAT paymerdgaryover year.

In 2013, the decreases in accounts receivable @uliats payable reflect the effect of a singleificant sale transacted with a public
sector client late in December 2012. The increagghier current assets in 2013 was primarily altedwur deferral of costs for certain
payments made or payable to partners at Decemb@O033, in advance of our being able to recogriieerélated revenue.

In 2012, the increases in accounts receivable ecouats payable also reflect the effect of thelsisggnificant sale transacted with a
public sector client late in December 2012 (disedsabove). The decrease in inventories in 2012pniasarily a result of inventory
management initiatives undertaken in our North Aoaesegment, and the decrease in accrued expemsesheer liabilities in 2012 was
primarily due to the relative timing of VAT and ealtax payments year over year.
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Our consolidated cash flow operating metrics ferdoarters ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 28E& dollows:

Days sales outstanding in ending accounts reca&\yabSOs”)@ 83 83 94
Days inventory outstandin(“ DIOs”) ®) 9 8 8
Days purchases outstanding in ending accounts fEf{‘DPO¢") (©) (68 (649 (79
Cash conversion cycle (day 24 27 24

(&) Calculated as the balance of accounts recayabt at the end of the period divided by dailysades. Daily net sales is calculated as nef
sales for the quarter divided by 92 de

(b) Calculated as average inventories (excluding irorgeg not available for sale) divided by daily sost goods sold. Average inventorie
calculated as the sum of the balances of inverst@ti¢he beginning of the period plus inventorietha end of the period divided by two.
Daily costs of goods sold is calculated as costgoofls sold for the quarter divided by 92 d:

(c) Calculated as the sum of the balances of ad¢sqayable — trade and accounts payable — invefitaycing facility at the end of the
period divided by daily costs of goods sold. Daibsts of goods sold is calculated as costs of gsoldsfor the quarter divided by 92
days.

(d) Calculated as DSOs plus DIOs, less DF

Our cash conversion cycle was 24 days in the foyutrter ended December 31, 2014, an improvemeéhteé days from the fourth
quarter of 2013, due primarily to higher DPOs inrticAmerica driven by the timing of payments to sligrs during the quarter ended
December 31, 2014 offset by a one day increasd@s[due to the increase in inventories discussesieab

Our cash conversion cycle was 27 days in the foyuwtrter ended December 31, 2013, up three dagstfie fourth quarter of 2012, due
primarily to lower DPOs in North America driven bye timing of payments to suppliers during the tgragnded December 31, 2013. The yea
to year decreases in both DSOs and DPOs refleeftbet of a single significant sale transactedhwitpublic sector client late in December
2012.

Our cash conversion cycle was 24 days in the foyudrter ended December 31, 2012, up two days thenfourth quarter of 2011, due
primarily to higher accounts receivable in North éica, despite lower sales recorded during thettiogmarter of 2012 compared to the fourth
quarter of 2011. The year over year increases (2012011) in both DSOs and DPOs also reflect tfeeteof the single significant sale
transacted with a public sector client late in Deber 2012 (discussed above).

We expect that cash flow from operations will bedysat least partially, to fund working capitalvess typically pay our partners on
average terms that are shorter than the averags tge grant to our clients in order to take advgataf supplier discounts. We intend to use
cash generated in 2015 in excess of working capé&atls to repurchase shares of our common stockugnmibrt our capital expenditures for
year. We also may use cash to fund potential aitiuis to add select capabilitie

Net cash used in investing activitie€Capital expenditures of $10.0 million, $19.0 il and $30.2 million for the years ended
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectivelye wemarily related to investments in our IT sysseiWe expect total capital expenditures
in 2015 to be between $10.0 million and $15.0 wrilliprimarily for technology and facility relatedgrade projects.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, we adajliraac for $3.8 million, net of cash acquired.

Net cash used in financing activitiesDuring the year ended December 31, 2014, we badambined repayments on our long-term det
under our senior revolving credit facility (“revamg facility”) and our accounts receivable secaation facility (“ABS facility”) of $5.5 million
and had net borrowings under our inventory finagdarcility of $7.5 million. In 2014, we also fund&$0.4 million of repurchases of our
common stock. During the year ended December 3113,20e had net combined repayments on our revol@aitjty and our ABS facility of
$13.5 million and had net repayments under ourritory financing facility of $1.6 million. In 2013ye funded $57.8 million of repurchases of
our common stock. During the year ended Decembe?@®112, we had net combined repayments on ourvigpfacility and our ABS facility
of $35.0 million and had net borrowings under aweintory financing facility of $22.9 million.
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As of December 31, 2014, our lotgrm debt balance consisted of $61.0 million ouiditag under our $200.0 million ABS facility and
amounts outstanding under our $350.0 million revm\facility. As of December 31, 2014, the currpaottion of our long-term debt relates
solely to our capital lease and other financindggattions. Our objective is to pay our debt balardmsn while retaining adequate cash balal
to meet overall business objectives.

While the ABS facility has a stated maximum amotimg, actual availability under the ABS facilitylimited by the quantity and quality
of the underlying accounts receivable. As of Decen®i, 2014, qualified receivables were sufficienpermit access to the full $200.0 millic
of which $61.0 million was outstanding at Decembgr2014.

Our consolidated debt balance that can be outstgradithe end of any fiscal quarter under our néugl facility and our ABS facility is
limited by certain financial covenants, particuea maximum leverage ratio. The maximum leveragie rs calculated as aggregate debt
outstanding divided by the sum of the Company’sitigrtwelve month net earnings (loss) plus (ieirgst expense, excluding noash impute:
interest on our inventory financing facility, (income tax expense (benefit), (iii) depreciatiod amortization and (iv) non-cash stock-based
compensation (“adjusted earnings”). The maximunetlage ratio permitted under the agreements istiri&s trailing twelve-month adjusted
earnings. We anticipate that we will be in compliamvith our maximum leverage ratio requirements ¢lve next four quarters. However, a
significant drop in the Company’s adjusted earningsld limit the amount of indebtedness that cdaddbutstanding at the end of any fiscal
quarter to a level that would be below the Compsaiegnsolidated maximum facility amounts. Basedhenmhaximum permitted leverage ratio
as of December 31, 2014, the Company’s debt batfrateould have been outstanding under our rerglfacility and our ABS facility was
reduced from the maximum borrowing capacity of $658illion to $497.4 million, of which $61.0 milliowas outstanding at December 31,
2014.

Notes 5 and 7 to the Consolidated Financial Statésria Part I, Item 8 of this report also includasiescription of our financing
facilities; amounts outstanding; amounts availand weighted average borrowings and interest thtesg the year.

Cash and cash equivalents held by foreign subg@diare generally subject to U.S. income taxatjponurepatriation to the U.S. We do
not provide for U.S. income taxes on the undistediearnings of those of our foreign subsidiaribens earnings are reinvested and, in the
opinion of management, will continue to be reinedsindefinitely outside of the U.S. As of DecemBg&r 2014, we had approximately $148.3
million in cash and cash equivalents in certaiowfforeign subsidiaries where we consider undiisted earnings of these foreign subsidiaries
to be permanently reinvested. As of December 314 2the majority of our foreign cash resides inketherlands, Canada and the United
Kingdom. Certain of these cash balances will beittethto the U.S. by paying down intercompany pégsigenerated in the ordinary course o
business. This repayment would not change ourytiiéndefinitely reinvest earnings of our foreigmbsidiaries. The undistributed earnings o
foreign subsidiaries that are deemed to be indefininvested outside of the U.S. were approxinya$#19.6 million at December 31, 2014,
compared to $72.0 million at the end of 2013. Wernd to use undistributed earnings for generalnassi purposes in the foreign jurisdictions
as well as to fund our capital expenditures aneém@! acquisitions.

We anticipate that cash flows from operations, tlogewith the funds available under our financiagilities, will be adequate to support
our presently anticipated cash and working cap&quirements for operations as well as other gfi@iavestments over the next 12 months.
We currently do not intend nor foresee a needpatréate any foreign undistributed earnings. Weeekgxisting domestic cash and cash flows
from operations to continue to be sufficient todwur domestic operating cash activities and casintitments for investing and financing
activities, such as capital expenditures and degtryments, for at least the next 12 months.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have entered into off-balance sheet arrangemehtish include guaranties and indemnificationse Gaaranties and indemnifications
are discussed in Note 18 to the Consolidated FiabBtatements in Part Il, Item 8 of this reporte \elieve that none of our off-balance sheet
arrangements have, or are reasonably likely to,heaweaterial current or future effect on our finahcondition, sales or expenses, results of
operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or t¢apiesources.
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INSIGHT ENTERPRISES, INC.

Contractual Obligations

At December 31, 2014, our contractual obligatiarscbntinuing operations were as follows (in thowts):

Payments due by peric

More than'!
Less than 1-3 3-5

Total 1 Year Years Years Years

Long-term debf2) $ 61000 $ — $61,000 $ — $ —

Capital lease and other financing obligati 2,311 773 1,53¢ — —

Inventory financing facility®) 122,78: 122,78: — — —
Operating lease obligatiol 61,49: 17,271 21,46 14,20¢ 8,551

Severance and restructuring obligati(©) 3,82¢ 3,82¢ — — —
Other contractual obligatior 11,81¢ 3,05: 5,157 1,36: 2,244
Total $263,23:  $147,71. $89,15¢ $15,56¢ $ 10,79¢

(a) Reflects the $61.0 million outstanding at DebenB1, 2014 under our ABS facility as due in JB@27, the date at which the facility
matures. See further discussion in Note 7 to thesGlidated Financial Statements in Part Il, Iteof &is report.

(b) As of December 31, 2014, this amount has beelnded in our contractual obligations table abaséeing due in less than 1 year due to
the 30- to 60-day stated vendor terms. See fudiseussion in Note 5 to the Consolidated Finarfstatements in Part Il, Item 8 of this
report.

(c) As aresult of approved severance and restingtplans, we expect future cash expendituresaele employee termination benefits anc
facilities based costs. See further discussiondgte to the Consolidated Financial Statementsim I, Item 8 of this repor

(d) The table above include

l. Estimated interest payments of $1.0 million atle of 2015 and 2016 and $519,000 in the firstreixths of 2017, based on
the current debt balance at December 31, 2014 ©D3$86illion under our ABS facility, multiplied byé weighted average
interest rate for the year ended December 31, 20147% per annurn

Il. Amounts totaling $1.6 million through 2018 for otlw@ntractual obligation:

lll.  We estimate that we will owe $7.6 million inttire years in connection with the obligations ¢éofprm asset-retirement
activities that are conditional on a future ew

The table above excludes $4.3 million of unrecoggitax benefits, including $336,000 related to aedrinterest, as we are unable to
reasonably estimate the ultimate amount or timingettlement. See further discussion in Note 1théoConsolidated Financial Statements in
Part Il, Item 8 of this report.

Although we set purchase targets with our parttiedsto the amount of supplier reimbursements weiwe, we have no material
contractual purchase obligations with our partners.

Acquisitions

Our strategy includes the possible acquisitionrahweestments in other businesses to expand or kyngmt our operations or to add
select services capabilities. The magnitude, tinaind nature of any future acquisitions or investim&vrill depend on a number of factors,
including the availability of suitable candidatéss negotiation of acceptable terms, our finantdglabilities and general economic and bus
conditions. Financing for future transactions worddult in the utilization of cash, incurrence délaional debt, issuance of stock or some
combination of the three.

Inflation

We have historically not been adversely affecteihfigition, as technological advances and competitvithin the IT industry have
generally caused the prices of the products waaekcline and product life cycles tend to be shidris requires our growth in unit sales to
exceed the decline in prices in order to increasenet sales. We believe that most price increasekl be passed on to our clients, as prices
charged by us are not set by long-term contractseler, as a result of competitive pressure, thanebe no assurance that the full effect of
any such price increases could be passed on tclients.
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INSIGHT ENTERPRISES, INC.
Recently Issued Accounting Standards

The information contained in Note 1 to the Consatld Financial Statements in Part Il, Item 8 of tieport concerning a description of

recent accounting pronouncements, including oueetqal dates of adoption and the estimated effectaipresults of operations and financial
condition, is incorporated by reference herein.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About MarkRisk

The information contained in Note 13 to the Cordatitd Financial Statements in Part Il, Item 8 &f thport concerning a description of
market risk management, including interest ratie aisd foreign currency exchange risk, is incorpetdty reference herein.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED
PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Insight Enterprises, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of Insight Enterprises, Inc. and sub#dithe Company) as of December 31,
2014 and 2013, and the related consolidated statsmé&operations, comprehensive income, stockineldguity, and cash flows for each of
the years in the three-year period ended Decenthet(3 4. These consolidated financial statemeetshar responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express aniopion these consolidated financial statementsdas our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstials of the Public Company Accounting OversighamBiqUnited States). Those standard:
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebtagsonable assurance about whether the finataiaiments are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tldasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digs in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princied and significant estimates made by managenenelaas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetegeferred to above present fairly, in all matenéspects, the financial position of Insight
Enterprises, Inc. and subsidiaries as of Decembe2@®14 and 2013, and the results of their oparatand their cash flows for each of the yt
in the three-year period ended December 31, 2@lehnformity with U.S. generally accepted accounfininciples.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), Insight Enterpris
Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting @sDecember 31, 2014, based on criteria estaldighknternal Control — Integrated
Framework (1992 issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatafrthe Treadway Commission, and our report dagdatuary 20, 201
expressed an unqualified opinion on the effectigsra the Company’s internal control over financegorting.

/sl KPMG LLP

Phoenix, Arizona
February 20, 2015
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED
PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Insight Enterprises, Inc.:

We have audited Insight Enterprises, Inc.’s intecoatrol over financial reporting as of Decembér 3014, based on criteria established in
Internal Control— Integrated Framework (1992ysued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatafrthe Treadway Commission (COSO).
Insight Enterprises, Inc.’s management is resptaéils maintaining effective internal control ovarancial reporting and for its assessment of
the effectiveness of internal control over finahcéporting, included in the accompanying Item @), Management’s Annual Report on
Internal Control over Financial Reportir. Our responsibility is to express an opinion osight Enterprises, Inc.’s internal control over
financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the staigdof the Public Company Accounting OversightriBq&nited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to abtaasonable assurance about whether effectivenalteontrol over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our auditudeld obtaining an understanding of internal cordx@r financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing aald&ing the design and operating effectivenesstefnal control based on the assessed risk.
Our audit also included performing such other pdoces as we considered necessary in the circunestave believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company'’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed to provide reasonableamesuregarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statet:iéor external purposes in accordance with gelyesatepted accounting principles. A
company'’s internal control over financial reportingludes those policies and procedures that (ftajmeto the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettfansactions and dispositions of the assetseofdmpany; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatg@aparation of financial statements in accor@awith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureb®tbmpany are being made only in accordance witioaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabburance regarding prevention or timely detectfainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzanweterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢taisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods agject to the risk that controls may become inadegjbecause of changes in conditions, or
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Insight Enterprises, Inc. maintaini all material respects, effective internal ttohover financial reporting as of December
2014, based on criteria establishedniternal Control — Integrated Framework (1992%sued by COSO.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@/nited States), the consolidated
balance sheets of Insight Enterprises, Inc. andigiaties as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, anckthted consolidated statements of
operations, comprehensive income, stockholderstgcand cash flows for each of the years in thredlyear period ended December 31, 2(
and our report dated February 20, 2015 expressed@urelified opinion on those consolidated finahstatements.

/sl KPMG LLP

Phoenix, Arizona
February 20, 2015
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INSIGHT ENTERPRISES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except per share data)

ASSETS

Current asset:

Cash and cash equivalel

Accounts receivable, n

Inventories

Inventories not available for se

Deferred income taxe

Other current asse

Total current asse

Property and equipment, r
Goodwill
Intangible assets, n
Deferred income taxe
Other asset

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

Current liabilities:
Accounts payab—trade
Accounts payab—inventory financing facility
Accrued expenses and other current liabili
Current portion of lon-term debt
Deferred revenu
Total current liabilities
Long-term debi
Deferred income taxe
Other liabilities

Commitments and contingenci

Stockholder' equity:
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value, 3,000 share®er#d; no shares issu

Common stock, $0.01 par value, 100,000 shares apdiolp 40,147 and 42,023 shares issued and ouist

in 2014 and 2013, respective
Additional paic-in capital
Retained earning

Accumulated other comprehensive income (I~ foreign currency translation adjustme

Total stockholder equity

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsistents.
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December 31

2014 2013
$ 16452 $ 126,81
1,309,200  1,257,91
122,57: 97,26¢
45,26 38,70
13,38t 16,43¢
62,92( 57,52¢
1,717,87.  1,594,66.
104,18: 132,82(
26,25 26,25
23,56 35,76¢
58,62( 58,65
17,62¢ 19,56:
$1,948,12  $1,867,7L
$ 819,91( $ 735,69
122,78: 115,25;
144,56 156,49:
76€ 217
50,90+ 44,14¢
1,138,920  1,051,80!
62,53 66,94¢
94C 44z
24 48¢ 31,60:
1,226,89, _1,150,80!
401 42¢
337,16 348,70
396,99: 353,85«
(13,329 13,94:
721,23 716,91
$1,948,12  $1,867,7L
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INSIGHT ENTERPRISES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands, except per share data)

Years Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
Net sales $5,316,22'  $5,144,34  $5,301,44
Costs of goods sol 4,603,82! 4,445,461 4,581,76!
Gross profit 712,40: 698,88 719,67¢
Operating expense
Selling and administrative expen: 576,96 564,91( 565,20¢
Severance and restructuring exper 4,43: 12,74( 6,311
Earnings from operatior 131,00: 121,23 148,15:
Non-operating (income) expens
Interest incomi (1,062) (1,230 (1,46%)
Interest expens 6,01¢ 6,33 6,101
Gain on bargain purcha — — (2,027)
Net foreign currency exchange loss (g: 327 194 (463)
Other expense, n 1,34 1,412 1,33
Earnings before income tax 124,37. 114,52 144,66¢
Income tax expens 48,68¢ 43,50: 51,90¢
Net earnings $ 7568 $ 71,02 $ 92,76!
Net earnings per shat
Basic $ 18  $ 165 $ 2.0¢
Diluted $ 18 $ 1.6¢ $ 2.07
Shares used in per share calculatic
Basic 41,06: 43,01: 44,41
Diluted 41,35¢ 43,28¢ 44,83«

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsgistents.
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INSIGHT ENTERPRISES, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(in thousands)

Net earning:
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of
Foreign currency translation adjustme

Total comprehensive incon

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&stents.
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Years Ended December 31
2014 2013 2012

$ 75,68 $71,02: $92,76:

(27,270 (5,716 6,75¢
$ 48,41« $65,30f  $99,52:
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INSIGHT ENTERPRISES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

(in thousands)

Accumulated

Common Stock Treasury Stock Additional Other Total
Par Paid-in Comprehensive Retained Stockholder¢’
Shares Value Shares Amount Capital Income (Loss) Earnings Equity
Balances at December 31, 2011 43,91¢ $43¢ — $ — $360,37( $ 12,89¢ $223,12¢ $ 596,83:
Issuance of common stock under
employee stock plans, net of shares
withheld for payroll taxe 67t 7 — — (6549) — — (647)
Stoclk-based compensation expel — — — — 8,54¢ — — 8,54¢
Tax benefit from stock-based
compensatiol — — — — 1,03¢ — — 1,03¢
Foreign currency translation adjustm:
net of tax — — — — — 6,75¢ — 6,75¢
Net earningt — — — — — — 92,76: 92,76
Balances at December 31, 2( 44,59  44¢€ — — 369,30( 19,657 315,88t 705,29:
Issuance of common stock under
employee stock plans, net of shares
withheld for payroll taxe 42¢ 4 — — (3,099 — — (3,099
Stoclk-based compensation expel — — — — 6,43( — — 6,43(
Tax benefit from stock-based
compensatiol — — — — 76C — — 76C
Repurchase of treasury stc — — (3,000 (57,779 — — — (57,779)
Retirement of treasury sto (3,000 (30) 3,00 57,77 (24,689 — (33,05%) —
Foreign currency translation adjustm:
net of tax — — — — — (5,71¢) — (5,71€)
Net earningt — — — — — — 71,02! 71,02:
Balances at December 31, 2( 42,02: 42 — — 348,70: 13,94: 353,85¢ 716,91t
Issuance of common stock under
employee stock plans, net of shares
withheld for payroll taxe 264 2 — — (2,030 — — (2,029
Stoclk-based compensation expel — — — — 7,75( — — 7,75(
Tax benefit from stock-based
compensatiol — — — — 56( — — 56(
Repurchase of treasury stc — — (2,140 (50,389 — — — (50,387
Retirement of treasury sto (2,140 (21 2,14 50,38: (17,816 — (32,546 —
Foreign currency translation adjustm:
net of tax — — — — — (27,270) — (27,270
Net earningt — — — — — — 75,68¢ 75,68¢
Balances at December 31, 2( 40,147 %401 — $ — $337,16 $ (13,329 $396,99: $ 721,23

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsdistents.
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INSIGHT ENTERPRISES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

Years Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
Cash flows from operating activitie
Net earning: $ 75,68¢ $ 71,02: $ 92,76:
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cashiged by operating activitie
Depreciation and amortizatic 40,57( 41,54+ 41,17,
Non-cash real estate impairme 4,55¢ — —
Provision for losses on accounts receivi 4,40¢ 4,69¢ 4,19¢
Write-downs of inventorie 2,63( 3,71¢ 3,08¢
Write-off of property and equipme 741 60¢€ 59¢
Non-cash stoc-based compensatic 7,75( 6,43( 8,54¢
Gain on bargain purcha — — (2,027
Excess tax benefit from employee gains on -based compensatic (56¢) (909) (1,96¢€)
Deferred income taxe 3,79 3,44 8,97¢
Gain on related party sale of property and equigr (89%) — —
Changes in assets and liabiliti
(Increase) decrease in accounts receiv (107,969 111,54! (141,18)
(Increase) decrease in inventor (35,719 (7,399 27,47"
Increase in other current ass (5,187) (30,650 (5,81¢)
Decrease in other ass 1,60¢ 73t 9,201
Increase (decrease) in accounts pay 121,50¢ (130,65 56,44
Increase (decrease) in deferred reve 8,30: 1,19 (11,19¢)
(Decrease) increase in accrued expenses and iathitities (10,900) 73t (22,849
Net cash provided by operating activit 110,31¢ 76,06¢ 67,44.
Cash flows from investing activitie
Acquisition, net of cash acquir — — (3,839
Purchases of property and equipm (9,987 (29,029 (30,157
Proceeds from sale of property and equipn 2,472 — —
Net cash used in investing activiti (7,51)) (19,029 (33,987
Cash flows from financing activitie
Borrowings on senior revolving credit facili 484,99; 835,32¢ 803,95:
Repayments on senior revolving credit faci (501,499 (851,829 (885,95)
Borrowings on accounts receivable securitizatioarficing facility 1,050,071 875,00( 581,00(
Repayments on accounts receivable securitizatimnéing facility (1,039,077 (872,000 (534,000
Borrowings under other financing agreeme 2,00z — —
Repayments under other financing agreem (150 — —
Payments on capital lease obligat (217) (677) (1,017
Net borrowings (repayments) under inventory finagdacility 7,52¢ (1,587 22,90(
Payment of deferred financing fe (35)) — (2,777)
Proceeds from sales of common stock under emplstge# plan: — — 2,641
Excess tax benefit from employee gains on -based compensatic 56€ 90¢ 1,96¢
Payment of payroll taxes on st-based compensation through shares with (2,02¢) (3,099 (3,289
Repurchases of common stc (50,387 (57,779) —
Net cash used in financing activiti (48,530) (75,71) (14,57Y
Foreign currency exchange effect on cash and ashatent balance (16,577 (6,63%) 4,89¢
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equiv: 37,705 (25,309 23,78:
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 126,81 152,11¢ 128,33
Cash and cash equivalents at end of $ 164,52 $ 126,81 $152,11¢

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsgistents.
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INSIGHT ENTERPRISES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(1) Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Plicies

Description of Business

We are a leading technology provider of hardwaséware and service solutions to business and gowent clients in North America,
Europe, the Middle East, Africa and Asia-Pacifithe Company is organized in the following threerafing segments, which are primarily
defined by their related geographies:

Operating Segmen Geography

North America United States and Cana
EMEA Europe, Middle East and Afric
APAC Asia-Pacific

Our offerings in North America and select countireEMEA include hardware, software and servicast @iferings in the remainder of
our EMEA segment and in APAC are almost entirefjvgare and select software-related services.

Acquisitions

On February 1, 2012, we acquired Inmac GmbH anadii¢arehouse BV (“Inmac”), a broad portfolio busiago-business hardware
reseller based in Frankfurt, Germany and Amsterddgtherlands servicing clients in Western Europeafcash purchase price, net of cash
acquired, of $3,831,000. Our EMEA operating segmetidgnized a non-operating gain on bargain puecbf$2,022,000 during 2012 as the
fair value of the net assets acquired exceededutehase price. Prior to recognizing the gain aigéia purchase, we reassessed the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed in the acquisition

Principles of Consolidation and Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include teants of Insight Enterprises, Inc. and its whollyned subsidiaries. All significant

intercompany balances and transactions have besimaled in consolidation. References to “the Conyga‘lnsight,” “we,” “us,” “our” and
other similar words refer to Insight Enterprises;.land its consolidated subsidiaries, unlessdhéegt suggests otherwise.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statesmé@ntonformity with U.S. generally accepted acamgprinciples (“GAAP”) requires
management to make estimates and assumptiondfenetttae reported amounts of assets and liakslgied disclosure of contingent assets anc
liabilities at the date of the consolidated finahsitatements. Additionally, these estimates andraptions affect the reported amounts of net
sales and expenses during the reporting periodiahegsults could differ from those estimates. @magoing basis, we evaluate our estimate:s
including those related to sales recognition, #dited achievement levels under partner fundingnamos, assumptions related to stock-based
compensation valuation, allowances for doubtfubacds, valuation of inventories, litigation-relatebligations, valuation allowances for
deferred tax assets and impairment of ltmgd assets, including purchased intangibles awdlgill, if indicators of potential impairment exi

Cash and Cash Equivalents

We consider all highly liquid investments with madties at the date of purchase of three monthess to be cash equivalents.

Book overdrafts represent the amount by which antlihg checks issued, but not yet presented tbaniks for disbursement, exceed
balances on deposit in applicable bank account@dedal right of offset with our positive cashdrades in other financial institution accounts
does not exist. Our book overdrafts, which arednectly linked to a credit facility or other baokerdraft arrangement, do not result in an
actual bank financing, but rather constitute norarglaid trade payables at the end of a reportinggeThese amounts are included within oul
accounts payable balance in our consolidated balsineets. The changes in these book overdrafisduneled within the changes in accounts
payable line item as a component of cash flows fop@rating activities in our consolidated stateraefittash flows.

44



Table of Contents

INSIGHT ENTERPRISES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continu ed)

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

We establish an allowance for doubtful accountefiect our best estimate of probable losses intiéneour accounts receivable balance
The allowance is based on our evaluation of thegagf the receivables, historical write-offs and turrent economic environment. We write
off individual accounts against the reserve whemwéonger believe that it is probable that we willlect the receivable because we become
aware of a client’s or vendor’s inability to mestfinancial obligations. Such awareness may teerasult of bankruptcy filings, or
deterioration in the client’s or vendor’s operatiegults or financial position.

Inventories

We state inventories, principally purchased infaforatechnology (“IT”) hardware, at the lower of ighted average cost (which
approximates cost under the first-in, first-out hoet) or market. We evaluate inventories for excelssplescence or other factors that may
render inventories unmarketable at normal marghite-downs are recorded so that inventories retlee approximate net realizable value
and take into account contractual provisions withartners governing price protection, stock fotaaind return privileges relating to
obsolescence. Because of the large number of tioisa and the complexity of managing the pricegation and stock rotation process,
estimates are made regarding write-downs of theyicgr amount of inventories. Additionally, assungpis about future demand, market
conditions and decisions by manufacturers/publsbediscontinue certain products or product liceas affect our decision to write down
inventories.

Inventories not available for sale relate to pradwades transactions in which we are warehousiagtbduct and will be deploying the
product to clients’ designated locations subseqteeperiod-end. Additionally, we may perform serdmn a portion of the product prior to
shipment to our clients and will be paid a feedoing so. Although these product contracts arecantcelable with customary credit terms
beginning the date the inventories are segregatedriwarehouse and invoiced to the client andvtweanty periods begin on the date of
invoice, these transactions do not meet the sat@gynition criteria under GAAP. Therefore, we domezord sales and the inventories are
classified as inventories not available for sal@onconsolidated balance sheet until the produdelivered. If clients remit payment before
deliver product to them, we record the paymentsived as deferred revenue on our consolidated balsimeet until such time as the product i
delivered.

Property and Equipment

We record property and equipment at cost. We dagstenajor improvements and betterments, while nemiance, repairs and minor
replacements are expensed as incurred. Deprec@tiamortization is provided using the straightlimethod over the following estimated
economic lives of the assets:

Estimated Economic Life
Shorter of underlying lease

Leasehold improvemen term or asset lifi
Furniture and fixture 2-7 years
Equipment 3-5years
Software 3-10 years
Buildings 29 years

Costs incurred to develop internal-use softwarénduthe application development stage, includingjtedized interest, are recorded in
property and equipment at cost. External directscobmaterials and services consumed in developiraptaining internal-use computer
software and payroll and payroll-related costsdammates who are directly associated with anddevote time to internal-use computer
software development projects, to the extent otithe spent directly on the project and specifiepplication development, are capitalized.

Our capital lease assets (see Note 7) are amounizedstraightine basis over the lease term. The related anatitiz expense is includ:
in selling and administrative expenses in our cbdated statements of operations.
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Reviews are regularly performed to determine whefiets and circumstances exist which indicate thatseful life is shorter than
originally estimated or the carrying amount of &$eay not be recoverable. When an indication exfsit the carrying amount of long-lived
assets may not be recoverable, we assess the rabibty of our assets by comparing the projectadiscounted net cash flows associated
the related asset or group of assets over theiireng lives against their respective carrying antsuSuch impairment test is based on the
lowest level for which identifiable cash flows daegely independent of the cash flows of other geoaf assets and liabilities. Impairment, if
any, is based on the excess of the carrying anauertthe estimated fair value of those assets.

Goodwill

Goodwill is recorded when the purchase price paichfi acquisition exceeds the estimated fair vafueet identified tangible and
intangible assets acquired. Goodwill is testedrfgrairment at the reporting unit level on an anrhsis in the fourth quarter and between
annual tests if an event occurs or circumstancasgathat would more likely than not reduce thevfalue of the reporting unit below its
carrying value. We may first perform a qualitatassessment to determine whether it is more likedy thot that the fair value of a reporting
unit is less than its carrying value. If it is carded that this is the case, it is necessary ttopara quantitative two-step goodwill impairment
test. Otherwise, the two-step goodwill impairmegst tis not required. The quantitative two-step gdathdmpairment review process compares
the fair value of the reporting unit in which godtlwesides to its carrying value. The Company thase reporting units, which are the same a
our operating segments. Multiple valuation techag&joan be used to assess the fair value of thetirepanit. All of these techniques include
the use of estimates and assumptions that areeintfieuncertain. Changes in these estimates angd®ns could materially affect the
determination of fair value or goodwill impairment, both.

Intangible Assets

We amortize intangible assets acquired in busioceswinations using the straight-line method overftilowing estimated economic
lives of the intangible assets from the date ofu&stion:

Estimated Economic Life
Customer relationshiy 2-11 years
Other 9 months 3 years

We regularly perform reviews to determine if fagtsl circumstances exist which indicate that théulisiges of our long-lived assets are
shorter than originally estimated or the carryingoant of these assets may not be recoverable. \Ath@émdication exists that the carrying
amount of intangible assets may not be recoveraldegssess the recoverability of our assets by admpthe projected undiscounted net cast
flows associated with the related asset or grougseéts over their remaining lives against thaipeetive carrying amounts. Such impairment
test is based on the lowest level for which idéatie cash flows are largely independent of thé ¢lasvs of other groups of assets and
liabilities. Impairment, if any, is based on theess of the carrying amount over the estimatedv/édire of those assets.

Trade Credits

Trade credit liabilities arise from aged unclainoeeldit memos, duplicate payments, payments formetliproduct or overpayments me
to us by our clients, and, to a lesser extent, fgmwods received by us from a supplier for whichwege never invoiced. Trade credit liabilities
are included in accrued expenses and other cuiadiiities in our consolidated balance sheet. \V€eedognize the liability as a reduction of
costs of goods sold only if it has been extinguishgon either (1) our payment of the liabilityredieve our obligation or (2) our legal release
from the related obligation.

Self Insurance

We are self-insured in the U.S. for medical insaeanp to certain annual stop-loss limits and warkesmpensation claims up to certain
deductible limits. We establish reserves for claibtgh reported and incurred but not reported,gusimrently available information as well as
our historical claims experience.
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Treasury Stock

We record repurchases of our common stock as mgatack at cost. We also record the subsequentmatnt of these treasury shares at
cost. The excess of the cost of the shares ratdivedtheir par value is allocated between additipa&-in capital and retained earnings. The
amount recorded as a reduction of paid-in capsthbised on the excess of the average original e of the shares over par value. The
remaining amount is recorded as a reduction ofirethearnings.

Sales Recognition

Sales are recognized when title and risk of losgassed to the client, there is persuasive evidehan arrangement for sale, delivery
has occurred and/or services have been render=dalis price is fixed or determinable and coltddy is reasonably assured. Our standard
sales terms are F.O.B. shipping point or equivalnivhich time title and risk of loss have pastethe client. However, because we either
(i) have a general practice of covering client ésswhile products are in transit despite title egkl of loss contractually transferring at the @
of shipment or (ii) have specifically stated F.OdBstination contractual terms with the clientj\d®ly is not deemed to have occurred until the
point in time when the product is received by thent.

We leverage drop-shipment arrangements with mamuopartners and suppliers to deliver productsutoclients without having to
physically hold the inventory at our warehousesreby increasing efficiency and reducing costs.rééegnize revenue for drop-shipment
arrangements on a gross basis when the prodwstes/ed by the client. We recognize revenue oroaggpasis as the principal in the
transaction because we are the primary obligdnérarrangement, we assume inventory risk if thelyebis returned by the client, we set the
price of the product charged to the client, we assaredit risk for the amounts invoiced, and welkngosely with our clients to determine tt
hardware and software specifications.

We make provisions for estimated product returas we expect to occur under our return policy bagesh historical return rates. Our
manufacturers warrant most of the products we ntaakel it is our policy to request that clientaurattheir defective products directly to the
manufacturer for warranty service during the maciufieer's warranty period. On selected products,fandelected client service reasons, we
may accept returns directly from the client andhtbigher credit the client or ship a replacementipct. We generally offer a limited 15- to 30-
day return policy for unopened products and cemgiened products, which are consistent with maturfers’ terms; however, for some
products we may charge restocking fees. Produttisned opened are processed and returned to thefacturer or partner for repair,
replacement or credit to us. Subject to some matwkrs’ restrictions, certain products cannotdiamed to the manufacturer for warranty
processing. We resell most unopened products mdunus. If we accept a return from ta client thatcannot return to the partner, we try to
mitigate our losses by selling to inventory liquma, to end users as “previously sold” or “usediducts, or through other channels.

We record the freight we bill to our clients as sales and the related freight costs we pay as obsgfoods sold. We report sales net of
any sales-based taxes assessed by governmentaditesithat are imposed on and concurrent witasstansactions.

Revenue is recognized from software sales whentsli&cquire the right to use or copy software utidense, but in no case prior to the
commencement of the term of the initial softwaceitise agreement, provided that all other reveraegrétion criteria have been met (i.e.,
evidence of the arrangement exists, the fee islforedeterminable and collectibility of the fegi®bable).

We sell certain third-party service contracts amitigare maintenance or subscription products foictvlve are not the primary obligor.
These sales do not meet the criteria for gross satmgnition, and thus are recorded on a net sadegnition basis. As we enter into contracts
with third-party service providers or vendors amd dients, we evaluate whether the subsequers séleuch services should be recorded as
gross sales or net sales. We determine whethectasa principal in the transaction and assumeiske and rewards of ownership or if we
simply acting as an agent or broker. Under gro&ssacognition, the selling price is recordedates and our cost to the third-party service
provider or vendor is recorded in costs of goodd.2dnder net sales recognition, the cost to tlireltparty service provider or vendor is
recorded as a reduction to sales, resulting irsalels equal to the gross profit on the transacéiod,there are no costs of goods sold.
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We recognize revenue for sales of services ratmy the time period over which the service willdvevided if there is no discernible
pattern of recognition of the cost to perform teevice. Billings for such services that are madadmance of the related revenue recognize
recorded as deferred revenue and recognized asuevatably over the billing coverage period. Rexefiom certain arrangements that allow
for the use of a product or service over a peridtihte without taking possession of software asmalccounted for ratably over the time perioc
over which the service will be provided.

We recognize revenue for professional servicesgemants that are on a time and materials basisl g hours incurred as the
services are performed and amounts are earned.

Additionally, we sell certain professional servioemtracts on a fixed fee basis. Revenues for figedorofessional services contracts are
recognized based on the ratio of costs incurredtéd estimated costs. Net sales for these secdn#acts are not a significant portion of our
consolidated net sales.

In certain arrangements, we may provide a comhmnaif hardware and software products and the pmvisf services. Services that are
performed by us in conjunction with hardware anftvgare sales that are completed in our facilitisento shipment of the product are
recognized upon delivery, when title passes talieat, for the hardware sale. Net sales of sesvibat are performed at client locations are
primarily service-only contracts and are recordedales when the services are performed. Thedotaideration for an arrangement with
multiple deliverables is allocated to all delivdesbthat represent a separate unit of accountiimg tise relative selling price method.

Costs of Goods Sold

Costs of goods sold include product costs, direstincurred associated with delivering servioehound and inbound freight costs .
provisions for inventory reserves. These costsedaced by provisions for supplier discounts anthae payments and credits received from
partners, as described under “Partner Funding'viaelo

Selling and Administrative Expenses

Selling and administrative expenses include saar wages, bonuses and incentives, stock-basgubosation expense, employee-
related expenses, facility-related expenses, markahd advertising expense, reduced by certaimpays and credits received from partners
related to shared marketing expense programs,sasiled under “Partner Funding” below, depreciatbproperty and equipment,
professional fees, amortization of intangible asgatovisions for losses on accounts receivableotimel operating expenses.

Partner Funding

We receive payments and credits from partnersydiicy consideration pursuant to volume sales ifmeemrograms, volume purchase
incentive programs and shared marketing expenggam. Partner funding received pursuant to volsales incentive programs is recogni
as it is earned as a reduction to costs of godds Bartner funding received pursuant to volumepase incentive programs is allocated as a
reduction to inventories based on the applicalidentives earned from each partner and is recordedst of goods sold as the related inver
is sold. Partner funding received pursuant to shararketing expense programs is recorded as @rised as a reduction of the related selling
and administrative expenses in the period the pragakes place only if the consideration represgmésmbursement of specific, incremental,
identifiable costs. Consideration that exceedssfiezific, incremental, identifiable costs is cléissias a reduction of costs of goods sold. The
amount of partner funding recorded as a reductfaeling and administrative expenses in our stat@siof operations totaled $40,106,000,
$34,900,000 and $30,714,000 for the years endedrbleer 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Concentrations of Risk
Credit Risk

Although we are affected by the international ecoitoclimate, management does not believe matenéalitrisk concentration existed at
December 31, 2014. We monitor our clients’ finahc@ndition and do not require collateral. No sanglient accounted for more than 2% of
our consolidated net sales in 2014.
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Supplier Risk

Purchases from Microsoft and Ingram Micro accourtedpproximately 25% and 11%, respectively, of aggregate purchases in 20
No other partner accounted for more than 10% ofhmses in 2014. Our top five partners as a groupd4 were Microsoft, Ingram Micro
distributor), HP, Cisco and Tech Data (a distrilbbytand approximately 63% of our total purchasasngu2014 came from this group of
partners. Although brand names and individual pet&lare important to our business, we believedbatpetitive sources of supply are
available in substantially all of our product catdgs such that, with the exception of Microsofe are not dependent on any single partner fo
sourcing products.

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed as they are incufeekrtising expense of $31,214,000, $29,394,00D0%27,632,000 was recorded for
the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2&84katively. These amounts were partially offsepérgner funding earned pursuant to
shared marketing expense programs recorded asieti@dof selling and administrative expenses,issussed above.

StockBased Compensation

Stock-based compensation is measured based oaitlvalie of the award on the date of grant ancctiteesponding expense is
recognized over the period during which an emplageequired to provide service in exchange forrdward. Stock-based compensation
expense is classified in the same line item ofcaunsolidated statements of operations as otheopagtated expenses specific to the
employee. Compensation expense related to seraisedrestricted stock units (“RSUS”) is recogniard straightine basis over the requis
service period for the entire award. Compensatigrerse related to performance-based RSUs is remdjpn a straight-line basis over the
requisite service period for each separately vggiortion of the award as if the award was, in-tafse, multiple awards (i.e., a graded vestin
basis).

Foreign Currencies

We use the U.S. dollar as our reporting currengye flinctional currencies of our significant foregrbsidiaries are generally the local
currencies. Accordingly, assets and liabilitieshaf subsidiaries are translated into U.S. dollatee@exchange rate in effect at the balance she
dates. Income and expense items are translatbd average exchange rate for each month withigghe The resulting translation adjustm
are recorded directly in accumulated other comprsive income (loss) — foreign currency translatdjustments as a separate component of
stockholders’ equity. Net foreign currency trangatgains/losses, including transaction gains/lesseintercompany balances that are not of
long-term investment nature and non-functional@uoecy cash balances, are reported as a separatewentf non-operating (income)
expense in our consolidated statements of opegation

Derivative Financial Instruments

We enter into forward foreign exchange contractsitigate the risk of non-functional currency margtassets and liabilities on our
consolidated financial statements. These forwardraots are not designated as hedge instrumengsfaiitvalue of all derivative assets and
liabilities are recorded gross in the other cureesgets and accrued expenses and other currdhti¢ialsections of the balance sheet.
Gains/losses are recorded net in non-operatin@itied expense in our consolidated statements oatpes.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the assdiadnility method. Deferred tax assets and lial@htiare recognized for the future tax
consequences attributable to differences betweefirthncial statement carrying amounts of existingets and liabilities and their respective
tax bases and operating loss and tax credit carwafrds. Deferred tax assets and liabilities arasueed using enacted tax rates expected to
apply to taxable earnings in the years in whictlséhtemporary differences are expected to be reedwarsettled. The effect on deferred tax
assets and liabilities of a change in tax ratesdegnized in earnings in the period that inclutiesenactment date.
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We recognize net deferred tax assets to the etttahtve believe these assets are more likely tbhatorbe realized. In making such a
determination, we consider all available positind aegative evidence, including future reversalexi$ting taxable temporary differences,
projected future taxable income, tax-planning styggts and results of recent operations. If we deter that we would be able to realize our
deferred tax assets in the future in excess of ttetirecorded amount, we would make an adjusttoethie deferred tax asset valuation
allowance, which would reduce the provision forame taxes.

We record uncertain tax positions on the basistefcastep process whereby (1) we determine whétliemore likely than not that the
tax positions will be sustained on the basis oftdfudanical merits of the position and (2) for thtepe positions that meet the more-likely-than-
not recognition threshold, we recognize the largesbunt of tax benefit that is more than 50 pertikely to be realized upon ultimate
settlement with the related tax authority. Intesgsd penalties related to unrecognized tax berefsecognized within the income tax expe
line in our consolidated statements of operatidwsrued interest and penalties are included withérelated tax liability line in our
consolidated balance sheets.

Net Earnings Per Shar“EPS)

Basic EPS is computed by dividing net earningslakils to common stockholders by the weighted averagnber of common shares
outstanding during each year. Diluted EPS is corgbon the basis of the weighted average numbédrasés of common stock plus the effect
of dilutive potential common shares outstandingrduthe period using the treasury stock methodutiVé potential common shares include
outstanding restricted stock units. A reconciliatad the denominators of the basic and diluted E&&ulations follows (in thousands, except
per share data):

Years Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012

Numerator:

Net earning: $75,68¢ $71,02: $92,76!
Denominator

Weightec-average shares used to compute basic 41,06: 43,01: 44,41

Potential dilutive common shares due to dilutiveekt

options and restricted stock un 29€ 271 421

Weightec-average shares used to compute diluted 41,35¢ 43,28¢ 44,83¢
Net earnings per shat

Basic $ 1.8¢ $ 1.6% $ 2.0¢

Diluted $ 1.8¢ $ 1.64 $ 2.07

For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 arit] approximately 20,000, 177,000 and 295,000, sy, of our restricted stock
units were not included in the diluted EPS calcoiat because their inclusion would have been dhiiree. These sharbased awards could
dilutive in the future.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

On May 28, 2014, the Financial Accounting Stand&dard (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards UpdafesU”) 2014-09, ‘Revenu
from Contracts with Customers.” ASU 2014-09 wasiéskas the culmination of the joint project betwdenFASB and the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) to clarify tpbeinciples for recognizing revenue and to develgommon revenue standard for GAAP
and International Financial Reporting Standard® ddre principle of the guidance is that an ersfityuld recognize revenue to depict the
transfer of promised goods or services to custoimexa amount that reflects the consideration tectvkhe entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. ASU 2014-@¥éctive for the fiscal year beginning after Beber 15, 2016, including interim periods
within that reporting period. Early adoption is parmitted. An entity may choose to adopt the n&ndard either retrospectively or through a
cumulative effect adjustment as of the start offitst period for which it applies the new standaie are in the process of determining the
effect that the adoption of ASU 2014-09 will haveaur consolidated financial statements and disicéss including our consideration of
pending interpretive guidance expected as a resfdtedback from the FASB and IASB Joint TransitResource Group on implementation
issues, such as gross versus net revenue. We bayetrselected our planned transition approach.
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In July 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-11, “Prestion of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit When a Netr@gieg Loss Carryforward, a
Similar Tax Loss, or a Tax Credit Carryforward EgiSASU 2013-11 clarifies guidance and eliminalesersity in practice on the presentation
of unrecognized tax benefits when a net operatisg tarryforward, a similar tax loss, or a tax itrearyforward exists at the reporting date.
This new guidance became effective for annual tampperiods beginning after December 15, 2013sanimbequent interim periods. We
applied the requirements of ASU 2013-11 prospelgtiseginning January 1, 2014, which resulted ireerdase to noncurrent deferred tax
assets and a decrease to noncurrent reservescintain tax positions of approximately $1,027,06@&aDecember 31, 2014. Had we applied
the requirements of ASU 2013-11 retrospectiveltheoDecember 31, 2013 consolidated balance sheegffect would have been materially
the same.

(2) Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consist of the followingtfiausands):

December 31

2014 2013
Software $ 157,34 $ 154,75t
Buildings 66,79¢ 77,28
Equipment 87,65( 84,84¢
Furniture and fixture 35,27¢ 35,36¢
Leasehold improvemen 21,26¢ 23,31¢
Land 5,23t 7,65¢€

373,57 383,23.
Accumulated depreciation and amortizat (269,399 (250,419
Property and equipment, r $104,18: $ 132,82

During 2014 and 2013, we periodically assessedvenetny indicators of impairment existed relateduo property and equipment. We
incurred non-cash charges of $741,000, $606,0006566,000 during 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectitelwrite-off certain property and
equipment.

See Note 11 for a discussion of a non-cash impaitfess recognized during 2014 on certain reatestssets held for sale.

See Note 19 for a discussion of our sale of cereahestate to a related party during 2014. Thersaulted in a gain of $895,000, which
is included in selling and administrative experisehe accompanying statement of operations foyds ended December 31, 2014.

Depreciation and amortization expense relateddpgmty and equipment was $29,243,000, $29,898,06(628,148,000 for the years
ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respactim&drest charges capitalized in connection witernal-use software development
projects in the years ended December 31, 2014, 20d 2012 were immaterial.

(3) Goodwill

There were no changes in the carrying amount oflggdbduring the year ended December 31, 2014. ddreying amount of goodwill as
of December 31, 2014 and 2013 was as follows paghnds):

North America EMEA APAC Consolidatec
Goodwill $ 349,67 $ 151,43¢ $ 13,97: $ 515,09:
Accumulated impairment loss (323,42) (151,439 (13,977 (488,83¢)
$ 26,25’ $ = $ — $ 26,25

During 2014, we periodically assessed whether adigators of impairment existed which would requiseto perform an interim
impairment review. As of each interim period endiniy the year, we concluded that a triggering eVveat not occurred that would more likely
than not reduce the fair value of our North Amengporting unit (the only reporting unit with a givall balance at any period end) below its
carrying value. We performed our annual test ofdyat for impairment during the fourth quarter dd24. The results of the first step of the
two-step goodwill impairment test indicated that fhir value of our North America reporting unistienated using the market approach, was i
excess of the carrying value, and thus we did ediopm step two of the impairment test.
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(4) Intangible Assets

Intangible assets consist of the following (in thands):

December 31

2014 2013
Customer relationships $109,62( $113,89°
Other — 29¢
109,62( 114,19!
Accumulated amortizatio (86,059 (78,430
Intangible assets, n $ 23,56 $ 35,76

During 2014, we periodically assessed whether adigators of impairment existed related to ourngibale assets. As of each interim
period end during the year, we concluded thatggéring event had not occurred that would mordyikean not reduce the fair value of our
intangible assets below their carrying values.

Amortization expense recognized for the years efiszémber 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 was $11,3274100646,000 and $13,029,0(
respectively. Future amortization expense for #maining unamortized balance is estimated as fsligwthousands):

Years Ending December 3! Amortization Expense
2015 $ 10,971
2016 8,27¢
2017 2,28¢
2018 2,02¢

Total amortization expen: $ 23,56:

(5) Accounts Payabl—Inventory Financing Facility

We have entered into an agreement with a finamtietmediary to facilitate the purchase of inveptisom various suppliers under
certain terms and conditions, as described beltves& amounts are classified separately as acqoaydble—inventory financing facility in
the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Beoémber 31, 2014 and 2013, $122,781,000 and 334,900, respectively, was included
in accounts payable-inventory financing facilityated to this facility. We reclassified the pria@rjipd amount to conform to our current
presentation.

The aggregate availability for vendor purchasesundr inventory financing facility is $200,000,00the facility matures on April 26,
2017. Additionally, the facility may be renewed endertain circumstances described in the agreefoesticcessive 12-month periods.
Interest does not accrue on accounts payable dhidefacility provided the accounts payable arelpaithin stated vendor terms (ranging from
30 to 60 days). We impute interest on the averaig Halance outstanding during these stated vetators based on our blended incremental
borrowing rate during the period under our sengwotving credit facility and our accounts receivebécuritization financing facility. Imputed
interest of $2,386,000, $2,453,000 and $1,838,089 necorded in 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectivedferibed financing fees of $99,000 were
capitalized in conjunction with the amendment ® ithventory financing facility in 2012. Such fees &eing amortized to interest expense 1
the term of the facility. If balances are not paithin stated vendor terms, they will accrue ingtra prime plus 1.25%. The facility is
guaranteed by the Company and each of its matisiakstic subsidiaries and is secured by a lierubstantially all of the Company’s
domestic assets that is of equal priority to thadisecuring borrowings under our revolving fagilit

(6) Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities

Included in accrued expenses and other currerilified as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 is anumtdor $53,666,000 and
$62,800,000, respectively, of sales tax, value-ddde and other indirect taxes.
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(7) Debt, Capital Lease and Other Financing Obligation:
Debt

Our long-term debt consists of the following (imtisands):

December 31

2014 2013
Senior revolving credit facility $ — $16,50(
Accounts receivable securitization financing fagi 61,00( 50,00(
Capital lease and other financing obligati 2,301 66€
Total 63,30: 67,16¢
Less: current portion of capital lease and othsarfcing obligation (76¢€) (217)

Less: current portion of revolving credit facilii — —
Long-term debt $62,53¢ $66,94¢

Our senior revolving credit facility (“revolving €dity”) has an aggregate U.S. dollar equivalenimaum borrowing capacity amount of
$350,000,000, $25,000,000 of which is availablebimrowings in certain foreign currencies and is\Wollars. Additionally, $25,000,000 is
available for the issuance of letters of credite Tlvolving facility is guaranteed by the Companyiaterial domestic subsidiaries and is sec
by a lien on substantially all of the Company’s aadh guarantor’'s assets. The interest rates apfdito borrowings under the revolving
facility are based on the leverage ratio of the @any as set forth on a pricing grid in the ameratp@éement. Amounts outstanding under the
revolving facility bear interest, payable quartedy a floating rate equal to the prime rate plpsealetermined spread of 0.00% to 0.75% or, at
our option, a LIBOR rate plus a pre-determined agref 1.25% to 2.25%. In addition, we pay a quértesmmitment fee on the unused
portion of the facility of 0.25% to 0.45%, and deiter of credit participation fee ranges from 22 2.25%. During the year ended
December 31, 2014 and 2013, due to availabilityeniodir other debt and financing facilities, weightaerage borrowings under our revolving
facility were only $6,634,000 and $17,943,000, eesppely. Interest expense associated with thelvengfacility was $1,571,000 and
$1,738,000 in 2014 and 2013, respectively, inclgdive commitment fee and amortization to intergpease of deferred financing fees
capitalized in connection with amendments to tivelkéng facility. The weighted average interestrah amounts outstanding under our
revolving facility, including the commitment feechamortization of origination costs, was 3.1% dgtine year ended December 31, 2012. As
of December 31, 2014, $350,000,000 was availaldeuthe revolving facility. See “Debt Covenantsidve The revolving facility matures on
April 26, 2017. Deferred financing fees of $2,3@MAvere capitalized in conjunction with the amendte the revolving facility in 2012.

Such fees are being amortized to interest experesetioe term of the facility.

Our accounts receivable securitization financirglitst (“ABS facility”) has a maximum borrowing cagity of $200,000,000. Under our
ABS facility, we can sell receivables periodicatya special purpose accounts receivable and fingrmtity (the “SPE”), which is exclusively
engaged in purchasing receivables from us. TheiSBEvholly-owned, bankruptcy-remote entity thathewe included in our consolidated
financial statements. The SPE funds its purchageglting undivided interests in eligible trade aaets receivable to independent financial
institution purchasers under the ABS facility (“Bliasers”), which is administered by an indepenfieancial institution agent. The SPE’s
assets are available first and foremost to satisfyclaims of the Purchasers, and we cannot coamgynterest in the receivables sold to the
Purchasers (or allow any adverse claims on thévauoles) without the consent of the Purchaseradutition, the SPE is required to maintain a
minimum capital amount and various reserves putdoaie terms of the ABS facility. We maintainexffive control over the receivables that
are sold. Accordingly, the receivables remain réedron our consolidated balance sheets. At Dece@ih&014 and 2013, the SPE owned
$788,632,000 and $715,415,000, respectively, divables recorded at fair value and included inat@mpanying consolidated balance
sheets. On June 25, 2014, we entered into an anemdmthe ABS facility to extend the maturity détem April 24, 2015 to June 30, 2017,
change the administrative agent and to modify feesnused capacity under the facility. The maximmrowing capacity of the ABS facility
remained unchanged at $200,000,000. While the ABHitly has a stated maximum amount, the actualability under the ABS facility is
limited by the quantity and quality of the undenigiaccounts receivable. As of December 31, 2014dljfapd receivables were sufficient to
permit access to the full $200,000,000 facility amip of which $61,000,000 was outstanding at Deaarth, 2014. See “Debt Covenants”
below.

Under our ABS facility, interest is payable monthdyd the floating interest rate applicable at Dawer 31, 2014 was 1.07% per annum,
including a 0.90% usage fee on any outstandingibak In addition, we pay a monthly commitmentdeghe unused portion of the facility of
0.40%. During the years ended December 31, 201143 aad
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2012, the weighted average interest rates on amaustanding under our ABS facility, including theage and commitment fees and the
amortization of origination costs, was 1.7%, 1.6% &.9%, respectively. Weighted average borrowimg$er our ABS facility in 2014, 2013
and 2012 were $105,992,000, $112,959,000 and $19D@0, respectively. Deferred financing fees &1%800 and $378,000 were capitalizec
in conjunction with amendments to our ABS facility2014 and 2012, respectively. Such fees are teaimgrtized to interest expense over the
term of the facility.

Debt Covenant

Our revolving facility and our ABS facility contairarious covenants customary for transactionsisftyipe, including limitations on the
payment of dividends and the requirement that wepdp with maximum leverage, minimum fixed charge aninimum asset coverage ratio
requirements and meet monthly, quarterly and anmyalrting requirements. If we fail to comply witkese covenants, the lenders would be
able to demand payment within a specified periotinoé. At December 31, 2014, we were in complianih all such covenants. Further, the
terms of the ABS facility identify various circunasices that would result in an “amortization evemttier the facility. At December 31, 2014,
no such “amortization event” had occurred.

Our consolidated debt balance that can be outstgradithe end of any fiscal quarter under our namgl facility and our ABS facility is
limited by certain financial covenants, particwaal maximum leverage ratio. The maximum leveragie ra calculated as aggregate debt
outstanding divided by the sum of our trailing tweemonth net earnings (loss) plus (i) interest agpeexcluding non-cash imputed interest or
our inventory financing facility, (ii) income taxpense (benefit), (iii) depreciation and amorti@atand (iv) non-cash stock-based
compensation (“adjusted earnings”). The maximunetdage ratio permitted under the agreements istirigs trailing twelve-month adjusted
earnings. A significant drop in our adjusted eagsiould limit the amount of indebtedness that ddad outstanding at the end of any fiscal
quarter to a level that would be below our constéd maximum facility amount. Based on our maxinlemerage ratio as of December 31,
2014, our aggregate debt balance that could hase daetstanding under our revolving facility and 8BS facility was reduced from the
maximum borrowing capacity of $550,000,000 to $428,000, of which $61,000,000 was outstanding abwer 31, 2014.

Capital Lease and Other Financing Obligations

Our obligations under capitalized leases are iredduid long-term debt in the accompanying consatiddtalance sheets as of
December 31, 2014 and 2013. The current and lomg-pertions of the obligations are included in thkle above.

In July 2009, we entered into a four-year leasecéutain IT equipment. We amended this lease inelter 2009 and again in July 2010
to include additional IT equipment. The value & #quipment held under the original capitalizedde&3,867,000, was fully amortized prior
to the equipment being returned to the lessor uti@eoriginal lease terms in July 2013. In July 204&e entered into a new capitalized leas
replacement equipment, which expires on Decembge?@®16. The value of the equipment held under thve capitalized lease, $735,000, is
included in property and equipment, net as of Ddimm31, 2014 and 2013. As of December 31, 2012848, accumulated amortization on
the capital lease assets was $210,000 and $105é(@ctively.

The new capital lease was a non-cash transactwreanordingly, has been excluded from the accogipgrconsolidated statement of
cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2013.

From time to time, we also enter into other finagcagreements with financial intermediaries tolfi@te the purchase of products from
certain vendors. At December 31, 2014, amounts awe@r other financing agreements of $1,852,00@;wére payable in installments
through August 2016, are included in our curremt lmg-term debt balances as summarized in the tibve.

(8) Operating Leases

We have several notancelable operating leases with third partiesnarily for administrative and distribution cent@ase and comput
equipment. Our facilities leases generally profateperiodic rent increases and many contain esoalalauses and renewal options. We
recognize rent expense on a straight-line basistbedease term. Rental expense for these thirny-pperating leases was $15,493,000,
$15,731,000 and $14,740,000 for the years endedrbleer 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively, aimtisded in selling and administrative
expenses in the accompanying consolidated statsménperations.
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Future minimum lease payments under non-cancetgd@eating leases (with initial or remaining leasets in excess of one year) as of
December 31, 2014 are as follows (in thousands):

Years Ending December 3.

2015 $17,27"
2016 11,93(
2017 9,53:
2018 8,25¢
2019 5,94¢
Thereafte! 8,551

Total minimum lease paymer $61,49"

Amounts in the table above exclude approximatel$ $dillion per year through 2019 in non-cancellatgletal income.

(9) Severance and Restructuring Activities

During the years ended December 31, 2014, 2012@h8, we recorded severance expense associatetheigimination of certain
positions based on a re-alignment of roles andorespilities, a continued review of resource neiadsorth America and significant
restructuring activities in EMEA, primarily in thénited Kingdom and Germany, as we worked to ratinaaur selling and administrative
expenses in EMEA.

The following table details the activity for eachtloe three years in the period ending DecembeR@14 related to these resource acti
and the outstanding obligations as of Decembe@14 (in thousands):

North America EMEA APAC Consolidatec

Balances at December 31, 2011 $ 65¢ $ 1,45t $— $ 2,11«
Severance costs, net of adjustme 2,83¢ 3,48: — 6,311
Foreign currency translation adjustme — 46 — 46
Cash payment (2,244 (3,599 — (5,839
Balances at December 31, 2( 1,24¢ 1,391 — 2,64(
Severance costs, net of adjustme 3,32¢ 9,41 — 12,74(
Foreign currency translation adjustme — 212 — 212
Cash payment (2,864 (7,779 — (10,635
Balances at December 31, 2( 1,71C 3,241 — 4,951
Severance costs, net of adjustme 971 3,35¢ 10€ 4,43
Foreign currency translation adjustme (38) (157 — (195)
Cash payment (1,786 (3,475 (10€) (5,367
Balances at December 31, 2( $ 857 $ 2,971 $— $ 3,82¢

Adjustments were recorded as a reduction to seeerand restructuring expense in 2014, 2013 and @0$2,023,000, $292,000 and
$678,000, respectively, due to changes in estimates

The remaining outstanding obligations as of Decerthe2014 are expected to be paid during the b2xhonths and are therefore
included in accrued expenses and other currenilitiab.
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(10) Stock-Based Compensatiot

We recorded the following pre-tax amounts in sgliémd administrative expenses for stock-based cosapien, by operating segment, in
the accompanying consolidated financial statem@mtfiousands):

Years Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
North America $5,93¢ $5,11¢ $6,26(
EMEA 1,547 1,061 2,03(
APAC 27C 251 25€
Total Consolidate: $7,75( $6,43( $8,54¢

Company Plan

On October 1, 2007, Insight’'s Board of Directorprayed the 2007 Omnibus Plan (the “2007 Plan”), #ted?007 Plan became effective
when it was approved by Insight’s stockholderdiatannual meeting on November 12, 2007. On Augis2008, the 2007 Plan was amended
to clarify certain provisions relating to forfeirestrictions and grants of discretionary awandsan-employee directors. On May 18, 2011,
Insight’s stockholders approved the Company’s Aneen2007 Omnibus Plan (the “Amended 2007 Plam"among other changes, increast
number of shares of common stock authorized tesged thereunder to a total of 7,250,000 sharesAftended 2007 Plan is administerec
the Compensation Committee of Insight’s Board akbiors, and, except as provided below, the CongiiemsCommittee has the exclusive
authority to administer the Amended 2007 Plan uditig the power to determine eligibility, the typdsawards to be granted, the price and the
timing of awards. Under the Amended 2007 PlanGbmpensation Committee may delegate some of ite&tit to our Chief Executive
Officer to grant awards to individuals other thadividuals who are subject to the reporting requigats of Section 16(a) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Teammates, ifficel members of the Board of Directors are déditr awards under the Amended
2007 Plan, and consultants and independent cootsagte also eligible if they provide bona fideveegs that are not related to capital raisin
promoting or maintaining a market for the Comparsttsck. The Amended 2007 Plan allows for awardsptibns, stock appreciation rights,
restricted stock, RSUs, performance awards asaseajrants of cash awards. As of December 31, 202h¢ 7,250,000 shares of stock
reserved for awards issued under the Amended 2307 £091,786 shares of stock were available fanty

Accounting for Restricted Stock Un

We issue RSUs as incentives to certain officerstaathmates and as compensation to members of @ud B Directors. We recognize
compensation expense associated with the issudsceto RSUs over the vesting period for each ragmeRSU. The total compensation
expense associated with RSUs represents the vasgs lupon the number of RSUs awarded multiplieth&ylosing price of our common
stock on the date of grant, adjusted for our eg@ro&forfeitures. The number of RSUs to be awanatedier our service-based RSUs is fixed at
the grant date. The number of RSUs ultimately ae@ehder our performance-based RSUs varies basetiether the Company achieves
certain financial results. We record compensatipease each period based on our estimate of thepraisable number of RSUs that will be
issued under the grants of performance-based R®&s¢spients of RSUs do not have voting or divideigtits until the vesting conditions are
satisfied and shares are released.

As of December 31, 2014, total compensation cdate® to nonvested RSUs not yet recognized is $52080, which is expected to be
recognized over the next 1.33 years on a weightedage basis.
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The following table summarizes our RSU activityidgrthe year ended December 31, 2014:

Weighted Average

Number Grant Date Fair Value Fair Value
Nonvested at the beginning of y¢ 811,56! $ 19.91
Grantec 495,40! $ 23.4¢
Vested, including shares withheld to cover te (351,18) $ 19.1( $ 8,371,56/@
Forfeited (66,816 $ 20.8¢
Nonvested at the end of ye 888,96 $ 22.0¢ $23,015,35®)
Expected to ves 814,07( $21,076,27®)

@  The fair value of vested RSUs represents thé pogatax fair value, based on the closing stod&epon the day of vesting, which would
have been received by holders of RSUs had all kalders sold their underlying shares on that dette. aggregate intrinsic value for
vested shares of restricted common stock and R8Lisgd2013 and 2012 was $11,829,527 and $14,112r88gdectively

() The aggregate fair value of the nonvested RSUse&SUs expected to vest represents the totahgriir value, based on our closing
stock price of $25.89 as of December 31, 2014, whiculd have been received by holders of RSUs Hadieh holders sold their
underlying shares on that da

During each of the years in the three-year periatbd December 31, 2014, the RSUs that vesteddarrtates in the United States were
net-share settled such that we withheld shareswaitle equivalent to the teammates’ minimum stayutinited States tax obligation for the
applicable income and other employment taxes amittel the equivalent cash amount to the appraptating authorities. The total shares
withheld during the years ended December 31, 22043 and 2012 of 86,732, 151,521 and 158,231, ctisply/, were based on the value of
the RSUs on their vesting dates as determined byglosing stock price on such dates. For the yeaded December 31, 2014, 2013 and 201
total payments for the employees’ tax obligatianthe taxing authorities were $2,028,000, $3,092 &td $3,288,000, respectively, and are
reflected as a financing activity within the accamping consolidated statements of cash flows. Thesshare settlements had the effect of
repurchases of our common stock as they reducenbtinder of shares that would have otherwise beredas a result of the vesting and did
not represent an expense to us.

Accounting for Stock Optiot

No options were granted and no stock-based compensxpense related to stock options was recodrdeeing the three years ended
December 31, 2014. All previously granted unexegtistock options expired in December 2012.

(11) Impairment Loss on Assets Held for Sale

In November 2014, we relocated our sales and adimative operations that were housed in the prgpkéat we own in Bloomingdale,
lllinois. The property is classified as a held $ate asset, which is included in other currenttasaghe accompanying consolidated balance
sheet as of December 31, 2014. During 2014, outhNamerica operating segment recorded non-caslyekaf $5,178,000, consisting of an
impairment loss of $4,558,000 and accelerated dégiren of $620,000, to reduce the carrying amaidrihe related assets to their estimated
fair value less costs to sell. The estimated fairkat value was derived from Level 2 fair valuelitgp(see Note 15 for a description of the
categories of fair value inputs), which includecuarent market analysis indicating the price perasq foot of previous sale transactions
involving comparable property in the Bloomingdatea The charges are included in selling and adtnétive expenses in the accompanying
consolidated statement of operations for the yeded December 31, 2014.
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(12) Income Taxes

The following table presents the U.S. and foreigmponents of earnings before income taxes ancethted income tax expense (in
thousands):

Earnings before income taxes:

Years Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
u.Ss. $ 89,67¢ $ 95,48 $ 99,97(
Foreign 34,69: 19,04: 44,69¢

$124,37. $114,52: $144,66¢

Income tax expense:

Years Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
Current:
U.S. Federa $27,33: $27,78: $25,31¢
U.S. State and loc: 3,24: 2,662 2,43¢
Foreign 14,32( 9,61 15,17:
44,89 40,05¢ 42,927
Deferred:
U.S. Federa 4,541 4,03¢ 7,78¢
U.S. State and loci 33C 921 (823
Foreign (1,077) (1,515 2,01¢

3,794 3,44¢ 8,97¢
$48,68¢ $43,50! $51,90¢

The following schedule reconciles the differencesMgen the U.S. federal income taxes at the UaButsty rate and our income tax
expense (dollars in thousands):

Years Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012

Expected expense at U.S. statutory rate of 35% $43,53( $40,08: $50,63¢
Change resulting fron

State income tax expense, net of federal incomédaefit 3,41¢ 3,66% 2,08¢

Audits and adjustments, r (18€) (1,730 2,42¢

Change in valuation allowanc 6,471 4,16( 641

Foreign income taxed at different ra (5,309 (2,665 (3,829

Non-deductible compensatic 404 27¢ 48t

Other, ne 362 (282) (549
Income tax expens $48,68¢ $43,50! $51,90¢
Effective tax rate 39.1% 38.(% 35.%

For foreign entities not treated as branches f&. thx purposes, we do not provide for U.S. inctemes on the undistributed earnings of
these subsidiaries as these earnings are reinvastedh the opinion of management, will continodée reinvested indefinitely outside of the
U.S. The undistributed earnings of foreign subsidgathat are deemed to be indefinitely investetdida of the U.S. were approximately
$79,570,000 at December 31, 2014. It is not prabtecto determine the unrecognized deferred téitiaon those earnings.
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The significant components of deferred tax asseddiabilities are as follows (in thousands):

December 31

2014 2013
Deferred tax asset
Goodwill and other intangible $ 53,86¢ $ 59,82¢
Net operating losse 17,43¢ 16,48¢
Foreign tax credit 13,10¢ 12,65
Accruals 7,311 10,24
Accounts receivabl 6,20¢ 6,38¢
Stocl-based compensatic 3,13 2,881
Inventories 2,21¢ 1,83
Deferred revenu 321 567
Other 1,307 32C
Gross deferred tax ass: 104,91: 111,20!
Valuation allowance (28,709 (24,509
Total deferred tax asse 76,201 86,69
Deferred tax liabilities
Property and equipme (4,937 (112,809
Prepaid expenst (20%) (250
Total deferred tax liabilitie (5,139 (12,057
Net deferred tax asse $ 71,06¢ $ 74,644

The net current and non-current portions of detetag assets and liabilities are as follows (inugends):

December 31

2014 2013

Net current deferred tax ass $13,38¢ $16,43¢
Net nor-current deferred tax asst 57,68( 58,20¢
Net deferred tax asse $71,06¢ $74,64+

As of December 31, 2014, we have U.S. state natatipg loss carryforwards (“NOLs") of $681,000 theétl expire between 2015 and
2030. We also have NOLs from various non-U.S. dlicisons of $63,081,000. While the majority of then-U.S. NOLs have no expiration
date, $4,345,000 will expire between 2015 and 2021.

On the basis of currently available information, have provided valuation allowances for certaiowf deferred tax assets where we
believe it is more likely than not that the relatar benefits will not be realized. At December 3014 and 2013, our valuation allowances
totaled $28,709,000 and $24,508,000, respectivepresenting certain U.S. state NOLs, non-U.S. N@ireign depreciation allowances and
foreign tax credits.

We believe it is more likely than not that foreeakincome, including income that may be generasesl r@sult of prudent and feasible tax
planning strategies, together with the tax effeftdeferred tax liabilities, will be sufficient fally recover our remaining deferred tax assets. I
the future, if we determine that realization of teenaining deferred tax assets and the availalfigertain previously paid taxes to be refun
are not more likely than not, we will need to irase our valuation allowances and record additimtalme tax expense.

The following table summarizes the change in tHeat#on allowance (in thousands):

December 31

2014 2013
Valuation allowances at beginning of year $24,50¢ $20,17¢
Increase in income tax exper 6,471 4,16(
Foreign currency translation adjustme (2,270) 172
Valuation allowances at end of ye $28,70¢ $24,50¢
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A net tax benefit of $560,000, $760,000 and $1 038, related to stockased compensation expense under employee stogiaprs wa
applied to stockholders’ equity during the yeardezhDecember 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Various taxing jurisdictions are examining our taturns for certain tax years. Although the outcarfhiax audits cannot be predicted
with certainty, management believes the ultimaselgion of these examinations will not result imaterial adverse effect to our financial
position, results of operations or cash flows.

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, we had approrismn&t,306,000 and $4,546,000, respectively, oécognized tax benefits. Of
these amounts, approximately $336,000 and $364r86pectively, related to accrued interest. A regmtion of the beginning and ending
amounts of unrecognized tax benefits, excludingrast, is as follows (in thousands):

Balance at December 31, 20 $4,18:
Additions for tax positions in prior perio: 93
Additions for tax positions in current peri 497
Subtractions due to foreign currency transla (33
Subtractions due to audit settlements and stakieations (769
Balance at December 31, 20 $3,97(

In the future, if recognized, the liability assdeigwith uncertain tax positions would affect offeetive tax rate. We do not believe there
will be any changes over the next 12 months thatldvbave a material effect on our effective taxerat

Several of our subsidiaries are currently undeitdadtax years 2006 through 2013. Although thmeitig of the resolutions and/or
closures of audits is highly uncertain, it is ra@sdaly possible that the examination phase of thesés may be concluded within the next 12
months which could significantly increase or desectihe balance of our gross unrecognized tax lisnEfdowever, based on the status of the
various examinations in multiple jurisdictions, estimate of the range of reasonably possible outsarannot be made at this time, but the
estimated effect on our income tax expense andarefngs is not expected to be significant.

We, including our subsidiaries, file income taxures in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and manyestatd local and non-U.S. jurisdictions.
In the U.S., federal income tax returns for 2011 2and 2013 remain open to examination. For Uase eind local taxes as well as in ndrs.
jurisdictions, the statute of limitations generailbries between three and ten ye

(13) Market Risk Management

Interest Rate Ris

We have interest rate exposure arising from ownrfaing facilities, which have variable interesegtThese variable interest rates are
affected by changes in short-term interest ratess cWrently do not hedge our interest rate exposure

We do not believe that the effect of reasonablsiiids nearterm changes in interest rates will be materiauofinancial position, resul
of operations and cash flows. Our financing faetitexpose our net earnings to changes in shontitéerest rates since interest rates on the
underlying obligations are variable. We had no am®woutstanding under our revolving facility and. #®0,000 outstanding under our ABS
facility at December 31, 2014. The interest ratahattable to the borrowings under our ABS facilityas 1.07% per annum at December 31,
2014. The change in annual pretax earnings fromatipas resulting from a hypothetical 10% increasdecrease in the highest applicable
interest rate would have been immaterial.

Foreign Currency Exchange Ri

We have foreign currency exchange risk relatetiéatanslation of our foreign subsidiaries’ operatiesults, assets and liabilities (see
Note 1 for a description of our Foreign Curren@efcy). We also maintain cash accounts denominitedrrencies other than the functio
currency, which expose us to foreign exchangemateements. Remeasurement of these cash balanadts regains/losses that are also
reported as a separate component of non-
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operating (income) expense. We monitor our foreigmency exposure and selectively enter into fodnetchange contracts to mitigate risk
associated with certain non-functional currency etary assets and liabilities related to foreignaheimated payables, receivables and cash
balances. Transaction gains and losses resulting fion-functional currency assets and liabilities @ffset by gains and losses on forward
contracts in non-operating (income) expense, netimconsolidated statements of operations. Thepaoyndoes not have a significant
concentration of credit risk with any single couptaty.

The Company generally enters into forward contradtls maturities of one month or less. The deriedientered into during 2014 were
not designated as hedges. The following derivatorgracts were entered into during the year endsze®ber 31, 2014, and remained open
and outstanding at December 31, 2014. All U.S.adahd foreign currency amounts (British PoundsliSteand Euros) are presented in
thousands.

Buy Buy
Foreign Currency GBP EUR
Foreign Amoun 6,365 8,022
USD Equivalen $10,000 $10,00C
Weighted Average Maturit Lessthan 1 mon Less than 1 mon

The Company does not enter into derivative cordrimtspeculative or trading purposes. The faingalf all forward contracts at
December 31, 2014 was a liability of $376,000.

(14) Derivative Financial Instruments

We use derivatives to partially offset our exposeréiuctuations in certain foreign currencies. Datives are recorded at fair value on
balance sheet and gains or losses resulting franggs in fair value of the derivative are recordedently in income. The Company does not
designate our hedges for hedge accounting, anfbreign currency derivative instruments are nofesctito any master netting arrangements
with our counterparties.

We use foreign exchange forward contracts to nigigsk associated with certain non-functional enoy assets and liabilities from
changes in exchange rate movements. Our non-funatcurrency assets and liabilities are primardiated to foreign currency denominated
payables, receivables, and cash balances. Thgrocairency forward contracts, carried at fair ealiypically have a maturity of one month or
less. We currently enter into approximately fouefgn exchange forward contracts per month witlearage notional value of $8,476,000
an average maturity of approximately ten days.

The counterparties associated with our foreign amgke forward contracts are large creditworthy consiakbanks. The derivatives
transacted with these institutions are short iration and, therefore, we do not consider countgyamcentration and non-performance to be
material risks.

The following table summarizes our derivative fin@hinstruments as of December 31, 2014 and 2BiB¢usands):

December 31, 201 December 31, 201
Asset Liability Asset Liability
Derivatives Derivatives Derivatives Derivatives
Derivatives Not Designatec
as Hedging Instruments Balance Sheet Locatior Fair Value Fair Value Fair Value Fair Value
Foreign exchange forward contract: Other current asse $ — $ — $ 91 $ —
Foreign exchange forward contracts Accrued expenses and other
current liabilities — 37¢€ — —
Total $ — $ 37¢ $ 91 $ —
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The following table summarizes the effect of ouritiive financial instruments on our results oeogtions during the years ended
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 (in thousands):

Derivatives Not Designated a Location of Loss (Gain) Recognized il Amount of Loss (Gain) Recognize«
Hedging Instruments Earnings on Derivatives in Earnings on Derivatives
Year Ended December 31
2014 2013 2012
Foreign exchange forward contracts Net foreign currency exchange loss (gz $ 20t $ (399 $ 81t
Total $ 20t $ (399 $ 81:

(15) Fair Value Measurements

The following table summarizes the valuation of fareign exchange derivative financial instrumentghe following three categories as
of December 31, 2014 and 2013 (in thousands):

Level 1: Quoted market prices in active marketddentical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: Observable market based inputs or unobsésinputs that are corroborated by market data.

Level 3: Unobservable inputs that are not corroteatdy market data.

December 31

Balance Sheet Classificatic Category 2014 2013
Level1 $— $—
Other current asse Level 2 — 91
Level3 — = —
£ $9
Level1 $— $—
Accrued expenses and other current liabili Level 2 37¢ —
Level3 — = —
$37€ $—

We have elected to use the income approach to #adutreign exchange derivatives, using observablel 2 market expectations at
measurement date and standard valuation techriguasvert future amounts to a single present vafueunt assuming that participants are
motivated, but not compelled, to transact. Levits for the valuations are limited to quotedesi for similar assets or liabilities in active
markets and inputs other than quoted prices tlablservable for the asset or liability (specificAlBOR rates, foreign exchange rates, and
foreign exchange forward points). Midarket pricing is used as a practical expedientdmrvalue measurements. Fair value measuremean
asset or liability must reflect the nonperformarisk of the entity and the counterparty. Thereftine,impact of the counterparty’s
creditworthiness when in an asset position andCibrapany’s creditworthiness when in a liability gasi has also been factored into the fair
value measurement of the derivative instrumentsdighehot have a material impact on the fair valtithese derivative instruments. Both the
counterparty and the Company are expected to aentimperform under the contractual terms of tiserimments.

As of December 31, 2014, we have no non-finanaséts or liabilities that are measured and recoatiémir value on a recurring basis,
and our other financial assets or liabilities galtgrconsist of cash and cash equivalents, accaantsvable, accounts payable and accrued
expenses and other current liabilities. The estohé&ir values of our cash and cash equivalenteoappate their carrying values and are
determined based on quoted prices in active maféetdentical assets (Level 1). The fair valueshaf other financial assets and liabilities are
based on the values that would be received oripad orderly transaction between market partidpamd approximate their carrying values
due to their nature and short duration.

(16) Benefit Plans

We adopted a defined contribution benefit plan (Defined Contribution Plan”) for our U.S. teammsitghich complies with section 401
(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Company plesvia discretionary match to all participants wleocte401(k) contributions pursuant to the
Defined Contribution Plan. The discretionary matctivided to participants is equivalent to 25% giaaticipant’s pre-tax contributions up to a
maximum of 6% of eligible

62



Table of Contents

INSIGHT ENTERPRISES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continu ed)

compensation per pay period. Additionally, we offeveral defined contribution benefit plans to ammates outside of the United States.
These plans and their related terms vary by coumtstal consolidated contribution expense undesdhmans was $7,083,000, $6,923,000 anc
$6,579,000 for the years ended December 31, 2@148 a@nd 2012, respectively.

(17) Share Repurchase Program:

In February 2013, October 2013 and October 2014Board of Directors authorized share repurchasgnams of $50,000,000,
$50,000,000 and $25,000,000, respectively. Duttiegyear ended December 31, 2014, we purchased,22B4éhares of our common stock on
the open market at a total cost of approximately,$83,000 (an average price of $23.54 per shaw@)n®the year ended December 31, 2013
we purchased 3,000,038 shares of our common stottkeoopen market at a total cost of approximé&bély, 774,000 (an average price of
$19.26 per share). All shares repurchased weredeths of December 31, 2014, approximately $16@%Bremains available for repurchases
of our common stock. Subsequent to December 34,281 February 11, 2015, we announced that ourdBofbDirectors had authorized the
repurchase of an additional $75,000,000 of our comstock. Any share repurchases may be made ap#remarket, through block trades,
through 10b5-1 plans or otherwise. The amount afehpurchased and the timing of the purchasedb®iflased on working capital
requirements, general business conditions and &dhtors. We intend to retire the repurchased share

(18) Commitments and Contingencies

Contractual

In the ordinary course of business, we issue p@doce bonds to secure our performance under cedatracts or state tax requireme
As of December 31, 2014, we had an immaterial amoperformance bonds outstanding. These bondssuwed on our behalf by a surety
company on an unsecured basis; however, if thaysaoenpany is ever required to pay out under thedbpwe have contractually agreed to
reimburse the surety company.

Employment Contracts and Severance P

We have employment contracts with, and plans cagegertain officers and management teammates wvitdeh severance payments
would become payable in the event of specified irgations without cause or terminations under certéicumstances after a change in con
In addition, vesting of outstanding nonvested R®8idsld accelerate following a change in controkdf/erance payments under the current
employment agreements or plan payments were tabepayable, the severance payments would geneaaigye from three to twenty-four
months of salary.

Indemnifications

From time to time, in the ordinary course of busg)ave enter into contractual arrangements undeahwhe agree to indemnify either «
clients or thirdparty service providers from certain losses inairsating to services performed on our behalboidsses arising from defin
events, which may include litigation or claims tilg to past performance. These arrangements iachut are not limited to, the
indemnification of our clients for certain claimsséng out of our performance under our sales @t the indemnification of our landlords
certain claims arising from our use of leased féed and the indemnification of the lenders thatvde our credit facilities for certain claims
arising from their extension of credit to us. Sumtlemnification obligations may not be subject taximum loss clauses.

Management believes that payments, if any, refetédese indemnifications are not probable at Déeagr31, 2014. Accordingly, we
have not accrued any liabilities related to suctemnifications in the accompanying consolidatedririal statements.

We have entered into separate indemnification agea¢s with our executive officers and with eaclowaf directors. These agreements
require us, among other requirements, to indensifh officers and directors against expenses (@induattorneys’ fees), judgments and
settlements paid by such individual in connectiatin\eny action arising out of such individual'stsiaor service as our executive officer or
director (subject to exceptions such as wherentiwidual failed to act in good faith or in a mantige individual reasonably believed to be in,
or not opposed to, the best interests of the Cogjpard to advance expenses incurred by such individith respect to which such individual
may be entitled to indemnification by us. Therermogending legal proceedings that involve the imaiéication of any of the Company’s
directors or officers.

63



Table of Contents

INSIGHT ENTERPRISES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continu ed)

Contingencies Related to Third-Party Review

From time to time, we are subject to potentialmkiand assessments from third parties. We aresalgect to various governmental,
client and vendor audits. We continually assesshner not such claims have merit and warrantusdciWhere appropriate, we accrue
estimates of anticipated liabilities in our condatied financial statements. Such estimates areuoj change and may affect our results of
operations and our cash flows.

Legal Proceeding

We are party to various legal proceedings arisindpé ordinary course of business, including pexfee payment claims asserted in cl
bankruptcy proceedings, indemnification claimsirekof alleged infringement of patents, trademackgyrights and other intellectual propt
rights, claims of alleged non-compliance with cantrprovisions and claims related to alleged viofet of laws and regulations. Many of these
proceeding are at preliminary stages, and manlesfe proceedings seek an indeterminate amountradgiss. We regularly evaluate the statu:
of the legal proceedings in which we are involvedssess whether a loss is probable or theree@smmable possibility that a loss, or an
additional loss, may have been incurred and deterifiaccruals are appropriate. If accruals areapptopriate, we further evaluate each legal
proceeding to assess whether an estimate of peds#s or range of possible loss can be made $otadiure. Although litigation is inherently
unpredictable, we believe that we have adequatésions for any probable and estimable losses. pbissible, nevertheless, that our
consolidated financial position, results of operasi or liquidity could be materially and adversaffected in any particular period by the
resolution of a legal proceeding. Legal expenskda® to defense, negotiations, settlements, rslargl advice of outside legal counsel are
expensed as incurred.

In August 2010, in connection with an investigatiming conducted by the United States Departmedtstice, our subsidiary, Calence,
LLC (“Calence”), received a subpoena from the @ffid the Inspector General of the Federal Commtinita Commission requesting
documents and information related to the expenglitdifunds under the E-Rate program, which provatdsols and libraries with discounts to
obtain affordable telecommunications and intericeeas and related hardware and software. The dfat$ie investigation was a qui tam law:
filed in the United States District Court for theushern District of Texas by a contractor who pd®d services to the former owners of
Calence. The lawsuit, designated United StategleShupe v. Cisco Systems, Inc., Avnet, Inc. aatée, LLC, alleged violations of the
False Claims Act and sought various remedies imoutieble damages and civil penalties. An appeahfa District Court order denying
motions to dismiss was filed with the Fifth Circuand in July 2014 the Fifth Circuit reversed thistiict Court’s decision and remanded the
case to the District Court for further proceedingsasistent with its decision regarding E-Rate ctaimder the False Claims Act. In August
2014, the District Court dismissed the case ieiitirety. During the years ended December 31, 2042012, pursuant to the Company’s
rights under the Calence acquisition agreementsitemnification for losses that arose out of oulesl from this matter, we recovered
approximately $390,000 and $2,000,000, respectiwéliegal costs incurred in previous periods. Nwants were recovered during the year
ended December 31, 2013.

The Company is not involved in any pending or tterad legal proceedings that it believes couldaralsly be expected to have a
material adverse effect on its financial conditicesults of operations or liquidity.

(19) Related Party Transaction

In December 2014, we sold a Company-owned 21,3u&redeet facility (and its furnishings) that pimvsly served as executive offices
and administration space in Tempe, Arizona to sttlimothy A. Crown, the Chair of our Board of 8dtors, serves as trustee of that trust.
Previous to the sale, for approximately twelve rhenthe facility had been leased to another emtityhich Mr. Crown has an interest. Annual
rent was not material and was based on a reviesubyputside real estate brokerage adviser of caapparentals in the relevant market area.

The facility was sold for $2,500,000, the full apigal value based on two property valuations prexibly independent real estate brok
The Audit Committee approved the sale of the figgiks required under the Company’s Code of EthickBusiness Practices and other
applicable policies, practices and requirements. Company was not required to pay a commissiorce@ids from the sale of $2,472,000, net
of related closing costs and fees, were collegiddldcember 2014, and no amounts related to thisdction remain outstanding as of
December 31, 2014. The Company recognized a ga&$8%6,000 on the sale of the facility.
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(20) Supplemental Financial Information

A summary of additions and deductions related #¢oatftowance for doubtful accounts receivable ferybars ended December 31, 2014,
2013 and 2012 follows (in thousands):

Balance a
Beginning
Balance at
of Year Additions Deductions End of Year
Allowance for doubtful accounts receivak
Year ended December 31, 2( $ 19,90¢ $ 4,40¢ $ (4,98)) $ 19,33¢
Year ended December 31, 2( $ 18,90¢ $ 4,69¢ $ (3,699 $ 19,90¢
Year ended December 31, 2C $ 18,801 $ 4,19¢ $ (4,099 $ 18,90t
(21) Cash Flows
Cash payments for interest on indebtedness andpegshents for taxes on income were as followsh@usands):
Years Ended December 31
2014 2013 2012
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow informat
Cash paid during the year for inter $ 2,43¢ $ 2,70( $ 3,26¢
Cash paid during the year for income taxes, ne¢foinds $51,71! $37,87. $43,93¢

Non-cash investing activities for the year endedd»eber 31, 2014 included $1,668,000 of capital pejteres in accounts payable,
representing additions purchased at period enddiuet paid for in cash. Non-cash capital expemdg in accounts payable for the years
ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 were immaterial.
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(22) Seament and Geographic Informatior

We operate in three reportable geographic operatggents: North America; EMEA; and APAC. Our affgs in North America and
select countries in EMEA include IT hardware, saiftevand services. Our offerings in the remainderwwfEMEA segment and in APAC are
mostly software and select software-related sesvilset sales by product or service type for Nornthetica, EMEA and APAC were as follows
for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 an2l @®thousands):

North America
Years Ended December 31

Sales Mi» 2014 2013 2012

Hardware $2,175,39 $2,130,00! $2,238,36:
Software 1,174,23. 1,129,11. 1,177,533
Services 213,09! 211,64( 210,45t

$3,562,72 $3,470,76! $3,626,35

EMEA
Years Ended December 31
Sales Miy 2014 2013 2012
Hardware $ 572,49: $ 504,00¢ $ 540,88t
Software 930,76 930,90 894,94
Services 36,71 34,26¢ 27,77

$1,539,96i $1,469,17. $1,463,60

APAC
Years Ended December 31
Sales Mi» 2014 2013 2012
Hardware $ 12,46 $ 6,222 $ 4,82(
Software 193,53: 191,35! 199,23¢
Services 7,53¢ 6,83¢ 7,41¢

$ 213,53 $ 204,41 $ 21147

The method for determining what information regagdoperating segments, products and services, ggligrareas of operation and
major clients to report is based upon the “managemgproach,” or the way that management organiEsperating segments within a
company, for which separate financial informatismevaluated regularly by the Chief Operating Decisflaker (“CODM”) in deciding how to
allocate resources. Our CODM is our Chief Execu@fficer.

All significant intercompany transactions are ehatied upon consolidation, and there are no diffmsfetween the accounting policies
used to measure profit and loss for our segments @ consolidated basis. Net sales are defineétasales to external clients. None of our
clients exceeded ten percent of consolidated es $ar the year ended December 31, 2014.

A portion of our operating segments’ selling anchadstrative expenses arise from shared servicdgrdrastructure that we have
historically provided to them in order to realiz=oaomies of scale and to use resources efficiefitigse expenses, collectively identified as
corporate charges, include senior management egpeinsernal audit, legal, tax, insurance servitressury and other corporate infrastructure
expenses. Charges are allocated to our operatiymesds, and the allocations have been determinedbasis that we considered to be a
reasonable reflection of the utilization of sergiggovided to or benefits received by the operadiegments.
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The tables below present information about our mate operating segments as of and for the yeatsdeDecember 31, 2014, 2013 and
2012 (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31, 201

North
America EMEA APAC Consolidatec
Net sales $3,562,721  $1,539,96: $213,53! $5,316,22'
Costs of goods sol 3,085,27! 1,340,05: 178,49! 4,603,82
Gross profit 477,44 199,91¢ 35,04( 712,40:
Operating expense
Selling and administrative expen: 372,93t 178,81t 25,21t 576,96
Severance and restructuring exper 971 3,35¢ 10€ 4,43:
Earnings from operatior $ 10354( $ 17,74« $ 9,71¢ $ 131,00:
Total asset $1,840,24: $ 575,84  $117,44  $2,533,53*
Year Ended December 31, 201
North
America EMEA APAC Consolidatec
Net sales $3,470,76!  $1,469,17. $204,41! $5,144,34
Costs of goods sol 2,998,57. 1,277,85 169,03 4,445,46
Gross profit 472,18 191,32« 35,37¢ 698,88
Operating expense
Selling and administrative expen: 362,38( 178,01. 24,51¢ 564,91(
Severance and restructuring exper 3,32¢ 9,41°¢ — 12,74(
Earnings from operatior $ 106,48: $ 3,897 $10,85¢ $ 121,23
Total asset $1,645,39: $ 577,44t $125,320 $2,348,16*
Year Ended December 31, 201
North
America EMEA APAC Consolidatec
Net sales $3,626,35  $1,463,60° $211,47° $5,301,44
Costs of goods sol 3,147,83! 1,259,76. 174,16t 4,581,76!
Gross profit 478,52. 203,84! 37,30¢ 719,67!
Operating expense
Selling and administrative expen: 359,63¢ 179,97¢ 25,59: 565,20t
Severance and restructuring exper 2,83¢ 3,48: — 6,311
Earnings from operatior $ 116,05« $ 20,38 $ 11,71¢ $ 148,15
Total asset $1,749,891 $ 538,96f $130,67¢ $2,419,53*

* Consolidated total assets do not reflect intenpany eliminations and corporate assets of $585)003,$480,445,000 and $418,028,000 at
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respecti
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The following is a summary of our geographic né¢ésand long-lived assets, consisting of propenty @quipment, net (in thousands):

United States Foreign Total

2014

Net sales $3,368,79: $1,947,43 $5,316,22!
Total lon¢-lived asset: $ 70,43¢ $ 33,74 $ 104,18:
2013

Net sales $3,281,40: $1,862,94. $5,144,34
Total lon¢-lived asset: $ 91,76¢ $ 41,05 $ 132,82
2012

Net sales $3,398,511 $1,902,92! $5,301,44
Total lon¢-lived asset: $ 104,43: $ 39,08 $ 143,51

Foreign net sales and total long-lived assets sumathabove for 2014, 2013 and 2012 include netssaihd net property and equipment
of $746,123,000 and $19,522,000; $656,559,000 28¢5687,000; and $686,047,000 and $23,616,000, cteely, attributed to the United
Kingdom. Net sales by geographic area are presdmtedtributing net sales to external customergt@as the domicile of the selling location.

We recorded the following pre-tax amounts, by ofiegasegment, for depreciation and amortizatiorthenaccompanying consolidated

financial statements (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
North America $31,36¢ $31,81* $32,457
EMEA 8,32¢ 8,60¢ 7,807
APAC 88C 1,121 917
Total $40,57(  $41,54«  $41,17

(23) Selected Quarterly Financial Information (unaudited)

The following table sets forth selected unauditedsolidated quarterly financial information for thears ended December 31, 2014 and

2013 (in thousands, except per share data):

Quarters Ended

Dec. 31, Sept. 30, June 30, Mar. 31, Dec. 31, Sept. 30, June 30, Mar. 31,
2014 2014 2014 2014 2013 2013 2013 2013
Net sales $1,446,13. $1,237,66/ $1,417,89 $1,214,531 $1,395,15! $1,151,021 $1,416,54 $1,181,62
Costs of goods sol 1,263,89' 1,065,84: 1,223,29: 1,050,78 1,214,00: 982,35. 1,225,621 1,023,48
Gross profit 182,23¢ 171,82( 194,59¢ 163,74! 181,15! 168,66¢ 190,92 158,13
Operating expense
Selling and administrative
expense: 143,59: 143,13: 147,81( 142,42! 140,79¢ 139,96! 143,15¢ 140,98t
Severance and restructuring
expense: 3,47¢ 30¢ 31C 337 4,41% 2,42¢ 3,171 2,73:
Earnings from operatior 35,167 28,37¢ 46,47¢ 20,97¢ 35,94 26,27¢ 44,59¢ 14,41°
Non-operating (income) expens
Interest incomi (251) (229) (333 (249) (259 (322 (337) (312
Interest expens 1,46¢ 1,594 1,501 1,45¢ 1,56( 1,60: 1,55¢ 1,61¢
Net foreign currency exchan
(gain) loss (86€) 23¢ 461 49¢€ 44k 474 (88€) 161
Other expense, n 28€ 36¢ 442 24¢ 33z 364 34z 374
Earnings before income
taxes 34,53 26,40¢ 44,407 19,02t 33,86¢ 24,16( 43,92 12,57¢
Income tax expens 15,05: 9,00¢ 17,15¢ 7,47¢ 13,45¢ 9,13t 17,41( 3,50(
Net earnings $ 1948! $ 17,40: $ 27,24¢ $ 1155 $ 2040, $ 15,02 $§ 26,51 $ 9,07¢
Net earnings per shai
Basic $ 0.4¢ $ 04z $ 0.67 $ 0.2¢ $ 0.4¢ $ 0.3 $ 0.6z $ 0.2(
Diluted $ 0.4¢ $ 04z $ 0.6€ $ 0.2¢ $ 0.4t $ 0.3t $ 0.6z $ 0.2C
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants orcéenting and Financial Disclosure
Not applicable.

ltem 9A. Controls and Procedures
(&) Managemen's Annual Report on Internal Control Over FinancidReporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finah@aorting (as such term is defined
under Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) of the Seasifixchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “ExchAontf®). Our management, including
our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial i0#fr, conducted an evaluation of the effectiveredssur internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2014. In making thiseasment, our management used the criteria sstadblininternal Control — Integrated
Framework (1992 issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatafrthe Treadway Commission (“COSONanagement has conclud
that the Company maintained effective internal mrdver financial reporting as of December 31,£20ased on the criteria established in
COSO'’s Internal Control — Integrated Framework.

KPMG LLP, the independent registered public acciognfirm that audited the Consolidated Financiat&ments in Part I, Item 8 of this
report, has issued an attestation report on thep@amis internal control over financial reportinga<December 31, 2014.

(b) Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Repting

There was no change in our internal control oveairitial reporting (as such term is defined in Ra@s-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the
Exchange Act) during the quarter ended Decembe2@14 that has materially affected, or is reasonbkely to materially affect, our internal
control over financial reporting.

(c) Disclosure Controls and Procedure

We maintain disclosure controls and proceduresléfined in Rule 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under tkeh&nge Act). Our Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, ddttoe end of the period covered by this report)eatzd the effectiveness of our disclosure
controls and procedures and determined that agoéiber 31, 2014 our disclosure controls and proesdvere effective to ensure that
information required to be disclosed by us in réptrat we file or submit under the Exchange Aceiorded, processed, summarized and
reported within the time periods specified in tH&CS rules and forms and that such informatiorcisumulated and communicated to our
management, including our Chief Executive Officed &£hief Financial Officer, as appropriate to allinely decisions regarding required
disclosure.

(d) Inherent Limitations of Disclosure Controls and lernal Control Over Financial Reporting

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢tmisstatements. Projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods agect to risks that controls may become inadegbatause of changes in conditions, or that
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

Iltem 9B. Other Information

Not applicable.

PART IlI

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govente

The information required by this item can be foimdur definitive Proxy Statement relating to o@18 Annual Meeting of Stockholders
(our “Proxy Statement”) and is incorporated hetgireference.

Item 11. Executive Compensatio

The information required by this item can be foimdur Proxy Statement and is incorporated hergireference.
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Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners aitnagement and Related Stockholder Matt:

The information required by this item can be foumdur Proxy Statement and is incorporated hergireference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, aditector Independence
The information required by this item can be foimdur Proxy Statement and is incorporated hergireference.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Servict
The information required by this item can be foimdur Proxy Statement and is incorporated hergireference.

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedule
(8) Financial Statements and Schedule

The Consolidated Financial Statements of Insighegpmises, Inc. and subsidiaries and the relatgabRe of Independent Registered
Public Accounting Firm are filed herein as settiarhder Part I, Item 8 of this report.

Financial statement schedules have been omitted #irey are either not required, not applicableherinformation is otherwise included
in the Consolidated Financial Statements or ndteseto.

(b) Exhibits

The exhibits list in the Index to Exhibits immedit following the signature page is incorporateceieby reference as the list of exhit
required as part of this report.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 16&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatyp authorized.

INSIGHT ENTERPRISES, INC

By /s/ Kenneth T. Lamneck
Kenneth T. Lamnec
Chief Executive Office

Dated: February 20, 2015

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bbélpthe following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities and ord#tes indicated.

Signature Title Date

/s/ Kenneth T. Lamneck President, Chief Executive Officer a February 20, 201
Kenneth T. Lamnec Director
/s/ Glynis A. Bryan Chief Financial Office February 20, 201
Glynis A. Bryan rincipal financial officer’

y Yy p p )
/s/ Dana A. Leighty Vice President, Financ February 20, 201
Dana A. Leighty (principal accounting officer
/sl Timothy A. Crown* Chairman of the Boar February 20, 201
Timothy A. Crown
/s/ Richard E. Allen* Director February 20, 201
Richard E. Aller
/s/ Bennett Dorrance* Director February 20, 201
Bennett Dorranc
/sl Michael M. Fisher* Director February 20, 201
Michael M. Fishel
/sl Larry A. Gunning* Director February 20, 201
Larry A. Gunning
/s/ Anthony A. Ibargien* Director February 20, 201
Anthony A. Ibargiet
/s/ Robertson C. Jones* Director February 20, 201
Robertson C. Jon¢
/sl Kathleen S. Pushor* Director February 20, 201

Kathleen S. Pushc

* By: /s/ Steven R. Andrew:s
Steven R. Andrews, Attorney in Fac!
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Exhibit
Number
3.1

3.2

4.1
10.1@
10.2@

10.3@

10.4@

10.5@)

10.6@

10.7@

10.8@

10.9@

10.10

INSIGHT ENTERPRISES, INC.
EXHIBITS TO FORM 10-K

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014
Commission File No. 000-25092

Exhibit Description

Composite Certificate of Incorporation of Insightt&rprises,
Inc.

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Insight Enterprises
Specimen Common Stock Certifice

Form of Indemnification Agreeme

Amended Insight Enterprises, Inc. 2007 Omnibus Plan

Executive Management Separation Plan effectivef as o
January 1, 200

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between
Insight Enterprises, Inc. and Glynis A. Bryan datsdf
January 1, 200

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between
Insight Enterprises, Inc. and Steven R. Andrewsdlas of
January 1, 200

Executive Employment Agreement between Insight
Enterprises, Inc. and Kenneth T. Lamneck, dateaf as
December 14, 20C

Employment Agreement between Insight Enterpriges, dnc
Michael P. Guggemos, dated as of November 1, ;

Offer of employment letter to Michael P. Guggenaested
September 28, 201

Employment Agreement between Insight Enterprises, dnc
Steven W. Dodenhoff, dated as of January 30, :

Employment Agreement between Insight Enterpriges, dnc
Dana A. Leighty, dated as of March 2, 2(
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Incorporated by Reference

Form

10-K

8-K
S1
1C-K

Proxy
Statemer

10-Q

8-K

8-K

10-K

10-K

10-K

10-K

10-K

Exhibit Filing/Effective Filed
File No. Number Date Herewith

000-2509: 3.1 February 17, 20C
00C-2509: 3.2 May 19, 2014

33-86142 4.1 January 24, 199
00C-2509: 10.1 July 26, 2007

0002509z Annex A April 4, 2011

000-2509: 10.5 November 7, 20C
000-2509: 10.3 January 7, 2009
000-2509: 104 January 7, 2009
000-2509: 10.24 February 25, 201
000-2509: 10.16 February 23, 201
000-2509: 10.17 February 23, 201
000-2509: 10.16 February 24, 201
000-2509: 10.12 February 22, 201
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INSIGHT ENTERPRISES, INC.
EXHIBITS TO FORM 10-K (continued)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014
Commission File No. 000-25092

Incorporated by Reference

Exhibit Exhibit Filing/Effective Filed
Number Exhibit Description Form File No. Number Date Herewith
10.11@ Managing Director Service Agreement dated OctolSe2R13 8-K 0002509: 10.1 October 30, 2013
between Insight Technology Solutions GmbH and Waoify
Ebermanr

10.12 Receivables Purchase Agreement dated as of Dec&hp2002 10-K 0002509: 10.38 March 27, 2003
among Insight Receivables, LLC, Insight Enterpriges., Jupiter
Securitization Corporation, Bank One NA, and theties party
thereto from time to time as financial institutic

10.13 Amended and Restated Receivables Sale Agreemett datof 10-Q 0002509: 10.1 November 13, 20(
September 3, 2003 by and among Insight Direct US&,and
Insight Public Sector, Inc. as originators, andghsReceivables,
LLC, as buyel

10.14 Amendment No. 1 to Receivables Purchase Agreenaetichs of  10-Q 00025092 10.2 November 13, 20(
September 3, 20C

10.15 Amendment No. 2 to Receivables Purchase Agreenaeatichs of  10-K 0002509z 10.42 March 11, 2004
December 23, 2003 among Insight Receivables, Lh€ight
Enterprises, Inc. and Jupiter Securitization Caafion, Bank One
NA

10.16 Amendment No. 5 to Receivables Purchase Agreenaetichs of 10-Q 0002509: 10.4 May 9, 2005
March 25, 200!

10.17 Amendment No. 6 to Receivables Purchase Agreenatetids of 8-K 0002509: 10.1 December 22, 20(
December 19, 20C

10.18 Amendment No. 7 to Receivables Purchase Agreenatetids of 8-K 0002509: 10.2  September 8, 2006
September 7, 20C

10.19 Amendment No. 9 to Receivables Purchase Agreenatatigs of 8-K 0002509: 10.3 September 23, 20
September 17, 20(

10.20 Amendment No. 11 and Joinder Agreement to Recedga®lrchase 10-Q 0002509: 10.1 August 6, 2009
Agreement dated as of July 24, 2(
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10.22

10.23

10.24

10.25

INSIGHT ENTERPRISES, INC.

EXHIBITS TO FORM 10-K (continued)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

Commission File No. 000-25092

Exhibit Description

Amendment No. 12 to Receivables Purchase Agreedaet as of
July 1, 2010 among Insight Receivables, LLC, Inskghterprises,
Inc., the Purchasers and Managing Agents partgtbheand
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. (successor by mergeaii Bne, NA
(Main Office Chicago)), as agent for the Purcha

Omnibus Amendment and Joinder to Receivables Psecha
Agreement, dated as of April 26, 2012, among IrtskRgceivables,
LLC, Insight Enterprises, Inc., Insight Direct USIA¢., Insight
Public Sector, Inc., the purchasers and managiagtagarty thereto
and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as A¢

Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dadeaf April 26
2012, by and among Insight Enterprises, Inc., Imsknterprises
B.V., Insight Direct (UK) Ltd., as borrowers, JPMan Chase Ban
N.A., as administrative agent, Wells Fargo Banktidieal
Association, as syndication agent, and the lenplery theretc

Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated Aprdf26, 2012
by and among Calence, LLC, Insight Direct USA, laed Insight
Public Sector, Inc., as Resellers, Castle Pine#t&ap.C, as
administrative agent, Wells Fargo Capital Finahde:, as collatere
agent, syndication agent and administrative agemt,the lenders
party theretc

Omnibus Amendment, dated as of June 25, 2014, amngight
Receivables, LLC, Insight Enterprises, Inc., InsiDirect USA, Inc.
Insight Public Sector, Inc., the purchasers andageny agents party
thereto and Wells Fargo Bank, National Associataansuccessor
agent
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Form File No. Number Date Herewith
10Q 0002509: 10.1 November 4, 201
8-K 0002509 10.3 May 2, 2012
8-K 0002509 10.1 May 2, 2012
8-K  000-2509: 10.2 May 2, 2012
8-K  000-2509: 10.1 July 1, 2014
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INSIGHT ENTERPRISES, INC.
EXHIBITS TO FORM 10-K (continued)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014
Commission File No. 000-25092

Incorporated by Reference

Exhibit Exhibit Filing/Effective Filed
Number Exhibit Description Form File No. Number Date Herewith
21 Subsidiaries of Insight Enterprises, | X
23.1 Consent of KPMG LLF X
24.1 Power of Attorney for Timothy A Crown dated Febrpad, X
2015
24.2 Power of Attorney for Richard E. Allen dated Felbyual, X
2015
24.3 Power of Attorney for Bennett Dorrance dated Felyrdd, X
2015
24.4 Power of Attorney for Michael M. Fisher dated Fedyull, X
2015
24.5 Power of Attorney for Larry A. Gunning dated Febgual, X
2015
24.6 Power of Attorney for Anthony A. Ibargiien dated Fetry 11 X
2015
24.7 Power of Attorney for Robertson C. Jones dated treiyrll, X
2015
24.8 Power of Attorney for Kathleen S. Pushor dated &abyr 11, X
2015
31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant$ecurities X
and Exchange Act Rule 1-14
31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant$ecurities X
and Exchange Act Rule 1-14
32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chigihancial X

Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, As Addp
Pursuant To Section 906 of the Sarbi-Oxley Act of 200z

101 Interactive data files pursuant to Rule 405 of Ragjon S-T X

(1) We have entered into a separate indemnificatgmneement with each of the following directors ardcutive officers that differ only in
names and dates: Richard E. Allen, Steven R. Arglr@Mynis A. Bryan, Timothy A. Crown, Steven W. othoff, Bennett Dorrance,
Wolfgang Ebermann, Michael M. Fisher, Michael Pggemos, Larry A. Gunning, Anthony A. Ibarglien, Hheke Johnson, Robertson
Jones, Kenneth T. Lamneck, Dana A. Leighty and KathS. Pushor. Pursuant to the instructions acaagipg Iltem 601 of Regulation
S-K, the Registrant is filing the form of such indefioation agreemen

(2) Management contract or compensatory plan or arragge
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SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT

SUBSIDIARY

Action Computer Supplies Limited (Dormant)
Action Ltd. (Dormant)

Calence, LLC

Calence Physical Security Solutions, LLC
Computers by Post Limited (Dormant)
Docufile Limited (Dormant)

DSI Data Systems International Limited (Dormant)
Ensynch s.r.o.

Frasier Associates plc (Dormant

Inmac GmbH

Insight Australia Holdings Pty Ltd

Insight Canada Holdings, Inc.

Insight Canada Inc.

Insight Consulting Services, LLC

Insight Data Technologies Ltd (Dormant)
Insight Deutschland GmbH & Ko KG (Dormant)
Insight Development Corp Limited (Dormant)
Insight Direct (GB) Limited

Insight Direct (UK) Limited

Insight Direct Canada, Inc.

Insight Direct Services Limited (Dormant)
Insight Direct USA, Inc.

Insight Direct Worldwide, Inc.

Insight Enterprises Australia Pty Limited
Insight Enterprises BV

Insight Enterprises CV

Insight Enterprises UK, Ltd.

Insight Enterprises Holdings BV

Insight Enterprises Hong Kong

Insight Enterprises Netherlands BV

Insight Enterprises (NZ) Limited

Insight Enterprises (Shanghai) Co. Ltd
Insight Holding (Deutschland) GmbH (Dormant)
Insight Marketing GmbH (Dormant)

Insight Networking Solutions (UK) Ltd

Insight North America, Inc.

Insight Public Sector, Inc.

Insight Receivables Holding, LLC

Insight Receivables, LLC

Insight Stadium Services, LLC (Dormant)
Insight Technology Solutions AB

Insight Technology Solutions AG

Insight Technology Solutions Ap<

Insight Technology Solutions BVBA (Dormant)
Insight Technology Solutions GmbH

Insight Technology Solutions GmbH

Insight Technology Solutions, Inc.

Exhibit 21

STATE OR OTHER
JURISDICTION OF
INCORPORATION OR
ORGANIZATION

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Delaware
Arizona
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Czech Republic
United Kingdom
Germany
Australia
Arizona
Ontario
Arizona
Ireland
Germany
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Canada
United Kingdom
lllinois
Arizona
Australia
Netherlands
Netherlands
United Kingdom
Netherlands
Hong Kong
Netherlands
New Zealand
China
Germany
Germany
United Kingdom
Arizona
Illinois
Illinois
lllinois
Arizona
Sweden
Switzerland
Denmark
Belgium
Austria
Germany
Delaware



Insight Technology Solutions LLC

Insight Technology Solutions NUF

Insight Technology Solutions Oy

Insight Technology Solutions Pte Ltc
Insight Technology Solutions SAS

Insight Technology Solutions S.L

Insight Technology Solutions SRL

Insight UK Acquisitions Limited (Dormant)
Microwarehouse BV

Minx Limited (Dormant)

PC Wholesale Ltd (Dormant)

Pulse Building Limited (Dormant)
Software Spectrum Services BV (Dormant)
Software Spectrum Limited (Dormant)
SSI Britain Limited (Dormant)

SSI Holdings Limited (Dormant)

3683371 Canada, Inc.

Russia
Norway
Finland

Singapore

France

Spain

Italy

United Kingdom

Netherlands
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom

Netherlands
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom

Canada



Exhibit 23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

The Board of Directors
Insight Enterprises, Inc.:

We consent to the incorporation by reference irrélggstration statement Nos. 333-147879 and 33®2¥®n Form S-8 of Insight Enterprises,
Inc. of our reports dated February 20, 2015, wéigpect to the consolidated balance sheets of inBigflerprises, Inc. and subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the related cdasedl statements of operations, comprehensive iacstockholders’ equity, and cash
flows for each of the years in the thngear period ended December 31, 2014, and the wieeiss of internal control over financial repogti
of December 31, 2014, which reports appear in teeehber 31, 2014 annual report on Form 10-K ofjlitsEnterprises, Inc.

/sl KPMG LLP

Phoenix, Arizona
February 20, 2015



Exhibit 24.1

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS,that the undersigned hereby constitutes and appKiineth T. Lamneck, Glynis .
Bryan and Steven R. Andrews his true and lawfarattys-in-fact and agents, for him, and in his ngmece and stead, in any and all
capacities (i) to sign the Insight Enterprises, kuenual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal yeaded December 31, 2014 and any and all
amendments thereto and (ii) to file the same, wiitexhibits thereto and other documents in coriaedherewith, with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorneyfadt and agents full power and authority to dd parform each and every act and thing
requisite and necessary to be done in such coomeeis fully to all intents and purposes as theetsigned might or could do in person, hereby
ratifying and confirming all that said attorneystact and agents, may lawfully do or cause to beeduy virtue hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has duly executed this instrumenf this 11th day of February, 2015.

/sl Timothy A. Crowr
Timothy A. Crown



Exhibit 24.2

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS,that the undersigned hereby constitutes and appKiineth T. Lamneck, Glynis .
Bryan, and Steven R. Andrews his true and lawfaragys-in-fact and agents, for him, and in his eaplace, and stead, in any and all
capacities (i) to sign the Insight Enterprises, kuenual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal yeaded December 31, 2014, and any and all
amendments thereto and (ii) to file the same, wiitexhibits thereto and other documents in coriaedherewith, with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorneyfadt and agents full power and authority to dd parform each and every act and thing
requisite and necessary to be done in such coomeeis fully to all intents and purposes as theetsigned might or could do in person, hereby
ratifying and confirming all that said attorneystact and agents, may lawfully do or cause to beeduy virtue hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has duly executed this instrumenf this 11th day of February, 2015.

/s/ Richard E. Aller
Richard E. Aller



Exhibit 24.3

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS,that the undersigned hereby constitutes and appKiineth T. Lamneck, Glynis .
Bryan, and Steven R. Andrews his true and lawfaragys-in-fact and agents, for him, and in his eaplace, and stead, in any and all
capacities (i) to sign the Insight Enterprises, kuenual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal yeaded December 31, 2014, and any and all
amendments thereto and (ii) to file the same, wiitexhibits thereto and other documents in coriaedherewith, with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorneyfadt and agents full power and authority to dd parform each and every act and thing
requisite and necessary to be done in such coomeeis fully to all intents and purposes as theetsigned might or could do in person, hereby
ratifying and confirming all that said attorneystact and agents, may lawfully do or cause to beeduy virtue hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has duly executed this instrumenf this 11th day of February, 2015.

I/s/ Bennett Dorranc
Bennett Dorranc



Exhibit 24.4

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS,that the undersigned hereby constitutes and appKiineth T. Lamneck, Glynis .
Bryan, and Steven R. Andrews his true and lawfaragys-in-fact and agents, for him, and in his eaplace, and stead, in any and all
capacities (i) to sign the Insight Enterprises, kuenual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal yeaded December 31, 2014, and any and all
amendments thereto and (ii) to file the same, wiitexhibits thereto and other documents in coriaedherewith, with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorneyfadt and agents full power and authority to dd parform each and every act and thing
requisite and necessary to be done in such coomeeis fully to all intents and purposes as theetsigned might or could do in person, hereby
ratifying and confirming all that said attorneystact and agents, may lawfully do or cause to beeduy virtue hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has duly executed this instrumenf this 11th day of February, 2015.

/s/ Michael M. Fishe
Michael M. Fishel



Exhibit 24.5

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS,that the undersigned hereby constitutes and appKiineth T. Lamneck, Glynis .
Bryan, and Steven R. Andrews his true and lawfaragys-in-fact and agents, for him, and in his eaplace, and stead, in any and all
capacities (i) to sign the Insight Enterprises, kuenual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal yeaded December 31, 2014, and any and all
amendments thereto and (ii) to file the same, wiitexhibits thereto and other documents in coriaedherewith, with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorneyfadt and agents full power and authority to dd parform each and every act and thing
requisite and necessary to be done in such coomeeis fully to all intents and purposes as theetsigned might or could do in person, hereby
ratifying and confirming all that said attorneystact and agents, may lawfully do or cause to beeduy virtue hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has duly executed this instrumenf this 11th day of February, 2015.

/sl Larry A. Gunning
Larry A. Gunning



Exhibit 24.6

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS,that the undersigned hereby constitutes and appKiineth T. Lamneck, Glynis .
Bryan, and Steven R. Andrews his true and lawfaragys-in-fact and agents, for him, and in his eaplace, and stead, in any and all
capacities (i) to sign the Insight Enterprises, kuenual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal yeaded December 31, 2014, and any and all
amendments thereto and (ii) to file the same, wiitexhibits thereto and other documents in coriaedherewith, with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorneyfadt and agents full power and authority to dd parform each and every act and thing
requisite and necessary to be done in such coomeeis fully to all intents and purposes as theetsigned might or could do in person, hereby
ratifying and confirming all that said attorneystact and agents, may lawfully do or cause to beeduy virtue hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has duly executed this instrumenf this 11th day of February, 2015.

s/ Anthony A. Ibargiel
Anthony A. Ibarguet



Exhibit 24.7

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS,that the undersigned hereby constitutes and appKiineth T. Lamneck, Glynis .
Bryan, and Steven R. Andrews his true and lawfaragys-in-fact and agents, for him, and in his eaplace, and stead, in any and all
capacities (i) to sign the Insight Enterprises, kuenual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal yeaded December 31, 2014, and any and all
amendments thereto and (ii) to file the same, wiitexhibits thereto and other documents in coriaedherewith, with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorneyfadt and agents full power and authority to dd parform each and every act and thing
requisite and necessary to be done in such coomeeis fully to all intents and purposes as theetsigned might or could do in person, hereby
ratifying and confirming all that said attorneystact and agents, may lawfully do or cause to beeduy virtue hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has duly executed this instrumenf this 11th day of February, 2015.

/s/ Robertson C. Joni
Robertson C. Jone



Exhibit 24.8

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS,that the undersigned hereby constitutes and appKiineth T. Lamneck, Glynis .
Bryan, and Steven R. Andrews her true and lawtoragys-in-fact and agents, for her, and in heragrtace, and stead, in any and all
capacities (i) to sign the Insight Enterprises, kugnual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal yeaded December 31, 2014, and any and all
amendments thereto and (ii) to file the same, wiitexhibits thereto and other documents in coriaedherewith, with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorneyfadt and agents full power and authority to dd parform each and every act and thing
requisite and necessary to be done in such coomeeis fully to all intents and purposes as theetsigned might or could do in person, hereby
ratifying and confirming all that said attorneystact and agents, may lawfully do or cause to beeduy virtue hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has duly executed this instrumenf this 11th day of February, 2015.

s/ Kathleen S. Push
Kathleen S. Pushc



Exhibit 31.1
INSIGHT ENTERPRISES, INC.
CERTIFICATION

I, Kenneth T. Lamneck, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of Insight Enterprises, Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorany untrue statement of a material fact or eéonditate a material fact necessar
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisieading with respect to
the period covered by this repc

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsodimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, angdtfie periods presented in this
report;

4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainirsgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresiused such disclosure controls and procedaoites designed
under our supervision, to ensure that materiairmédion relating to the registrant, including itmsolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others with@se entities, particularly during the period ihigh this report is
being preparec

b. Designed such internal control over financiglarting, or caused such internal control over fiahreporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readerasurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentisisineport our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discisantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by thi
report based on such evaluation;

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the tegys’s internal control over financial reportirtgat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regists fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to evélly affect, the registrant’s internal contrales financial reporting;
and

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the
equivalent functions)

a. All significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversadfgct the registrarg’ ability to record, process, summarize and re
financial information; ani

b.  Any fraud, whether or not material, that invavaanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the
registran’s internal control over financial reportir

Date: February 20, 2015

By: /s/ Kenneth T. Lamneck
Kenneth T. Lamneck
Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2
INSIGHT ENTERPRISES, INC.
CERTIFICATION

I, Glynis A. Bryan, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of Insight Enterprises, Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorany untrue statement of a material fact or eéonditate a material fact necessar
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisieading with respect to
the period covered by this repc

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsodimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, angdtfie periods presented in this
report;

4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainirsgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresiused such disclosure controls and procedaoites designed
under our supervision, to ensure that materiairmédion relating to the registrant, including itmsolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others with@se entities, particularly during the period ihigh this report is
being preparec

b. Designed such internal control over financiglarting, or caused such internal control over fiahreporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readerasurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentisisineport our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discisantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by thi
report based on such evaluation;

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the tegys’s internal control over financial reportirtgat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regists fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to evélly affect, the registrant’s internal contrales financial reporting;
and

5 The registrant’s other certifying officer andave disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatioriernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the
equivalent functions)

a. All significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversadfgct the registrarg’ ability to record, process, summarize and re
financial information; ani

b.  Any fraud, whether or not material, that invavaanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the
registran’s internal control over financial reportir

Date: February 20, 2015

By: /s/ Glynis A. Bryan
Glynis A. Bryan
Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1
INSIGHT ENTERPRISES, INC.

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Insight &mtrises, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form KOfor the period ended December
2014 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Csion on the date hereof (the “Report”), we, Kehrie Lamneck, Chief Executive

Officer of the Company, and Glynis A. Bryan, Chirghancial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuémtl8 U.S.C. 81350, as adopted
pursuant to 8906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2@, to the best of our knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeatsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExafeAct of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faphgesents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition and results of operations
of the Company.

By: /s/ Kenneth T. Lamneck
Kenneth T. Lamneck
Chief Executive Officer
February 20, 2015

By: /s/ Glynis A. Bryan
Glynis A. Bryan
Chief Financial Officer
February 20, 2015




